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BOARD’S REPORT

To the Members of
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (the Company),

The Directors hereby present their 23r4 Annual Report on the business, operations and the
state of affairs of the Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year

ended March 31, 2020: -

Financial Highlights

Rs. in millions

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Total Income 2,893.63 4,484.31
Total Expenditure 2,860.21 3,975.36
Profit before tax 33.42 508.95

Provision for tax (including Deferred Tax and fringe benefit tax,

if any) 22.76 170.40
Profit after tax 10.66 338.55
Other Comprehensive Income (0.15) 0.68

Add: Profit and Loss account balance brought forward from

previous year 10.51 339.23
Profit available for appropriation 479.14 543.92
Appropriations 489.65 883.15

- Income Tax Impact on ESOP

- Transfer to special reserve under Section 45-IC of the

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 12.14 -

- Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve - 8.15

- Deemed distribution during the year 2.10 67.71
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet - 328.15
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Information on the state of affairs of the Company

Information on the operational and financial performance, among others, is given in the
Management Discussion and Analysis Report which is attached as “Annexure I” to this
Report and that same is in accordance with the provisions of the RBI Master Direction No.
DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 1, 2016, as amended from time to time.

Major events during the year

Application for merger of the Company with ECL Finance Limited

The Company has filed an application under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013
before the National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) Mumbai Bench on March 26, 2019 for
merger of the Company with ECL Finance Limited. Further, in view of the affidavits of all
Equity shareholders of the Company, the requirement of Shareholders’ meeting for
considering and/or approving the amalgamation has been dispensed by NCLT Mumbai
Bench vide its order dated August 16, 2019. Also, the Bench has directed the Company to send
notices to all its secured/ unsecured creditors (which are due and payable as on June 30, 2019)
in the manner mentioned in the said order. Further, on March 25, 2019, our Company applied
for approval from the Reserve Bank of India in relation to the merger of the Company with
ECL Finance Limited, which was approved by the RBI on September 27, 2019.

Reserves and Surplus

The details of the Reserves and Surplus are given in the Financial Statement attached
herewith.

Share Capital
There was no change in the Share Capital of the Company during the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2020.

As at March 31, 2020, Authorised Share Capital and Paid up Share capital of the Company
stands at Rs. 500 million and Rs. 42.95 million respectively.

Finance

Your Company continued to borrow long-term funds from Banks and various financial
institutions in line with the Asset-Liability Management requirements and availability of
Resources.

During the year under review, the Company did not issue any securities.

The Company enjoys credit rating from various Rating Agencies. The details of the credit
ratings are furnished in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
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Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Company:

Your Company does not have any Subsidiary or Associate Company, nor has it entered into
any Joint Venture Agreement under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The holds investment in various trusts in the form of Security Receipts. The details of such
trusts are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Our network of offices

We operate through a wide network of 40 offices as of March 31, 2020 spread across 15 States.
The reach of our branches allows us to service our existing customers and attract new
customers. We service multiple products through each of our offices, which reduces operating
costs and improves total sales. Our spread out office network reduces our reliance on any one
region in India and allows us to apply best practices developed in one region to other regions.
Our geographic diversification also mitigates some of the regional, climatic and cyclical risks,
such as heavy monsoons or droughts.

Loans, Investments and Guarantees

The Company is engaged in the business of providing loans and making investments. During
the year under review, the Company did not give any guarantee. Further, the provisions of
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to giving of loans, guarantees or providing
security in connection with loan and acquisition of securities of any body-corporate are not
applicable, as the Company is a Non-banking Finance Company.

Related Party Transactions

All the Related Party Transactions entered by the Company are on arm’s length basis and in
the ordinary course of business. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with the related
Parties as referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 and forming part of this report are
provided in the financial statement and also annexed as Annexure IV (Form AOC-2). All the
Related Party Transactions as required under Ind AS-24 are reported in the Notes to the
financial statement.

The Company has formulated Related Party Transactions Policy, which is uploaded on the

website of the Company, at https://www.edelweissretailfin.com.

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company

There has been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the
Financial Statement relates (i.e. March 31, 2020) and the date of the report.
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Extract of the Annual Return

In accordance with the provisions of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
framed thereunder, an extract of the annual return in Form No. MGT 9 is available on the
website of the Company at https:/ /www.edelweissretailfin.com

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

i) Independent Directors

In accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Independent Directors have given a declaration that they meet the criteria of
independence as provided in the said section. Accordingly, the Company confirms
that in the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Independent Directors fulfil the
conditions specified in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that the
independent directors are independent of the management.

ii) Changes in Directors

a) On the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
company, the board appointed Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar (DIN: 00005164) as an
Independent Director (Additional Director) w.e.f April 12, 2020 and that he shall
hold office as an Independent Director till the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of the Company to be held in the year 2024. Further, as an
Additional Director, he shall hold office up to the date of ensuring AGM. The
enabling resolution for his confirmation as an Independent Director for a period of
5 years is being placed in the Notice of the forthcoming AGM for the approval of
shareholders.

b) Mr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah resigned as an Independent Director of the Company
with effect from January 14, 2020.

c) Consequent to the resignation of Mr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah as an Independent
Director of the Company w.e.f. January 14, 2020, the constitution of Board had
fallen below the statutory minimum of 3 Directors. The Reserve Bank of India vide
its letter 918/13.05.0492018-19 dated December 31, 2019 approved the application
of the company for appointment of Ms. Shilpa Gattani as the Non-Executive
Director of the company. Considering the same, the shareholders” at their extra-
ordinary general meeting held on February 6, 2020 approved the appointment of
Ms. Shilpa Gattani as a Non-executive Director of the Company.
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d) Ms. Shalinee Mimani (DIN: 07404075) and Mr. Shrikant Subbarayan (DIN:
05225191) resigned from the Board of the Company with effect from September 16,
2019 and close of business hours on August 13, 2019 respectively.

e) On the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board, at
its meeting/by passing resolution by circulation, on April 13, 2020 and June 9,
2020, approved the appointment of Mr. Deepak Mundra (DIN: 06733120) and Mr.
Phanindranath Kakarla (DIN: 02076676) as Additional (Non-Executive) Directors
of the Company, with effect from the date of receipt of approval of RBI. The
Company is in the process of making an application for the said appointment to
RBIL In case the Company receives aforesaid approval from RBI prior to the
forthcoming AGM, enabling Resolutions for their appointment as Non-Executive
Directors of the Company will be included in the aforesaid Notice for the
consideration of members.

f) Ms. Shilpa Gattani (DIN: 05124763) retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting (AGM) and, being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

iii)  Key Managerial Personnel
During the year under review and until the date of this report, there were following
changes in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

Sr. | Name of the KMP Nature of Change Effective Date

No

1. | Ms. Sudipta Majumdar | Resigned as Company Secretary | August 23, 2019

5 Mr. Amit Pandey Appointed as Company | August 24, 2019
' Secretary

Mr. Vineet Mahajan Resigned as Chief Executive | March 16, 2020

3 Officer (CEQO)

4 Ms. Kirti Anand | Resigned as Chief Financial | January 28, 2020
" | Sawant Officer (CFO)

5 Mr. Shailendra | Appointed as Chief Financial | July 3, 2020
" | Dhupiya Officer (CFO)

6 Mr. Mehernosh Tata Appointed as Chief-Executive | July 3, 2020
' Officer (CEO)

Number of Board Meetings held

During the financial year 2019-20, Five (5) Board Meetings were held i.e. on May 13, 2019,
August 13, 2019, September 26, 2019, November 11, 2019 and February 13, 2020.
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Remuneration Policy

The Company has formulated a Remuneration Policy as per the provisions of Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013. The Policy is provided as Annexure II to this Report and is also
placed on the website of the Company viz. https:/ /www.edelweissretailfin.com

Evaluation of the Performance of the Board

The Board has formulated an Evaluation Policy (the Policy) for evaluating the performance of
the Board, Managing Director, Executive Directors, Independent Directors, Non-executive
Directors and its Committees. Based on the same, the performance was evaluated for the
financial year ended March 31, 2020.

The Policy inter alia provides the criteria for performance evaluation such as Board
effectiveness, quality of discussion, contribution at the meetings, business acumen, strategic
thinking, time commitment, relationship with the stakeholders, corporate governance
practices, contribution of the Committees to the Board in discharging its functions, etc.

Internal Control System

The internal controls of Edelweiss are commensurate with the business requirements, its scale
of operation and applicable statutes to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of business. These
controls have been designed to ensure assurance with regard to maintaining proper
accounting controls, substantiation of financial statement and adherence to IND AS
requirements, safeguarding of resources, prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
ensuring operating effectiveness, reliability of financial reporting, compliance with applicable
regulations and relevant matters covered under section 134 (5) (e) of the Companies Act 2013.

The Company follows below assurance practices to strengthen its Internal Control
Framework:

e COSO framework is implemented by considering control environment, periodic risk
assessment, performing control activity, timely communication to management and
monitoring the control activities on a continuous basis.

e Assurance on process efficiency by identifying relevant and adequate coverage by
defining scope of internal audit, pro-actively prepare for regulatory review,
remediating through preventive and corrective steps for identified risk events.

e Reliability of internal controls are aligned to risk identified in Risk Control Self-
Assessment (RCSA)/ERM and are monitored through process reviews, Internal
Financial Control review etc. Further, RCSA/ ERM are updated at regular interval
considering any emerging risk / new process identified.
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e Effective and efficient processes through automation of processes and review
mechanism, control dashboard and its monitoring and benchmarking with peers,
wherever possible.

e Standardisation through Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) which emphasize on
documentation and its repository of existing and new process along with delegations
and controls. Also, Frameworks and policies (Internal / Regulated) are updated and
reviewed at regular intervals to enhance control mechanism.

Internal Financial Controls

The internal financial controls adopted by the Company are in accordance with the criteria
established under the Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Tredway Commission. Based on its internal
evaluation and as confirmed by the Statutory Auditors of the Company, the management
team believes that adequate internal financial controls exist in relation to its Financial
Statements.

Risk Management

Risk management is an integral part of the Company’s business strategy. The Risk
Management Committee oversees the risk management framework of the Company through
regular and proactive intervention by senior management personnel. The Company adopts a
conservative and forward looking risk management practices while lending. The risk
framework ensures that the Company underwrites to prudent risk standards, focuses on its
target segment and delivers sustainable profitability. The senior management is responsible
for ensuring that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place for
monitoring, identifying and reviewing the risks associated with the business of the Company,
with due support and guidance from the Risk Management Team. The company leverages
analytics to design relevant application level scorecards and also ensures dashboards for
effective dynamic portfolio monitoring.

During the year under review, the Risk Management Committee met 4 (four) times on May
15, 2019, September 26, 2019, November 11, 2019 & February 19, 2020. The constitution and
the number of meetings attended by the Members of the committee during the year under
review is given below:

Member Category Meetings held Meetings attended
Mr. K. Siddharth* Non-  Executive | 4 3
Director
Mr. Vineet Mahajan* | Chief = Executive | 4 4
Officer
Mr. Gaurav Ajmera Member 4 3
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Ms. Shalinee Mimani® | Non-  Executive | 1 1
Director

Mr. Shrikant | Non-  Executive | 1 1

Subbarayan** Director

Mr. Virendra Kumar | Member 1 1

Mr. Mehernosh Tata | Member 3 2

Mr. Shailendra | Chief Financial | NIL NIL

Dhupiya Officer

Ms. Shilpa Gattani Non-  Executive | NIL NIL
Director

Mr. Nirav Kamdar Member NIL NIL

*Mpr. Krishnaswamy Siddharth resigned w.e.f. May 15, 2020.
$Ms. Shalinee Mimani resigned w.e.f. September 16, 2019.
**Mpr. Shrikant Subbarayan resigned w.e.f. August 13, 2019.
#Mpr. Vineet Mahajan resigned w.e.f. March 16, 2020.

Audit Committee

In accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the Act), the
Board of the Company has constituted an Audit Committee. During the year ended March 31,
2020, the Audit Committee met 4 (four) times on May 13, 2019, August 13, 2019, November
11, 2019 & February 13, 2020. The constitution and the number of meetings attended by the
Members of the Audit Committee during the year under review is given below:

Member Category Meetings held/ | Meetings
Liable to attend attended

Mr. Mitul Bhagvandas | Independent Director 4 4

Shah

Mr. Sanjay Nathalal | Independent Director 3 3

Shah*

Mr. Krishnaswamy | Non- Executive Director | 4 3

Siddharth*

Ms. Shilpa Gattani Non- Executive Director |1 1

Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar?® | Independent Director NIL NIL

*Mr. Krishnaswamy Siddharth resigned w.e.f. May 15, 2020.
#Mpr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah resigned w.e.f. January 14, 2020.
$Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar appointed w.e.f. April 12, 2020.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the Act), the
Board of the Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC).
During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee met 3
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(three) times on May 13, 2019, August 13, 2019, & September 26, 2019. The constitution and
the number of meetings attended by the Members of the NRC during the year under review
is given below:

Member Category Meetings held/ | Meetings attended
Liable to attend

Mr. Mitul | Independent 3 3

Bhagvandas Shah Director

Mr. Sanjay Nathalal | Independent 3 2

Shah* Director

Mr. Krishnaswamy | Non-Executive 3 2

Siddharth* Director

Mr. Sunil | Independent NIL NIL

Phatarphekar® Director

*Mpr. Krishnaswamy Siddharth resigned w.e.f. May 15, 2020.
#*Mpr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah resigned w.e.f. January 14, 2020.
$Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar appointed w.e.f. April 12, 2020.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), the
Board has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. During the year ended
March 31, 2020, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met twice on May 13, 2019 &
August 13, 2019. The constitution and the number of meetings attended by the Members of
the CSR Committee during the year under review is given below:

Member Category Meetings held Meetings attended

Mr. Sanjay Nathalal | Independent 2 2

Shah* Director

Mr. Krishnaswamy | Non-Executive 2 1

Siddharth* Director

Mr. Shrikant | Non-Executive 2 1

Subbarayan Director

Ms. Shilpa Gattani Non-Executive NIL NIL
Director

Mr. Sunil | Independent NIL NIL

Phatarphekar® Director

*Mr. Krishnaswamy Siddharth resigned w.e.f. May 15, 2020.
#Mpr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah resigned w.e.f. January 14, 2020.
$Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar appointed w.e.f. April 12, 2020.
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The CSR Policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company i.e.
https://www.edelweissretailfin.com. The details with respect to the CSR Policy and

expenditure made by the Company during the year under review are provided in Annexure
III to this report.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act, the Board of Directors of the
Company have constituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee (‘'SRC Committee”).
During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee met twice
on May 13, 2019 & February 13, 2020. The constitution and the number of meetings attended
by the Members of the SRC Committee during the year under review is given below:

Member Category Meetings held Meetings attended

Mr. Krishnaswamy | Non- Executive | 2 1

Siddharth* Director

Mr. Vineet Mahajan® | Chief Executive | 2 2
Officer

Ms. Shalinee | Non- Executive | 1 1

Mimani#* Director

Mr. Mitul | Independent NIL NIL

Bhagvandas Shah Director

Ms. Shilpa Gattani Non- Executive | NIL NIL
Director

Mr. Amit Pandey Company Secretary | 1 1

*Mpr. Krishnaswamy Siddharth resigned w.e.f. May 15, 2020.

$Mr. Vineet Mahajan resigned w.e.f. March 16, 2020.
# Ms. Shalinee Mimani resigned w.e.f. September 16, 2019.

Statutory Auditors

In accordance with the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
framed thereunder (the Act). M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP has been appointed as the Auditors
of the Company to hold office till the conclusion of 26t Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held in year 2023.

Secretarial Audit

The Board had appointed M/s. Sanjay Grover & Associates, Company Secretaries, as
Secretarial Auditor, to conduct the secretarial audit for the financial year ended March 31,
2020. The Report of the Secretarial Auditor is provided as an Annexure V to this Report.
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With respect to observation contained in Secretarial Audit Report regarding vacancy arisen
due to resignation of Women Director w.e.f. September 16, 2019, which was filled on February
06, 2020, we would like to mention that beyond a certain threshold, any change in Directors
of an NBFC requires RBI approval. Post resignation of Ms. Shalinee Mimani (Woman Director)
w.e.f. September 16, 2019, the Board in its meeting held on September 26, 2019, considered the
appointment of Ms. Shilpa Gattani as the Non-Executive Director of the company, which was
approved by RBI on December 31, 2019. Considering the same, the shareholders” at their
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on February 6, 2020 approved the aforesaid
appointment. Further, we would like to mention that the Board has taken note of the other
observation and will take necessary actions in due course.

Prevention of Sexual harassment of Women at Workplace

The Company has framed a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at workplace. There
was no case reported during the year ended March 31, 2020 under the Policy. The Company
has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings / Outgo

A. Conservation of energy

i) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:
The operations of your Company are not energy-intensive. However, adequate

measures have been initiated for conservation of energy:

e Quarterly /Periodic maintenance of Air Conditioners are carried out for better
performance and to control power consumption across branches.

e Electrical Planned Preventive Maintenance is performed at the branches to
ensure that the health of the Electrical set-up is maintained which in turn
conserves energy.

if) the steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate source of energy - though

the operations of the Company are not energy intensive, the Company shall
explore alternative source of energy, as and when the necessity arises.

iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment - Nil

B. Technology absorption

i) The efforts made towards technology absorption:
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The following efforts have been taken towards technology absorption:

a. Digitization & digitalization across various business verticals is in progress.

b. Most of the business functions & operations are working towards streamlining
& optimizing the business workflows via technology absorption.

c. Over 30% of legacy applications have been, either consolidated, or
decommissioned; & have been replaced with digital workflows & modern
technology solutions.

d. Engineering of better technology solutions & elimination of fragmented
applications, legacy applications, or applications functioning in silos; is a
continuous process; that shall continue in-parallel; so that there are no outages
& zero business continuity risks

ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution:

Reduction of data-loss during customer onboarding.

Consolidation of digital assets, storage & speedy retrieval.

Various product enhancements.

Cost & resource optimization of ownership & upkeep of multiple sapplications
[manpower, infrastructure, support, maintenance].

an o

iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from
the beginning of the financial year)

the details of technology imported

the year of import

whether the technology been fully absorbed; and

if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the
reasons thereof:

an o

- Not Applicable

iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development:

a. We do not have a dedicated R&D division.
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b. We have been adopting cutting edge technology stack (low-code / no-code
development platform, etc.) & unconventional models for solution
engineering; for fastest go-to-market product deliveries

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

There were no foreign exchange earnings during the year under review. There was outgo of
nil million (previous year: Nil).

Other Disclosure

No disclosure is required in respect of the details relating to the issue of Equity Shares with
differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise, sweat equity shares, as there were no
transactions on these matters during the year ended March 31, 2020. There were no significant
or material order passed by any regulator or court or tribunal which would impact the status
of the Company as a going concern and the operations in future. No material changes have
occurred between the end of financial year i.e. March 31, 2020 and the date of the report
affecting the financial position of your Company. Further, no fraud was reported by the
Auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 during the year under review. The Company
has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards issued by Institute of Company Secretaries
of India.

Deposits

The Company neither held any public deposits at the beginning of the year nor has it accepted
any public deposits during the year under review.

Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism

The Company has established Vigil Mechanism (‘Whistle-blower Mechanism’) which
envisages reporting by directors and employees about their genuine concerns or grievances.
The policy is uploaded on https:/ /www.edelweissretailfin.com.The Audit Committee of the

Board of Directors of the Company oversees the vigil mechanism.

Opinion of the Board with regard to integrity, expertise and experience (including the

proficiency) of the independent directors appointed during the vear

The Company didn’t appoint any Independent Director during the year under review.
However, in the opinion of the Board, all the existing Independent Directors meets the
standards of the Company with regard to integrity, expertise and experience (including the
proficiency). Further their name have been included in the data bank created by IICA in terms
of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Fifth Amendment Rules, 2019
dated October 22, 2019.
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Particulars of Emplovees

In terms of provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the
details of remuneration and compensation of the employees are to be set out as an Annexure
VI to the Board’s Report. With respect to the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act,
2013, the Annual Report excluding the said information is being sent to the shareholders of
the Company. Any shareholder interested in obtaining such particulars may write to the
Company Secretary of the Company at its Corporate Office address.

Debenture Trustee:

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited
Asian Building, Ground Floor,

17, R. Kamani Marg, Ballard Estate,
Mumbai- 400 001, Maharashtra, India
Tel: +91 22 4080 7000;

Fax: +91 22 6631 1776/40807080
E-mail: itsl@idbitrustee.com

Website: www.idbitrustee.com
Contact Person: Mr. Naresh Sachwani

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), your Directors confirm that:-

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed;

(ii) we had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020 and
of the profit of the Company for the financial year ended on that date;

(iii)  proper and sufficient care had been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(iv)  the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

(v) internal financial controls have been laid down and the same are adequate and
were operating effectively; and

(vi)  we have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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given by Reserve Bank of India, Securities and Exchange Board of India, Stock Exchanges,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Banks, other Government authorities and other stakeholders.
The Board would like to acknowledge the support of its clients and members. Your Directors
would also like to take this opportunity to express their appreciation for the dedicated efforts
of the employees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Date: July 3, 2020 Sd- ¥
Mitul Bhagvandas Shah  Shilpa Gattani
Place: Mumbai Director Director
DIN: 07122551 DIN: 05124763
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (ERFL)
FY2019-20
Management Discussion & Analysis

From ‘moment of excitement’ (2000-10) — as John
Keynes would have put it - to lingering ‘uncertainty’
(2011-19), Emerging Markets (EM) have seen a
remarkable reversal of fortunes and their growth
models changed from being export-led to domestic
demand-led. Fed’s repeated attempts at tightening
(2013, 2015, 2018) were met with EM turmoil, India
being no exception. However, when Fed started its
Balance sheet expansion from October 2019, global
economy was eyeing at a modest uptick, only to face
a speed breaker in the form of COVID-19 Pandemic.
However, this too has a silver lining — COVID-19 has
resulted in a unified monetary and fiscal expansion
across developed economies.

Against this backdrop, how is India stacked up? Indian
economy was stabilizing post the economic
slowdown owing to large liquidity injections from the
RBI. Systemic liquidity has been running in surplus for
last ~12 months. On the reforms front, India made
considerable progress with corporate tax rates
reduction.

On the monetary policy front, RBI has been
accommodative by cutting policy rates by 250 bps
since April 2019. It indicated in its announcement on
May 22, 2020 that post the Pandemic, real GDP is
likely to contract in FY21 and hinted that if inflation
progresses as per expectation, more room for rate
cuts will open up.

On the fiscal front, government maintained fiscal
prudence in FY20 though the recent stimulus package
would cause a dent. This has resulted in India’s macro
stability being significantly anchored. From being a
current account deficit country, India is on the path of
having a current account surplus.

Now, with the COVID-19 crisis, operating conditions
are challenging in the near term with the FY20 GDP
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growth at 4.2% which is likely to slip into negative
territory in early part of FY21. Bringing back the
economy on a growth path would be arduous.
However, such crises also present opportunities. We
see two big opportunities for India. First, the sharp fall
in oil prices. Second, the narrative today globally is to
diversify facilities from China. In this context, given
India’s large size it should benefit from the same and
it is important we capitalize on these opportunities.

Overall Outlook

While near-term outlook post lockdown is clouded
with challenges, we believe that the medium term
looks brighter. As developed markets continue with
fiscal and monetary expansion, EMs will benefit
significantly on the exports front. India could
potentially be a big winner of these. On the flip side,
however, a prolonged COVID-19 crisis across the
world has the potential to play the spoil sport.

Therefore, it is expected that while economic activity
will remain muted in FY21, it should start to gain
traction gradually afterwards.

Commercial Credit Markets

Banking Industry

FY20 has been a tough year for banks. Coming out of
softer 9MFY20, the impact of COVID-19 did not help
the cause either. The system credit growth fell sub-
7% levels for FY20 given the muted fourth quarter,
which is usually the strongest quarter.

FY20 also saw volatile asset quality in banks with
incremental stress remaining higher and witnessed
the bail out of a private sector bank. Going forward
we see our prognosis of systemic asset quality rather
bleak, and we believe that long-term costs of the
current economic dislocation remain a known
unknown.
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The developments over past few months which led to
liquidity crunch resulted in risk aversion towards
NBFCs/HFCs as incremental liquidity became
expensive. Even while to an extent the banks
benefitted from softened competition, the overall
demand scenario suffered and credit outlook remains
vulnerable.

NBFC Industry

Past few quarters have been tough for NBFCs which,
coming out of difficult 9MFY20, faced COVID-19
related uncertainty. We believe, this will not only
reflect in the current liquidity challenges but will also
get manifested in the form of formidable asset side
challenges.

Fresh funding did become more expensive in this
backdrop, especially for players dependent on debt
market. As a result, risk appetite waned impacting
growth of the NBFC sector as they focused more on
liquidity management rather than chasing asset
growth. The recovery we believe will take
considerable time and will have to be drawn via
support from regulator and government.

Going forward, while the segment remains highly
vulnerable, capital position, asset quality and liquidity
management practices hold key. Within NBFCs, well
run business models with stronger balance sheets
and prudent risk management practices will emerge
as winners.

Retail Finance

India has one of the lowest credit penetration among
larger economies and retail credit presents a large
growth opportunity driven by long term trends in
democratisation of credit, rising household incomes
and increased consumption. However, current
challenges turn consumption driven story on its head.
We expect growth will remain challenging with
players also tightening risk metrics to reflect the
ground realities.
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Retail focus areas for the banks and NBFCs/HFCs have
been mortgages and Mudra Finance or MSME
finance. There were three key challenges faced in
these businesses - Economy slowing down, Liquidity
crunch and impairment in customer credit quality.
Business environment was exacerbated towards the
end of FY20 due to the Pandemic because of which
MSME supply chain has been affected and
payments/liquidity has dried up. Hence the
performance of NBFCs in these sectors was muted
during FY20. While we firmly believe in longer term
potential for NBFCs/HFCs to scale up these portfolios,
near to medium term will be challenging before they
embark upon growth trajectory again.

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (ERFL) was formerly
known as Affluent Dealcom Private Limited (ADL)
which was incorporated on February 18, 1997. It was
an NBFC registered with the Reserve Bank of India
bearing Registration number 05.03052 authorised to
commence/carry on the business of a non-banking
financial institution subject to the conditions given in
the Certificate. The Company was acquired by
Edelcap Securities Limited (ESL) and was converted
into a public limited company with the name changed
to “Affluent Dealcom Limited” on receipt of a fresh
certificate of incorporation consequent to change in
status on January 1, 2014 from the Registrar of
Companies, West Bengal. Subsequently the
Company’s name was changed to “Edelweiss Retail
Finance Limited” pursuant to fresh certificate of
Incorporation dated January 6, 2014.

Subsequently, ERFL obtained a Certificate of
Registration dated October 14, 2014 bearing
Registration no. B-05.03052 issued by the Reserve
Bank of India under section 45IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934, to commence/carry on the
business of a non banking financial institution without
accepting public deposits subject to the conditions
mentioned in the Certificate of Registration.

The registered office of the Company was shifted
from the state of West Bengal to Maharashtra
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pursuant to Certificate of Registration of Regional
Director order for Change of State dated September
2, 2016 and fresh Certificate of Registration dated
January 4, 2017 bearing Registration no. B-13.02149
has been issued by the Reserve Bank of India,
Mumbai.

Itis a systemically important NBFC (NBFC — ND —Sl).

We are part of the Edelweiss Group which is one of
India’s prominent financial services organization
having businesses organized around three broad
business groups — Edelweiss Global Investment
Advisors (EGIA) including Wealth Management, Asset
Management, Capital Markets and  Asset
Reconstruction business, Credit businesses including
Retail Credit and Corporate Credit, and Insurance
including Life Insurance and General Insurance.

Today, ERFL is a Rs. 20 billion asset base company
with presence in SME Finance, Loan against Property,
Wholesale Loans and Construction Finance, allowing
it to address a considerable part of the financial needs
of its customers.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

With the macro-economic indicators starting to
deteriorate, business sentiment turning bearish,
liquidity crunch setting in for NBFCs during FY20 and
finally the impact of COVID-19 Pandemic coming in
towards the closure of the financial year, ERFL’s focus
during the year shifted to risk management including
control over asset quality and liquidity management
rather than chasing asset growth. This resulted in a
temporary setback to the growth momentum it had
achieved in the past few years. However, our strong
business fundamentals have empowered us to stand
strong even during the headwinds faced by NBFC
industry. At the same time, we devoted the year to
improving productivity of our employees, ensuring
quality of credit and customers we lend to and
building infrastructure including state of the art
technology to be ready to partake our share of
growth when it returns.
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A summary of our FY20 financial highlights is as
under:
e Total Revenue: Rs.2,894 million (Rs.4,484
million for FY19)
e Profit after Tax: Rs. 11 million (Rs.339
million for FY19)
e Networth: Rs. 4,522 million (Rs. 4,522
million at the end of FY19)
e Return on Equity 0.22% (7.57% for FY19)
e EPS (Basic and Diluted) Rs.0.25 (Rs.7.88 for
FY19) (FV Rs.10 per share)
e Book Value per Share Rs.107.81 (Rs.107.85
for FY19) (FV Rs.10 per share)

Fund Based Revenue

Our fund-based businesses earned revenue of
Rs.2,706 million for FY20 (Rs. 4,217 million for FY19).
Out of this, interest income was Rs.2,485 million
(Rs.3,950 million for FY19). Thus, almost all of the
fund-based revenue comprises of interest earnings.

Agency Fee & Commission

Our agency fee & commission revenue was Rs.221
million for the year, compared to Rs.267 million in
FY19, down 17%.

Net Revenue

For NBFCs, like banking industry, the concept of Net
Revenue (net of interest cost) is another way of
analyzing performance. This is because interest cost,
as with all Banks and large NBFCs/HFCs, should reflect
above the expenses line. On a net revenue basis, our
Agency fee & commission for FY20 was Rs.221 million
(Rs.267 million for FY19) and Fund based net revenue,
i.e. revenue net of interest cost, was Rs.969 million
(Rs.1,972 million for FY19). Thus, the total revenue for
FY20 was Rs.2,894 million (Rs.4,484 million for FY19).
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Our total costs for FY20 was Rs.2,860 million (Rs.3,975
million in FY19), down 28%. Within our total costs,
operating expenses accounted for Rs.320 million in
FY20 (Rs.821 million for FY19) and credit costs
accounted for Rs.732 million in FY20 (Rs.869 million
for FY19). Our employee expenses increased from
Rs.41 million in FY19 to Rs.61 million in FY20. As
regards interest expense which decreased from
Rs.2,244 million in FY19 to Rs.1,747 million in FY20,
our borrowings at the end of FY20 were Rs.14,527
million compared to Rs. 19,432 million at the end of
FY19, down 25%.

Our Profit after Tax for FY20 was Rs.11 million
compared to Rs.339 million for FY19.

Balance Sheet Gearing

We believe that a strong balance sheet imparts
unique ability to our company to be able to meet
demands of our clients and be able to raise debt
capital whenever required. ERFL has a total net worth
of Rs.4,522 million as at the end of FY20 compared to
Rs. 4,552 million at the end of FY19. Amount of debt
on the Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2020 was Rs.
14,527 million (Rs. 19,432 million as on March 31,
2019), a Gearing Ratio of 3.21 times for FY20, (4.27
times FY19). The comfortable leverage allows us
enough headroom to continue to grow and invest in
business. The gross Balance Sheet size at the end of
FY20 was Rs. 19,891 million compared to Rs. 24,471
million a year ago.

As per the recent amendments to the SEBI Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements (LODR), we
give below additional information in respect of
financial parameters that are applicable to our
company:
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1. Details of significant changes (i.e. change of
25% or more as compared to the
immediately previous financial year) in key
financial ratios, along with detailed
explanations therefore, including:

(a) Debt Equity Ratio 3.21 for FY20 compared to 4.27
for FY19; representing reduction in Debt by 25%. This
was due to lower borrowings on account of increased
focus on risk management rather than chasing asset
growth.

(b) Return of equity 0.22% for FY20, compared to
7.57% for FY19. Reduction is mainly due to lower
profit after tax during FY20.

Brief highlights of our business performance in FY20
are as under:

Credit business of ERFL broadly offers SME Finance,
Loan against Property, Wholesale Loans and
Construction Finance. These products provide us with
the intended diversification in our business thereby
reducing the concentration risk. Retail segment loans
also provide the desired potential for scaling up in a
vast underpenetrated market like India.

Total gross credit book of ERFL stands at Rs.16,137
million at the end of this year compared to Rs.19,078
million at the end of previous year, down by 15%.

The composition of Gross Credit Book is as under:
(Rs. in million)

As on As on
Product/Segment March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Loan against
4,606 7,046
Property
SME Loans 4,109 10,765
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Construction

. 339 1,067
Finance
Wholesale loans 7,083 -
Rural and other

- 200

Loans
Total Loan Book 16,137 19,078

Our Net Interest Margin (NIM) on the average credit
book for FY20 is 4.4%.

As a result of strict adherence to conservative credit
appraisal, constant collateral monitoring and best-in-
class risk management, ERFL has managed to control
its asset quality satisfactorily. Our Gross NPAs were at
2.4% and Net NPAs at 1.9% at the end of FY20
compared to Gross NPAs at 3.1% and Net NPAs at
2.7% at the end of FY19. During FY20, ERFL has
reduced its gross non-performing loans to Rs. 381
million at the end of FY20 compared to Rs.598 million
at the end of FY19. Our specific provision cover Ratio
as per the expected credit loss model as on March 31,
2020 was 19.7% compared to 14.4% as at the end of
FY19.

From its earliest days, ERFL has recognised this and
has always focused its energies in creating a strong
balance sheet. A strong capital base provides us the
freedom and ability to deploy capital for scaling up
our business. A strong balance sheet also enables us
easier access to market borrowings on the back of a
strong credit rating. It also helps in confidence
building exercise with our lenders.

Changing Liabilities Profile in Sync with Asset Profile

ERFL has over the period of last two years embarked
on a strategy of reducing dependence on group
borrowings, diversify its sources of borrowing and
increase liabilities in the six months to five years
bucket thereby bringing down dependence on short
term borrowings. Out of total borrowings of
Rs.14,527 million at the end of FY20 (Rs.19,432
million at the end of FY19), ERFL has Rs. 7,068 million
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of medium to long term debt by way of Bank/FI term
loan.

We maintain a matched ALM as we keep changing the
profile of our liabilities in sync with the assets being
booked.

Capital Adequacy Ratio

As per the NonBanking Financial Companies
Prudential Norms stipulated by Reserve Bank, all
NBFCs—ND-SI are required to maintain a minimum
Capital to Risk-weighted Assets Ratio (“CRAR”) of
15%. ERFL’s CRAR as on March 31, 2020 was 29.4%
(33.9% as on March 31, 2019) with a Tier | Ratio of
19.7% (24.9% as on March 31, 2019)

Despite the current economic downturn being
exacerbated by the Pandemic, the long term growth
story of India and the trend of compounding growth
remains in place. At the same time, while FY21 will be
a year of resilience, demand for credit in India will
continue to offerimmense opportunities in future for
firms like us as under:
e The financialisation of Indian household
savings, low credit penetration,
democratization of credit and demand for
consumption are presenting newer
opportunities, notwithstanding the current
dip, in the areas like retail credit which is
our focus area.

e The monsoon has already set in on time
this year and is expected to be a normal
one. Agriculture production is likely to
continue to grow in FY21 fuelling
consumption which augurs well for the
overall economy.

The expected return of growth in the Indian economy
in FY22 would continue to offer opportunities for us
to grow.



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited MD&A for Annual Report 2020

While the opportunities landscape is promising in the
medium term, following threats could dampen the
growth of NBFCs in India:

e Slower than expected recovery of macro-
economy, domestically as well as globally or a
prolonged COVID-19 Pandemic can impact the
growth.

e While the oil prices currently are benign, any
Increase in oil prices on the back of any geo-
political conflicts or delay in revival of capex cycle
can also impede growth.

o |f the current tight liquidity situation does not
normalize soon, it could affect the natural growth
of the NBFC sector.

With the GDP growth sliding down to 4.2% for FY20
and real GDP likely to fall into negative territory in
FY21, the outlook in short term is uncertain. However,
our belief in the long-term India story continues to
remain the same and growth opportunities will stage
a comeback sooner than later.

Despite the stimulus packages implemented by the
Government to alleviate the impact of the Pandemic
across various segments, the outlook for inflation and
interest rates remains positive. The government will
now go into a fiscal expansionary mode and with the
regulator also pushing growth through rate cuts, we
expect growth to come back in FY22 in a calibrated
manner.

The new normal post COVID-19 will also need a
significant re-thinking in the way NBFCs do business.
There will be an enhanced focus on equity capital,
liquidity management and resources side of the
balance sheet. The industry may continue to face
challenges in resources mobilization with Mutual
Funds not willing to lend beyond the top few NBFCs
and banks adopting a risk averse approach. Given this
scenario, we should expect a muted FY21 with
normalcy returning gradually in FY22.
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As we look ahead for EFIL, while FY20 was devoted to
strengthening the balance sheet, liquidity
management and risk management, we see lot of
promise and opportunity in the medium term. At
Edelweiss, we have done fairly well in managing risks
till now while balancing it with the growth vector, and
we should be able to combine scale and efficiency
going forward.

We will continue with the strategy to hold excess
liquidity and equity capital. We will also use
technology to be a key business drives to help us
deliver superior customer experience and rationalise
costs.

FY21 will be the year of resilience, as the economy
recovers. We will continue to focus on creating value
for stakeholders. Our customer base has kept faith
with us. Our talent pool is unmatched and closely
aligned with the interests of our stakeholders. As in
the past, Edelweiss will emerge stronger once the
current crisis blows away.

The business of ERFL is controlled and supported by a
core of Enterprise Groups that provide consistent
quality and rigour to key process functions. While
ERFL itself is responsible and equipped with
management of enterprise functions, it also draws
support from and expertise available at the Group
level. Various steps taken by us to improve efficacy of
Enterprise functions are detailed below. Various steps
taken by us to improve efficacy of Enterprise
functions are detailed below.

At Edelweiss, we believe in the philosophy that well
governed organisations tend to last longer and that
governance is the fulcrum around which entire
financial sector thrives. Hence, Governance is at the
heart of everything we do and it transcends beyond
compliance extending to ethics and values as well.
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Governance to us means Trust covering Ethics &
Integrity, Legitimacy encompassing Transparency,
Authenticity and Fairness, Accountability including
Decision making, responsiveness, Competence
highlighting Simplicity, and above all Respect for
letter and spirit of law.

Our Board attaches highest importance to
Governance and thus sets tone of culture flowing
from top throughout the fabric of our organisation.
Board has set a very high benchmark on the standards
to be adhered to. Boards of the ERFL and the Group
set higher standards on ethics, integrity, transparency
and fairness leading us to build good framework for
conduct, behaviour and process oversights at
organization level.

In order to promote good governance culture, we
have self-defined rules for good behaviour and
conduct at individual as well as at entity level. Sound
Frameworks have been put in place on issues of
Conflict of Interest, Insider Trading, dealing with
sensitive information etc. Last 18 months have
witnessed numerous challenges in the eco system as
discussed elsewhere in this report. Our Governance
standards have ensured continuity of service to
customers besides taking care of safety and
protection of all our stakeholders including
employees, channel partners/business partners etc.

Learning from these events that have unfolded in the
environment, our focus on governance has become
even sharper. We are continuously recalibrating
some of practices on the process of decision making
to facilitate smooth functioning while working from
home through use of technology with good
governance controls ensuring that compliance
standards are met even in challenging circumstances.

Risk management is integral part of business at
Edelweiss. The good risk management practices of
the Group have facilitated navigating through
environmentally turbulent times. Respect for Risk is
central to every business decision at Edelweiss.
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Simple questions are to be answered before every
decision, i.e., "Is it worth it?” and "Can we afford it?”.
This principle-based approach has stood well in
protecting the organisation from vagaries of external
world.

While we have been managing various risks, a need
for holistic approach to risk management led us to
embrace the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
framework sometime back at the Group level. This
framework has helped us strategically benchmark our
practices across different business lines to the best in
class levels. We have also put in place an in-house
“Eleven-risk framework” to formalize the process of
Assess, Avoid, Manage and Mitigate risks across
business verticals in a continuous manner.

The risk governance structure at Edelweiss Group
includes Board Risk Committee, Global Risk
Committee, Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
Council, Corporate Risk & Assurance, Investment
Committees, Credit Committees & Business Risk
Groups. While all the Group entities follow and
implement the central philosophy of Risk
Management, following the needs of our entity, the
Business Risk Group within ERFL has been further
strengthened.

Risk Culture is of paramount importance to Edelweiss
Group. We have taken multiple initiatives to further
improve and strengthen the Risk Culture through the
organisation. Appropriate risk  behaviour is
recognized and applauded through specific reward
and recognition programs.

Recently, the whole world has faced a tail risk event
of COVID-19 Pandemic. Coupled with national
lockdown, this event necessitated unique approaches
to mitigate different types of risk. Our advance
preparation along with technology enablement in
utmost agility ensured almost all our critical staff
could work from home seamlessly for business
continuity and serving customer deliverables.

In the short term, we are focused towards fighting the
battle against COVID-19 and work is happening on
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different fronts for ensuring that we adapt to the New
Normal going forward as expeditiously as possible.

We have the business risk team within our company
which ensures implementation of risk philosophy and
practices of Edelweiss Group at business level. Our
risk team also ensures that necessary action is taken
to make certain that identified risks are adequately
addressed.

Key Risks

ERFL deals in multiple asset classes and client
segments and is thus exposed to various risks that can
be broadly classified as credit risk, market risk,
operational risk and fraud risk.

Credit Risk

The credit risk framework of ERFL ensures prior and
periodic comprehensive assessment of every client,
counterparty and collateral. Exposure limits are
sanctioned to counterparties based on their credit
worthiness. Credit risk monitoring mechanism
ensures that exposure to clients is diversified and
remains within stipulated limits. Careful selection of
quality and quantum of collateral is key for a client
limit. Effective credit risk management has enabled us
to steer through the current environmental stress
conditions without any major impact.

Market Risk

ERFL faces the usual market risks on the liabilities as
well as assets side. In order to monitor such market
risk, a comprehensive set of reports and limits has
been put in place that track positions, value at risk
and duration of assets. The risk framework ensures
that the risks are monitored and necessary timely
action is taken for every single instance of breach, in
case they occur.

Additionally, the asset liability mismatch and
collateral margins are regularly assessed. Liquidity
requirements are closely monitored and necessary
care is taken to maintain sufficient liquidity cushion
for maturing liabilities and for any unforeseen
requirements. We also ensure diversification in
source of borrowing to reduce dependence on a
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single source. We also pro-actively modify our
liabilities profile in sync with the changing assets
profile to ensure that we do not carry any material
asset liability mismatch.

Operational Risk

Operational risk framework of ERFL is designed to
balance and check operational risk at key
manifestation points. In addition to defining new
processes, we constantly review all critical processes
to proactively identify weak controls and strengthen
the same.

All of the above will also help us in ensuring our
compliance with Companies Act 2013 requirement of
“adequate internal financial controls system and
operating effectiveness of such controls”.

Fraud Risk

Business environment, increasing complexities and
sophistication of technology makes us vulnerable to
both internal & external fraud risks. At Edelweiss
Group level we have defined and implemented an
anti-fraud framework which lays emphasis on
proactive reporting & early detection of incidents and
which is also followed by us. Trainings & campaigns
ensure that Edelites are cognizant of this risk. More
specifically, for ERFL, due diligence on borrower’s
income, KYC and title reports is carried out strictly as
per laid down policy to ensure frauds are avoided.

Our paranoia about risk management has helped us
to steer though environmental stress in recent times
without a major impact.

Edelweiss Group has institutionalised a strong
compliance culture across all the business entities
recognising that transparency and trust amongst all
its stakeholders can be achieved only through this.
We believe Compliance is the cornerstone of good
corporate citizenship.
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The internal controls of Edelweiss are commensurate
with the business requirements, its scale of operation
and applicable statutes to ensure orderly and
efficient conduct of business. These controls have
been designed to ensure assurance with regard to
maintaining proper accounting controls,
substantiation of financial statement and adherence
to IND AS requirements, safeguarding of resources,
prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
ensuring operating effectiveness, reliability of
financial reporting, compliance with applicable
regulations and relevant matters covered under
section 134 (5) (e) of the Companies Act 2013.

Internal Audit

Internal Auditors at ERFL follow Standards on Internal
Audit along with guidelines issued by regulators and
ensures compliance with section 138 of the
Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 13 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended and
notified from time to time. The Internal Audit
function operates under the supervision of the Audit
Committee of the Board.

Edelweiss’s biggest strength has always been its
people. They are always at the core of all designs,
initiatives and programs in creating better experience
through their life cycle of hiring, engagement,
development.

Edelweiss Group is a cross-cultural mosaic and our
strength lies in our diversity everywhere, within
teams and across the organisation. Our diversity
makes us stronger by bringing in fresh ideas,
perspectives, experiences and fostering a truly
collaborative workplace. The sense of ownership
each one of us has displayed over the years is a
testament to the culture of entrepreneurship we
have tried to foster in Edelweiss. We share the
Edelweiss group HR philosophy.

Highlights of our HR initiatives in FY20 are as under:
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e We ended FY20 with a lower headcount of xx
1140, down from 1,140 as of March 31, 2019
to control costs in the challenging business
environment of FY20.

e As growth comes back gradually in the New
Normal of post COVID-19 scenario, we will
be in a position to meet the challenges of
increasing scale and complexity of our
business as well as future business growth.

A significant component of our value based culture is
our commitment to acknowledge and appreciate
efforts of our employees through recognition
programs that honor exemplary risk management,
centricity, people
development, technology and innovation.

collaboration, customer

Taking care of our people with a framework that is
fair, collaborative, compliant and responsive,
Edelweiss represents a winning combination of
people, opportunities and development.

People Practices during COVID-19 Pandemic

At the start of 2020, COVID-19 Pandemic came with
specific challenges and a New Normal in the way of
working. Our advanced planning and unique
approaches helped us to address it promptly.

Employee safety being of utmost importance in this
crisis, almost all critical staff were enabled to work
from home with the help of technology. It further
enabled employees to maintain their productivity to
support business continuity, service internal and
external stakeholders and customers.

Edelweiss culture, which is best described by the way
we function - a certain sense of unity in all the
diversity. It shone brightly during this crisis with
demonstration of high levels of adaptability,
resilience, ownership and commitment to serve the
need of customers.

Building on the foundation laid by the platform
thinking approach, Edelweiss Group has advanced its
digital transformation journey by:
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e adopting the cloud for high availability, changing times, Edelweiss Group has implemented
scalability and resiliency multi-layered security solutions across all layers, viz.,

e redesigning the network topology to enable data, application, endpoint and network, with a
secure access of both on-premises and cloud special focus on cloud security which we at ERFL
applications from anywhere share.

e embracing an Application Program Interface
(API) first approach for secure exchange of
data both within and outside Edelweiss

e modernizing the workplace by deploying an

integrated collaboration suite . .
& At Edelweiss, customers are at the heart of everything

o we do and Customer Experience (CX) is not just
All these initiatives have actually turned out be a

blessing in disguise in the Covid-19 Lockdown
situation because almost 100% of our critical

restricted to service delivery but regarded as a key
pillar of business success.

employees are enabled to work from home We at
ERFL share the IT Infrastructure, practices and policies
of Edelweiss Group.

We have evolved our CX framework across Edelweiss
from a problem-solving based approach to a more
proactive stance, by aligning efforts across business
. . units to a shared set of values. We call this the
Information Security ASSURED framework which is now an integral part of
our CX strategy across Edelweiss. Another key
initiative this year has been the implementation of

digitisation of feedback strategy for the Group. This

Emerging technologies and digitalization bring along
new challenges and exposes organizations to new
risks as data no longer resides within the traditional . .
) ) ) ) has been done by mapping the customer journeys

network boundaries. Cyber risk landscape is changing . . . .
) across businesses and identifying the key, impactful

fast and attacks are becoming more frequent, severe .
touchpoints for the customer. We have adopted the

and systemic. To safeguard ourselves in these .
same strategy in our company too.

3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3K 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k kK k Kk kk ok kk

Cautionary Statement
Statements made in this Annual Report may contain certain forward looking statements, which are tentative, based

on various assumptions on the Edelweiss Group's and ERFL’s present and future business strategies and the
environment in which we operate. Actual results may differ substantially or materially from those expressed or
implied due to risks and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties include the effect of economic and political
conditions in India and internationally, volatility in interest rates and in the securities market, new regulations and
Government policies that may impact the Company's businesses as well as the ability to implement its strategies. The
information contained herein is as of the date referenced and the Company does not undertake any obligation to
update these statements. The Company has obtained all market data and other information from sources believed
to be reliable or its internal estimates, although its accuracy or completeness cannot be guaranteed. The discussion
relating to business wise financial performance, balance sheet, asset books of the Company and industry data herein

is reclassified/reqrouped based on Management estimates and may not directly correspond to published data. The

numbers have also been rounded off in the interest of easier understanding. Numbers have been re-casted, wherever
required. Prior period figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary. FY19 and FY20 numbers are as
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per IndAS and rest all are as per IGAAP. All information in this discussion has been prepared solely by the company
and has not been independently verified by anyone else.

ok e ok ok ok ok ok A ok ok ok ok ok ok K ok ok ok K ok

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Date: July 3, 2020

Mitul Bhagvandas Shah Shilpa Gattani
Place: Mumbai . .

Director Director

DIN: 07122551 DIN: 05124763

11|Page



Edelweiss

Ideas create, values protect

Annexure - I1I

Remuneration Policy
Objective

The Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') requires a Company to frame policy for determining the
remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and other
employees.

While appointing the Directors, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, considers
qualification, positive attributes, areas of expertise and number of Directorships in other
companies and such other factors as it may deem fit. The Board considers the Committee's
recommendation, and takes appropriate action.

The objective of the Remuneration Policy (the Policy) of the Company is to provide a
framework for the remuneration of the Independent Directors, Non-executive Directors,
Managing Director/Executive Directors, KMPs, and other Senior level employees of the
Company.

The objective of this Policy is to ensure that:

e the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain talent required to run the company successfully;

e relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks; and

e remuneration to the Directors, KMPs and senior management comprises a balance of
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

Remuneration of the Independent Directors & Non- executive Directors

* The Independent Directors & Non-executive Directors are eligible for sitting fees for
attending the meetings of the Board and the Committees thereof.

* The Independent Directors & Non-executive Directors are also eligible fur
commission, subject to limits prescribed under the Act and the Rules framed there
under.

* The Independent Directors are not eligible for stock options.

* The Non-executive Directors (other than promoter Directors) shall be eligible for
stock options.

Remuneration of the Managing Director & Executive Directors

* The remuneration of the Managing Director /Executive Directors is recommended
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee ('NRC') to the Board. Based on the
recommendations of the NRC, the Board determines and approves the remuneration
of the Managing Director/Executive Directors, subject to necessary approvals, if any.

* The remuneration paid to the Managing Director/Executive Directors is within the
limits prescribed under the Act and approved by the shareholders of the Company.

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490

Registered Office : Tower 3, Wing * B’, Kohinoor City Mall , Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla (west), Mumbai - 400070,
Maharashtra; ) +91 22 4272 2200

Corporate Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098, Maharashtra ) +91 22 4009 4400 Fax: +91 22 4019
4925 www.edelweissretailfin.com
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The remuneration structure includes fixed salary, perquisites, bonus, other benefits
and allowances and contribution to Funds, etc.

* The Executive Directors (other than the promoter Directors) shall be eligible for stock
options.

Remuneration of the KMP (other than Executive Directors) and Senior level employees

* The key components of remuneration package of the KMP (other than Executive
Directors) and Senior level employees shall comprise of fixed salary, perquisites,
annual bonus, other benefits and allowances and contribution to Funds, etc.

* They shall be eligible for stock options.

Policy Review

* The Policy may be amended as may be necessary.
* The NRC shall implement the Policy and may issue such guidelines, procedures etc.
as it may deem fit.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Date: July 3, 2020

Place: Mumbai
Sd/- Sd/-
Mitul Bhagvandas Shah  Shilpa Gattani
Director Director

DIN: 07122551 DIN: 05124763
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Mabharashtra; ) +91 22 4272 2200
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Annexure II1

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for the financial year 2019-20

[Pursuant to clause (0) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act,2013 and Rule 9 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to
be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

To leverage the capacity and capital to equip and enable the social sector achieve the greatest impact
on the lives of the poor in India.

The CSR Policy of the Company is uploaded on the website www.edelweissretailfin.com

The Composition of the CSR Committee is as under:-

*Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar - Independent Director
Mr. Mitul Bhagvandas Shah - Independent Director
$Mr. K. Siddharth - Non Executive Director
#Ms. Shilpa Gattani - Non-Executive Director

(*appointed w.e.f. April 13, 2020)
(*resigned w.e.f. May 15, 2020)
(#appointed w.e.f. February 6, 2020)

Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: Rs. 527.86 million.

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above): Rs. 10.56 million.

Details of CSR spent during the financial year:
(a) Total amount spent for the financial year: Nil.

(b) Amount unspent, if any: Rs. 10.56 million.



http://www.edelweissretailfin.com/

(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

(R in million)

1| 2 3 4 5 6 | 7 8
S. CSR project or Sector in which | Projects or Amount Amount spent on the Cumulative | Amount
No. | activity identified | the project is programs outlay projects or programs expenditure | spent:
covered (budget) up to the Direct or
project or reporting through
programs period implementi
wise ng agency*
(1) Local area or Sub - heads
other
(2) Specify the (1) Direct (2)
State and district expenditure | Overheads:

where projects or
programs was
undertaken

on projects
or programs

6.

In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or any part thereof, the
company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board Report-

The Company is in the process of identifying suitable projects and the unspent amount will be utilised in the next financial year.




7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee -
The implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Sd/ Sd/
Mitul Bhagvandas Shah Shilpa Gattani
Director Director
Date: July 3, 2020 DIN: 07122551 DIN: 05124763

Place: Mumbai
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Annexure IV
Form AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto:

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Not Applicable

Sr. | Name(s) of the related party and Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ Duration of Salient terms | Date of | Amount
No | nature of relationship transactions the contracts/ | of the contracts | approva | paid as
arrangement | or 1 by the | advance
s/ arrangements | Board s, if any
transactions | or transactions
including the
value, if any
(Rupees in
Millions)
1 Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services | Loans taken from One Year NIL
Limited 531.30
2 Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services | Loans repaid to One Year NIL
Limited 695.60
3 | Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited | Short term loans given to One Year NIL
2,000.00
4 ECL Finance Limited Short term loans given to One Year NIL
1,190.00
5 Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services | Short term loans given to One Year NIL
Limited 2,150.00

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490

Registered Office : Tower 3, Wing * B’, Kohinoor City Mall , Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla (west), Mumbai — 400070, Maharashtra; @ +91 22 4272 2200
Corporate Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.S.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098, Maharashtra @ +91 22 4009 4400 Fax: +91 22 4019 4925 www.edelweissretailfin.com
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6 Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited | Short term loans repaid by One Year NIL
1,190.00
7 | ECL Finance Limited Short term loans repaid by One Year NIL
1,350.00
8 Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services | Securities Purchase One Time NIL
Limited 141.55
9 ECL Finance Limited Bonds sold to One Time NIL
2,323.50
10 | Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Loan sale to ARC One Time NIL
Company Limited 590.40
11 | ECL Finance Limited Non convertible debentures (Loans) One Time NIL
purchased from 3,999.43
12 | Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited | Margin placed On going NIL
1,840.93
13 | Edelweiss Securities Limited Margin placed On going NIL
3.12
14 | Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited | Margin withdrawn On going NIL
1,841.17
15 | Edelweiss Securities Limited Margin withdrawn On going NIL
3.12
16 | Edelweiss Securities Limited Amount paid to broker for Cash On going NIL
segment 729.24
17 | Edelweiss Securities Limited Amount Received from broker for On going NIL
Cash segment 702.25
18 | ECL Finance Limited Shared premises cost received from One Year NIL
62.13
19 | Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited | Shared premises cost received from One Year NIL
20.01
20 | Edelweiss General Insurance Shared premises cost received from One Year NIL
Company Limited 0.02

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490
Registered Office : Tower 3, Wing * B’, Kohinoor City Mall , Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla (west), Mumbai — 400070,
Corporate Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.S.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098, Maharashtra @ +91 22 4009 4400 Fax: +91 22 4019 4925 www.edelweissretailfin.com

Maharashtra; @ +91 22 4272 2200
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21 | Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Shared premises cost received from One Year NIL
Company Limited 0.54
22 | Edelweiss Financial Services Limited | Shared premises cost received from One Year NIL
0.12
23 | Edelweiss Broking Limited Shared premises cost received from One Year NIL
0.96
24 | Edelweiss Asset Management Limited | Shared premises cost received from One Year NIL
0.11
25 | Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited | Interest income on loan to One Year NIL
112.07
26 | ECL Finance Limited Interest income on loan to One Year NIL
56.93
27 | Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services | Interest income on loan to One Year NIL
Limited 6.13
28 | Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited | Interest income on margin One Year NIL
10.09
29 | Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited Arranger Fee received from One Year NIL
106.68
30 | Edelweiss Securities Limited Shared premises cost paid One Year NIL
0.28
31 | Ecap Equities Limited Shared premises cost paid One Year NIL
1.02
32 | Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services | Shared premises cost paid One Year NIL
Limited 1.54
33 | Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited | Shared premises cost paid One Year NIL
0.08
34 | Edelweiss Financial Services Limited | Cost reimbursement paid to One Year NIL
1.89
35 | Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services | Cost reimbursement paid to One Year NIL
Limited 2.02

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490
Registered Office : Tower 3, Wing * B’, Kohinoor City Mall , Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla (west), Mumbai — 400070,
Corporate Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.S.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098, Maharashtra @ +91 22 4009 4400 Fax: +91 22 4019 4925 www.edelweissretailfin.com
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36 | Ecap Equities Limited Cost reimbursement paid to One Year NIL
0.00

37 | Edelweiss Securities Limited Cost reimbursement paid to One Year NIL
0.05

38 | ECL Finance Limited Cost reimbursement paid to One Year NIL
0.31

39 | Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Management Fees paid to One Year NIL
Company Limited 7.31

40 | Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services | Interest paid on loan from One Year NIL
Limited 1.26

41 | Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services | Interest paid on Non convertible One Year NIL
Limited debentures 2.71

42 | Edelweiss Finance & Investments Interest paid on Non convertible One Year NIL
Limited debentures 0.00

43 | Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited Interest paid on Non convertible One Year NIL
debentures 6.39

44 | ECL Finance Limited Interest paid on Non convertible One Year NIL
debentures 1.02

45 | ECL Finance Limited Interest Income on Non convertible One Year NIL
Debentures 2.84

46 | Edelweiss Securities Limited Brokerage paid One Year NIL
1.30

47 | Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited | Clearing charges One Year NIL
2.63

48 | Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services | Enterprise Service charge paid to One Year NIL
Limited 0.24

49 | Edelweiss Financial Services Limited | Enterprise Service charge paid to One Year NIL
0.02

50 | Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited | Service Fee paid to One Year NIL
0.03

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490

Registered Office : Tower 3, Wing * B’, Kohinoor City Mall , Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla (west), Mumbai — 400070,
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51 | Edelweiss Financial Services Limited | ESOP cost reimbursement One Year NIL
0.26

52 | Edelweiss Financial Services Limited | Rating support fees paid to One Year NIL
0.14

53 | Mr. Mitul Bhagvandas Shah Director Sitting fees One Year NIL
0.28

54 | Mr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah Director Sitting fees One Year NIL
0.26

55 | Mr. Vineet Mahajan Remuneration paid to One Year NIL
9.21

56 | Ms. Kirti Sawant Remuneration paid to One Year NIL
2.90

57 | Ms. Sudipta Majumdar Remuneration paid to One Year NIL
0.45

58 | Mr. Amit Pandey Remuneration paid to One Year NIL
0.29

59 | ECL Finance Limited Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment | One Time NIL
0.18

60 | Edelweiss Broking Limited Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment | One Time NIL
0.03

61 | Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited | Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment | One Time NIL
0.00

62 | Edelweiss General Insurance Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment | One Time NIL
Company Limited 0.02

63 | Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment | One Time NIL
0.05

64 | Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited | Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment | One Time NIL
0.01

65 | Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services | Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment | One Time NIL
Limited 0.04

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490
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66 | Edelweiss Securities Limited Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment | One Time NIL
0.03
67 | Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services | Purchase of Property, plant and One Time NIL
Limited equipment 0.02
68 | Edelweiss Securities Limited Purchase of Property, plant and One Time NIL
equipment 0.00
69 | ECL Finance Limited Purchase of Property, plant and One Time NIL
equipment 0.04
70 | Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services | Short term borrowing from On going NIL
Limited 0.00
71 | Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited | Short Term loan given to One Year NIL
13.00
72 | ECL Finance Limited Short Term loan given to One Year NIL
35.00
73 | Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services | Short Term loan given to One Year NIL
Limited 2,150.00
74 | Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited Interest accrued on short term loan One Year NIL
given to 0.11
75 | ECL Finance Limited Interest accrued on short term loan given | One Year NIL
to 13.51
76 | Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services | Interest accrued on short term loan given | One Year NIL
Limited to 5.52
77 | Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services | Non convertible debentures (at face One Time NIL
Limited value) held by 17.99
78 | Edelweiss Finance & Investments Non convertible debentures (at face One Time NIL
Limited value) held by 0.05
79 | ECL Finance Limited Non convertible debentures (at face One Time NIL
value) held by 29.07
80 | Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited Subordinated debenture (at face One Time NIL
value) held by 71.00
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81 | ECL Finance Limited Perpetual debentures (at face value) One Time NIL
held in 210.00
82 | Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services | Interest accrued on Non convertible One Year NIL
Limited debentures 0.04
83 | ECL Finance Limited Interest accrued on Non convertible One Year NIL
debentures 0.11
84 | Edelweiss Finance and Investments Interest accrued on Non convertible One Year NIL
Ltd debentures 0.00
85 | Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited Interest accrued on subordinated One Year NIL
debentures held by 1.83
86 | ECL Finance Limited Interest accrued on Perpetual One Year NIL
debentures held in 19.35
87 | Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited | Trade Payables On going NIL
0.17
88 | Edelweiss Financial Services Limited | Trade Payables On going NIL
0.27
89 | Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services | Trade Payables On going NIL
Limited 0.32
90 | ECL Finance Limited Trade Payables On going NIL
0.77
91 | Edelweiss Securities Limited Trade Payables On going NIL
0.51
92 | Edelweiss Broking Limited Trade Payables On going NIL
0.02
93 | Ecap Equities Limited Trade Payables On going NIL
0.12
94 | Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited | Trade Payables On going NIL
0.01
95 | Edelweiss Financial Services Limited | Other payable On going NIL
2.40
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96 | ECL Finance Limited Trade Receivables On going NIL
7.30
97 | Edelweiss Broking Limited Trade Receivables On going NIL
0.14
98 | Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services | Trade Receivables On going NIL
Limited 0.27
99 | Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited | Trade Receivables On going NIL
2.15
100 | Edelweiss Financial Services Limited | Trade Receivables On going NIL
0.01
101 | Edelweiss Finance and Investments Trade Receivables On going NIL
Limited 0.01
102 | Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Trade Receivables On going NIL
Company Limited 0.24
103 | Edelweiss General Insurance Trade Receivables On going NIL
Company Limited 0.02
104 | Edelweiss Asset Management Limited | Trade Receivables On going NIL
0.02
105 | Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited | Trade Receivables On going NIL
1.01
106 | Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services | Other receivable On going NIL
Limited 74.40
107 | Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited | Margin payable On going NIL
0.24
As part of fund based activities, intergroup company loans and advances activities undertaken are generally in the nature of revolving
demand loans. Such loans and advances, voluminous in nature, are carried on at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business.
Pursuant to Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures, maximum amount of loans given and repaid are disclosed above as in the view of
the management it provides meaningful reflection of such related party transactions on the financial statements. Interest income and
expenses on such loans and advances are disclosed on the basis of full amounts of such loans and advances given and repaid.
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Information relating to remuneration paid to key managerial person mentioned above excludes provision made for gratuity, leave
encashment, bonus and deferred bonus which are provided for group of employees on an overall basis. These are included on cash
basis. The variable compensation included herein is on cash basis.

The above list contain name of only those related parties with whom the Company has undertaken transactions for the year ended 31
March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Mitul Bhagvandas Shah Shilpa Gattani
Director Director

DIN: 07122551 DIN: 05124763

Date: July 3, 2020
Place: Mumbai
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SANJAY GROVER & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

B-88, 1°' Floor, Defence Colony, New Delhi - 110 024
Tel. : (011) 4679 0000, Fax : (011) 4679 0012
e-mail : contact@cssanjaygrover.in
website : www.cssanjaygrover.in

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH. 2020

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies ~
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
(CIN: U67120MH1997PLC285490)
Tower 3, Wing B, Kohinoor City Mall,
Kohinoor City, Kirol Road,

Kurla(W), Mumbai — 400070

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
(hereinafter called “the Company") whose debt securities are listed. Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

We report that-

a) Maintenance of secretarial records are the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

b) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed, provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

¢) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statements of
the Company.

d) Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the
compliances of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

e) The compliance of the provisions of the corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations and standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

f) " The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.
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g) The auditor adhered to best professional standards and practices as could be possible
while carrying out audit during the lock-down conditions due to Covid-19. The Company
made due efforts to make available the relevant records and documents which were
verified through online means to conduct and complete the audit in the aforesaid lock-
down conditions.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of-
Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on 31* March, 2020 (“Audit Period”) complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2020
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA') and the rules made there
under,

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings, where applicable;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with clients;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;'

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015; (SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015)

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standard
on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings
(5S-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India which needs to be further
strengthened by the Company.

E‘@iﬁ\gﬁhares of the Company are not listed on any recognised stock exchanges and only debt securities are
. \téq%g SE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.
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During the Audit Period, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, to the extent applicable, as mentioned above, except that -

> the vacancy arose consequent to resignation of Women Director w.e.f. September 16,
2019, was filled on February 06, 2020.

Some of the Regulations contained in the Articles of Associations of the Company are in
contradiction with the provisions of the Act, hence, these regulations being ultra-vires in
terms of Section 6 of the Act, need to be amended.

Y

(vi) The Company being a Non-Banking Financing Company registered under Section 45-1A
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 under the category of loan company (without
acceptance of public Deposits). As informed by the management, following are the laws
which are specifically applicable on the Company:

» The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
> Various circulars, guidelines and regulation made under the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

We have checked the Compliance Management System of the Company to obtain
reasonable assurance about the adequacy of systems in place to ensure compliance of
specifically applicable laws and this verification was done on test basis. We believe that the
audit evidence which we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
explanations given to us, we believe that the Compliance Management System of the
company seems adequate to ensure compliance of laws specifically applicable to it.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with
proper balance of Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the Board of Directors that
took place during the audit period were carried out in compliance with the provisions of
the Act except during the period between 14" January, 2020 upto 05" February, 2020
where there were only two directors of the Board of the Company. Further, the
Company, being a wholly owned subsidiary is not required to appoint
independent directors under section 149 as well as not required to constitute Audit
committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee under section 177 & 178 of the
Act.

Advance notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance of the meeting and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Board decisions are carried out with unanimous consent and therefore, no dissenting
views were required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period,
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> the members at their Extraordinary general meeting held on 25" September, 2019
passed an Special resolution for issue of Debentures on Private Placement basis within
the overall borrowing limits of Rs. 4,500 Crores (Four Thousand Five Hundred Crores
only).

» As per directors report as on 31.03.2019, The Company has filed an application before
the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal Mumbai Bench on March 26, 2019, under
Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 for merger of the Company with ECL
Finance Limited. The Company has also filed an application with the Reserve Bank of
India seeking its prior approval for the proposed merger. Based on the explanation™
received from the Management, there is no further update in respect of said application.

For Sanjay Grover & Associates
Company Secretaries

Yo/ Firm Registration No.: P2001DE052900
C}th/nder Paul Kharbanda
New Delhi Partner

July 03, 2020 FCS No.: F2365
CP No.: 22192
UDIN: FO002365B000411587




ANNEXURE VI

Disclosure pursuant to the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014

The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median employee’s remuneration and
other details in terms of sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, is as under:

No. |Disclosure Disclosure Details
Requirement
1 Ratio of the remuneration NA

of each director to the
median remuneration of

the employees of the
Company for the financial
year
2 Percentage increase in Directors / KMP’s  [Title % increase
remuneration of each .
director, Chief Financial remuneration
Officer, Chief Executive
Officer, Company Secretary ‘
or Manager, if any, in the MS-. Sudipta Company Secretary
financial year Majumdar -6.46 %
Mr. Amit Company Secretary | NA
Pandey
Ms. Kirti Chief Financial
Sawant Officer NA
Mr. Vineet Chief Executive
Mahajan Officer '3082%

3 Percentage increase in the | 27.10% The employees who joined the Company in FY
median remuneration of  [2019-20 are not considered for this purpose.
employees in the financial

year
4 Number of permanent There were 40 permanent employees on the rolls of the
employees on the rolls of |Company as on March 31, 2020.
Company at the end of the

year




Average percentile increase
already made in the
salaries of employees other
than the managerial
personnel in the last
financial year and its
comparison with the
percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration
and justification thereof
and point out if there are
any exceptional
circumstances for increase
in the managerial
remuneration

Average increase for employees other than managerial
personnel who were in employment during FY 18-19 and
FY 19-20 the average increase is 54.4%.

Average increase for managerial personnel is -53.4%.

Affirmations that the
remuneration is as per the
remuneration policy of the
Company

It is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the
Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITCR'S REPORT

To the Members of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Indian Accounting Standard (“Ind AS") Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (“the
Company"), which comprises the Balance sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act")
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, its profit including other
comprehensive income its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SAs"),
as specified under section 143(10} of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the 'Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS
financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter - Assessment of COVID 19 Impact

We draw attention to Note 6.1 to the Financial Statement, which describes the economic and social disruption
as a result of COVID-19 pandemic of the Company's business and financial metrics including the Company's
estimates of impairment of loans to customers, investments which are highly dependent on uncertain future
developments.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in cur professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2020. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
We have fuifilled the responsihilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of

the Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, inciuding the procedures performed to

5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP idenatity No. AAB-4294
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street. Block 'B', 3rd Floor, Kolkatz-700 06
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of financial instruments {expected credit losses)

(as described in note 48.1 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements)

ind AS 108: Financial Instruments (“Ind AS 108")
requires the Company to provide for impairment of
its Loan & Advances and Investment receivables
("Financial Instruments”) using the Expected Credit
Losses ("ECL") approach. ECL involves an estimation
of probability-weighted loss on Financial Instruments
over their life, considering reasonable and
supportable information about past events, current
conditions, and forecasts of future economic
conditions which could impact the credit quality of
the Company's loans and advances.

In the process, a significant degree of judgement has

been applied by the management for:

a) Defining qualitative/ quantitative thresholds for
‘significant increase in credit risk’ ("SICR") and
‘default’.

b) Determining effect of less frequent past events
on future probability of default.

¢} Grouping of borrowers based on homogeneity by
using appropriate statistical techniques;

d} Determining macro-economic factors impacting
credit quality of receivables;

impact of COVID-19

The spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted many
economies around the globe. Businesses are being
forced to cease or limit operations for long or
indefinite periods of time. Measures taken to contain
the spread of the virus, including travel bans,
quarantines, social distancing, and closures of non-
essential services have triggered significant
disruptions to businesses, resulting in an economic
slowdown and economic uncertainties. Measures
have also been taken by the Government and the
Reserve Bank to ease the burden on businesses from
hardship.

Pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India circular dated
March 27, 2020 and May 23, 2020 ("RBI Circulars”}
allowing lending institutions to offer moratorium to
borrowers on payment of instalments falling due
between March 1, 2020 and August 31, 2020, the
Company has extended moratorium to its borrowers
in accordance with its Board approved policy as
described in Note 6.1.

In management’s view and considering the guidance
provided by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ('ICAI'), providing moratorium to borrowers at a
mass scale, based on RBI directives, by itself is not
considered to result ina SICR for such borrowers. The
Company has recorded a management overlay as
part of its ECL, to reflect among other things an
increased risk of deterioration in macro-economic
: {actors caused by COVID-19 pandemic. Given the
umque nature and scale of the economic impact of
thispandemic, its timing being close to the year-end,

Our audit procedures included considering the
Company's accounting policies for impairment of
Financial Instruments and assessing compliance
with the policies in terms of Ind AS 109:
Financial Instruments.

Read the Company’'s policy with respect to
moratorium pursuant to the RBI Circular and
tested the implementation of such policy on a
sample basis.

Evaluated the reasonableness of the
management estimates by understanding the
process of ECL estimation and related
assumptions and tested the controls around data
extraction and validation.

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based
on their past-due status to check compliance
with requirement of ind AS T08. Tested a sample
of performing (stage 1) loans to assess whether
any SICR or loss indicators were present
requiring them to be classified under stage 2 or
3.

Assessed the additional considerations applied
by the management for staging of loans as SICR
or default categories in view of Company's policy
oh moratarium,

Tested the ECL model, including assumptions
and underlying computation. Tested the input
data used for determining the PD and LGD rates
and agreed the data with the underlying books of
accounts and records.

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation
of ECL provision performed by the Company.

Read and assessed the disclosures included in
the Ind AS financial statements in respect of
expected credit losses with the requirements of
Ind AS 107 and 108,
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and no reliable data being available regarding the
impact of various regulatory packages, the
macroeconomic overlay estimate is based on various
highly uncertain and unobservabie factors. In
accordance with the guidance in ind AS 109, the
macroeconomic overlay estimate takes into account
reasonably and supportabie information without
incurring significant cost. The actual credit losses
could be significantly different than the ECL
estimates prepared by the Company depending upon
the impact and duraticn of the pandemic and various
regulatory and policy measures announced by the
Government.

in view of the high degree of management’s
judgement involved in estimation of ECL,
accentuated by the COVID-19 pandemic, it is a key
audit matter.

Information Technology

The financial accounting and reporting systems of the
Company are fundamentally reliant on T systems and
IT controls to process significant transaction
volumes. Automated accounting procedures and IT
environment controls, which inciude 1T governance,
general IT controls over program development and
changes, access to programs and data and IT
operations, are required to be designed and to
operate effectively to ensure accurate financial
reporting.

Therefore, due to the pervasive nature and
complexity of the IT environment, the assessment of
the general IT controls and the application controls
specific to the accounting and preparation of the
financial information is considered to be a key audit
matter.

We performed the following procedures, assisted by
specialized IT auditors on the IT infrastructure and
applications relevant to financial reporting:

+  Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
IT access contrels over the information systems
that are critical to financial reporting.

» Tested IT general controls (logical access,
changes management and aspects of |IT
operational controls). This included testing that
requests for access to systems were
appropriately reviewed and authorized.

¢ Tested the Company's periodic review of access
rights. We inspected requests of changes to
systems for appropriate approval and
authorization.

* In addition to the above, we tested the design
and operating effectiveness of certain
automated and IT dependent manual controls
that were considered as key interna! controls
over financial reporting.

« Where deficiencies were identified, we tested
compensating controls or performed alternate
procedures.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Directors Report but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our
auditor’'s report thereon.

~.0ur opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
- form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
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and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5} of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going

concern basis of accounting urtless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasenable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
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on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures In the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2020
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 {"the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure 1" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;

{c} TheBalance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act;

()  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in "Annexure 2" to this report;

{g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2020 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 187 read with
Schedule V to the Act;
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

I. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

[iB The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any materiail foreseeable losses;

ifi. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For $.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

chw‘_—_‘g_/' WM

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership Number: 102102

UDIN: 20102102AAAAHFS672

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: July 3, 2020
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Annexure 1 referred to under the heading "Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report
of even date

Re: Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited ("the Company”)

(iHa)

(iX(b)

(iXc)

(i

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii}(a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
location of fixed assets.

Fixed assets have heen physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immovable
properties included in property, plant and equipment/ fixed assets are held in the name of the Company.

The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the reguirements under
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(iii)(a), {b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186
of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and
the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not in the business of sale of any goods.
Therefore, in our opinion, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Crder are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities, undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, income-tax, and other statutory dues applicable to it, except in case of goods and
services tax for the month of March 2020 where the Company has deposited the goods and services
tax, without payment of late fee and interest, after the original due date but within the timelines
prescribed and in accordance with by circular no 136/06/2020-GST dated April 3, 2020 issued
by Central Board of Indirect Taxes and Customs. The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess are not applicable to the Company.

(vii){b} According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of

{vii){c)

provident fund, income-tax, goods and services tax and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. The provisions
relating to employees’ state insurance, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess are
not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income-tax, goods and
service tax, service tax, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of dispute.
The provision relating to employee's state insurance, sales tax, custom duty, excise duty and value
added tax are currently not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or
government or dues to debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised
any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer. Further, money raised by the Company
by way of non-convertible debentures and term loans were applied for the purpose for which those were
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x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

For S.R.

raised, though idle/ surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilization were gainfully
invested in liquid assets payable on demand.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purposes of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanation given by the management, the managerial remuneration
has been paid in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xi} of the
order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the refated
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under
clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section
192 of Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has registered
as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 3071003E/E300005

1\‘(0 3

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102

UDIN: 20102102AAAAHF9672

' Place: Mumbai
Date: July 3, 2020
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’'s Responsibility for internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of [ndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internai
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
apinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refiect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accerdance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
. anagement and dtrectors of the company, and (3) provrde reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tlmely
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these
Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial contrals over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur arid not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinicn, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Al Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

s

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership Number: 102102

I\VL’-'-V

UBDIN: 20102102AAAAHFO6T2

Place of Sighature: Mumbai
Date: July 3, 2020




Edclweiss Retail Finance Limited
Balance Sheet

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

ASSETS

Financial asscts

(2} Cash and cash equivalents

(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(c) Stock in trade

{d) Trade receivables

{e) Loans

() Investments

(g) Other financial assets

Non-financial assets

(a) Current tax assets (net}

{b) Deferred tax assets (net)

(c) Property, plant and equipment

{d) Intangible assets under development
{e) Other intangible assets

{f) Other non-financial assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities

(a) Trade payables

(b) Debt securities

(c) Borrowings (other than debt securities)
{d) Subordinated liabilities

(e} Other financial liabilities

Non-firancial liabilities

(a) Current tax liabilities (net)
(b} Provisions

(c) Other non-financial liabilities

Equity
(a) Equity share capitai
(b} Other equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For S. R. Batlibei & Co. LLP
Al Firm Registration Number : 301003E/ E300003
hartered Accountants

l\w: T @::5“%

per Shirawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No. 102102

Asat Asat

Note March 31, 2026 March 31, 2019

8 2,681.42 3,238.12

g 302.12 2,169.93
10 142.02 -

11 12.47 24.77

12 15,643.99 18,616.42
13 471.23 -

14 158.77 90.11

19,412.02 24,139.35

15 164.63 64,27

16 108.45 79.87

17 144.89 49.54

8.00 6.66

18 7.96 4.96

19 53.86 126.72

479.19 332.02

19,891.21 24,471.37

20 68.69 268.37

21 4,939.06 4.,909.92

22 7.499.12 12,461.50

23 2,089.06 2,060.80

24 629.11 2.46

15,225.04 19,703.035

25 23.80 105.05

26 1.33 2.73

27 10.65 28.52

35.78 136.30

28 429.50 429.50

29 4,200.89 4,202.52

4,630.39 4,632.02

19,891.21 24,471.37

it

Mehernosh Tata

Chief Executive Officer

hilpa Gittani
Director
DIN: 05124763

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelvweiss Retail Finance Limited

L

Sunil Phatarphekar

Director
DEN: 00005164

L = N fh
§ cs
Place : Mumbai Shailendra Dhupiya Amit Pand
Date : July 3, 2020 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No. A49075



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Revenue from operations
Interest income 30 2.485.42 3,949.82
Fee and commission income 31 221.03 267.42
Net gain on fair value changes 32 168.12 265.87
Total revenue from operations 2,874.57 4,483.11
Other income 33 19.06 1.21
Total revenue 2,893.63 4,484.32
Expenses
Finance costs 34 1,747.39 2,243.95
Impairment on financial instruments 35 731.711 869.17
Employee benefits expense 36 61.48 40.79
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 17&18 74.01 30.78
Other expenses 37 245.62 790.67
Total expenses 2,860.21 3,975.36
Profit before tax 33.42 508.96
Tax expenses:
Current tax 38 44.78 186.52
(1) Current tax 54.77 198.12
(2) Short / {Excess) provision for earlier years 9.99) (11.60)
Deferred tax 383 (22.02) {16.12)
{1) MAT credit entitlement - 56.40
(2) Deferred tax (net) (22.02) (72.52)
Profit for the year 10.66 338.56
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans 42 (0.20) 1.04
Less: Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 383 (0.65) 0.36
to profit or loss
Other Comprehensive Income (0.15) 0.68
Total Comprehensive Income 10.51 339.24
Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 ¢cach):
(1) Basic 40 0.25 7.88
(2) Diluted 0.25 7.88

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

¥or S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Al Firm Registration Number : 301003E/ E300005
artered Accountants

VAR
W
per Shrawan Jalan
Partner

Membership No.l

Place : Muml;a.y

Date : July 3, 2\?

M-D: o

Mehernosh Tata
Chief Executive Officer

Shailendra Dhupiya
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Shilpa Gattani
Birector
DIN: 05124763

Sunil Patarphckar
Director
DIN: 00005164

Amit Pandey
Company Secretary
Membership No. A49075
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Statement of Cash flows
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

A Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax
Adjustments for

Faor the year ended

For the year ended

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment {(refer note 17 & 18)

[mpaiment on financial instruments
[nterest on lease liabilities
Expense on Employee stock option scheme

Loss / (Profit) on sale of Property, plant and equipment

Operating cash flow before working capitai changes
Add 7 (Less): Adfustments for working capital changes

Decrease/{Increase) in Trade receivables
Decrease/{Increase) in stock in trade
Decrease/{Increase) in Loans (net}
Decrease/(Increase) in Other financial assets
Decrease/(Increase) in Investments
Decrease/{Increase) in Other non financial assets
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables

Increase / (Decrease) in Non financial liabilities and provisions

Increase / (Decrease) in Other financial liability

Cash used in operations
Income taxes paid (net)
Net cash used in operating activities -A.

B Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets

Decrease/(Increase) in Intangibles under development

Sale of Property, plant and equipment

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities - B

C Cash flow from financing activities
Increase / (Decrease) in Debt Securities’

Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings other than Debt Securities'

Increase / (Decrease) in Subordinate Debt
Repayment of lease obligation

Net eash generated from financing activities - C

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the vear (refer note 8)
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year (refer note 8)

Operational cash flows from interest
Interest paid
Interest received

CSR contribution to Edel Give Foundation

Notes:

1. Net figures have been reported on account of volume of transactions.

2. For disclosure relating to changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, refer note 39

As per our report of even date attached.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 301003E/ E300005
Chartered Accountanis

l\rcs"’/" s

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner’ '
Membership No. 102102

Place : Mumbai
Date : July 3, 202_0_ )

M-D. A5

Mehernosh Tata
Chief Executive Officer

s

Shailendra Bhupiya
Chief Financial Officer

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
33.42 508.96
74.01 30.78

73171 869.17
12.90 -
- 0.94
4.48 (0.67)
$56.52 1,409.17
12.30 {1135
{142.02) -
2,240.72 13,186.61
1,799.14 (2,169.45)
(471.23) .
72.87 24.39
(199.68) (271.89)
(19.42) (108.38)
505.12 (1,320.53)
4,654.33 10,738.57
{225.83) (173.99)
4,428.50 10,564.58
(14.25) (35.52)
6.66 0.60)
1.85 3.68
(5.74) (32.44)
0.00 (3,006.44)
(4,932.01) {4,501.31)
(47.45) -
(4,979.46) (7.507.75)
(556.70) 3.024.39
3,238.12 213.73
2,681.42 3,238.12
1,725.88 2,344 31
2,190.52 3,931.49
- 2.50

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

O e
Shilpa Gattani

Sunil Phatarphe

Director
DIN: 05124763

Director
DIN: 00005164

mit Pandey
Company Secretary

Membership No, A49075



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

1.

| ]
H

3.

Corporate Information:

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (*ERFL’ or ‘the Company’) a public limited company domiciled and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The Company was originally
incorporated on February 18, 1997 as “Affluent Dealcom Private Limited” which subsequently got converted
to public limited on January 1, 2014 and then the Company’s name changed to “Edelweiss Retail Finance
Limited” with effect from January 6, 2014. The Company is subsidiary of Edelcap Securities Limited. ERFL
is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as a Systemically Important Non Deposit Accepting Non-
Banking Financial Company.

ERFL is primarily engaged in the business of providing loan against property, business loans, loan to real estate
developers and rural finance loans.

Basis of preparation:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
{Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time).

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments
such as, derivative financial instruments, and other financial instruments held for trading, which have been
measured at fair value, The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded
to the nearest million, except when otherwise indicated.

2.1 Presentation of financial statements:

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division III of the
Schedule ITI to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months
after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date {non—current) is
presented in “Note 43-Mafurity Analysis of assets and liabilities™.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only
offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net
basts in all of the following circumstances:

¢ The normal course of business
e The event of default
¢ The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and or its counterparties

Significant accounting policies
3.1 Recognition of Interest income and Dividend income
3.1.1 Effective Interest Rate (EIR):

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all
financial instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate a shorter period to the gross carrying amount of financial instrument.

The EIR is caiculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return
that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence,
it recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and other
characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments penalty interest and charges.
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If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than
credit risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount
of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income.

3.1.2 Interest Income:

3.1.3

3.14

3.1.5.

The company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets other than credit-impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as *Stage 3°, the
Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the amortised cost (net of expected
credit loss) of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired,
the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis,

Penal interest income on delayed EMI / pre EMI is recognised on receipt basis.

Fee and Commission Income

Fee and commission income include fees other than those that are an integral part of EIR. The
Company recognises the fee and commission income in accordance with the terms of the
relevant contracts / agreement and when it is probable that the Company will collect the
consideration.

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised when the Corporation’s right to receive dividend is established
by the reporting date.

Other Income

Other Income represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is
recognised when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.
Other ancillary charges are recognized upon realisation.

3.2 Financial Instruments:

3.2.1

322

Date of recognition:

Financial assets and liabilities with exception of loans and borrowings are initially recognised
on the trade date, i.e. the date the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place. Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the customers’ account. The
Company recognises borrowings when funds are available for utilisation to the Company.

Initial measurement of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

3.2.3 Classification and Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities:

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

» Amortised cost
« Fair value through other comprehensive income [FVOCT)
s Fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL]

The Company measures debt financial assets that meet the following conditions at amortised
cost:

+ the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount ouistanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

« the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.
Financial assets carried at amortised cost {AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in carrying value of
financial assets is recognised in profit and loss account.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in fair
value of financial assets is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
The Company measures all financial assets classified as FVTPL at fair value at each reporting
date. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit and loss account.

3.3 Financial Assets and Liabilities:

3.3.1 Financial assets held for trading:

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased
primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolic of
financial instruments that are managed together, for which there evidence of a recent pattern of
short-term profit is taking, Held-for-trading assets are recorded and measured in the balance
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3.3.2 Debt securities and other borrowed funds:

333

33.4

The Company measures debt issued and other borrowed funds at Amorised cost at each
reporting date. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

Financial Guarantee:

Financial guarantees are contract that requires the Company to make specified payments to
reimburse to holder for loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
it is due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee issued or commitments to provide a loan at below market interest rate are
initially measured at fair value and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the guarantee
or the commitment. Subsequently they are measured at higher of this amortised amount and the
amount of loss allowance.

Loan Commitments:
Undrawn loan commitments are commitmenis under which, the Company is required to provide

a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer over the duration of the commitment. Undrawn
loan commitments are in the scope of the ECL requirements.

3.4 Reclassification of Financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line.
The Company didn’t reclassify any of its financial assets or liabilities in current year and previous year.

3.5 Derecognition of financial Instruments:

351

Derecognition of financial asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive contractual cash flows from the
financial asset have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both
transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either

The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

It retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumed
a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay to third party
under pass through arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights
to receive the cash fiows of a financial asset (the 'original asset’), but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the "eventual recipients'), when all of
the following conditions are met:

¢ The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has
collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with
the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates.

o The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual
recipients.
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The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without
material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for
investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the period between the
collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either;
s The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

¢ The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical
ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability
unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

The Company also derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been
renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset, with the
difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has
not already been recorded.

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification
does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original
EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has
not already been recorded.

3.5.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid, including modified contractual cash flow
recognised as new financial liability, is recognised statement of profit or loss.

3.6 Impairment of financial assets:

The Company records provistons based on expected credit loss model (“ECL”} on all loans, other
financial assets not measured at FVTPL together with undrawn loan commitment and financial guarantee
contracts, in this section all referred to as “Financial instrument”. Equity instruments are not subject to
impairment.

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses, A credit loss is the difference between the cash
flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects
to receive discounted at the original effective interest rate. Because ECL consider the amount and timing
of payments, a credit loss arises even if the entity expects to be paid in full but later than when
contractually due.

Simplified Approach

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment
loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed
default rates over the expected life of the receivables. However, if receivables contain a significant
financing component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by
applying general approach to measure ECL.
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General Approach

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on
the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit fosses
{12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of an evidence
of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default (PD), loss given
default (LGD) (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-locking information. As for the exposure at default (EAD), for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date,
together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date determined
based on historical trend, the Company’s understanding of the specific future financing needs of the
debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

Company categories its financial assets as follows:

Stage 1 Assets:

Stage 1 assets includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, 12-month ECL
(resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognised.

Stage 2 Assets:

Stage 2 Assets includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition For these assets lifetime ECL (resulting from default events possible within 12 months
from reporting date) are recognised.

Stage 3 Assets:
Stage 3 for Assets considered credit-impaired the Company recognises the lifetime ECL for these leans.
The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%,.

Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

The expected credit losses on the loan commitment have been recognised together with the loss
allowance for the financial asset.

The Company’s product offering includes a working capital facilities with a right to Company to cancel
and/or reduce the facilities with one day’s notice. The Company does not limit its exposure to credit
losses to the contractual notice period, but, instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the
Company’s expectations of the customer behaviour, its likelihood of default and the Company’s future
risk mitigation procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling the facilities.
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3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

Collateral Valuation:

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The
collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit /guarantees, real estate,
receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as netting agreements.
Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Company’s balance sheet. However, the fair value
of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It is generally assessed, at a minimum, af inception and re-
assessed on a periodic basis. However, some collateral, for example, securities relating to margin
requirements, is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets  held  as
collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market value are valued
using models.

Collateral Repossessed:

The Company’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for its internal
operations or should be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal operations are transferred to
their relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying value of the original
secured asset. Assets for which selling is determined to be a better option are transferred to assets held
for sale at their fair value (if financial assets) and fair value less cost to sell for non-financial assets at
the repossession date in, line with the Company’s policy.

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or other assets
in its retail portfolio, but engages external agents to recover funds, generally at auction, to settle
outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this practice,
the residential properties under legal repossession processes are not recorded on the balance sheet.

Write-Offs:

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

Forborne and modified loan:

The Company sometimes makes concessions or modifications to the original terms of loans as a response
to the borrower’s financial difficulties, rather than taking possession or to otherwise enforce collection
of collateral. The Company considers a loan forborne when such concessions or modifications are
provided as a result of the borrower’s present or expected financial difficulties and the Company would
not have agreed to them if the borrower had been financially healthy. Indicators of financial difficulties
include defaults on covenants, or significant concerns raised by the Credit Risk Department. Forbearance
may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions. Once the
terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the original EIR as calculated before
the modification of terms. Tt is the Company’s policy to monitor forborne loans to help ensure that future
payments continue to be likely to occur. Derecognition decisions and classification between Stage 2 and
Stage 3 are determined on a case-by-case basis. If these procedures identify a loss in relation to a loan,
it is disclosed and managed as an impaired Stage 3 forborne asset, until it is collected or written off.

Determination of Fair Value:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
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3.12

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate cconomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are
classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments:

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for
identical assets or liabilitics that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and
liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes
available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments:
Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or
indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 financial instruments:

Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest Ievel input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole} at the end of each reporting period. The Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques
including the adopted methodologies and model calibrations.

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its financial
instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates the expected
net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit
risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and
reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

Leases:
Company as a lessee:
The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the partial retrospective approach.

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets.
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3.13

AR

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments {(e.g.,
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short term lease

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short term leases of
property that has lease term of 12 months or less. The Company recognises lease payment associated
with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over lease term.

Company as lessor:

The Company’s accounting policy under Ind AS 116 has not changed from the comparative period. As
a lessor the Company classifies its leases as either operating or finance leases. A lease is classified as a
finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
underlying asset and classified as an operating lease if it does not.

Earnings Per Share:

Basic eamings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to
issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed
by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic eamnings per share and weighted average number

\\of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.
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3.14 Retirement and other employee benefit:

3.141

3.14.2

3.143

3.144

3.14.5

Provident fund and national pension scheme:

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which
is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity:

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any,
is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on
independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Compensated Absences:

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their
annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the
charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting
accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of
providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Deferred Bonus:

The Company has adopted a Deferred Bonus Plan under its Deferred Variable Compensation
Plan. A pool of identified senior employees of the Company is entitled for benefits under this
plan. Such deferred compensation will be paid in a phased manner over a future period of time
The measurement for the same has been based on actuarial assumptions and principles.

Equity-settled share-based payments and Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs):

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are granted by the ultimate parent Company.
These are measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
These includes Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) where the right to receive the difference
between the SAR price and the market price of equity shares of the ultimate parent Company
on the date of exercise, either by way of cash or issuance of equity shares of the ultimate parent
Company, is at the discretion of the ultimate parent Company. These are classified as equity
settled share based transaction.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled sharc-based payments is
expensed over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the ’ESOP
reserve’. In cases where the share options granted vest in instalments over the vesting period,
the Group treats each instalment as a separate grant, because each instalment has a different
vesting period, and hence the fair value of each instalment differs.
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3.15

3.16

3.17

Property, plant and equipment:

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day—to—day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as
changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned above. Repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is provided on a written
down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or put to use whichever is earlier.
In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal.

As per the requirement of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the useful
lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule I for
calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as follows:

Nature of assets Estimated useful lives
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

Office Equipment 5 years '
Computers - Servers and networks 6 years

Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. 3 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets or the period of lease whichever is earlier.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replacement
thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any. Intangibles such as software are amortised
over a period of 3 years based on its estimated useful life.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired based on internal/external factors, If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of
cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the assets is reflected

gt the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost.
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3.18

3.19

3.20

Provisions and other contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an
appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a
contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which wiil be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Claims against the
Company, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as
contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition
of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less

Income tax expenses:
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
3.20.1 Current tax:

The tax currently payabie is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs fiom
*profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

3.20.2 Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferved tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to

recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

3.20.3 Current and Deferred fax for the year:
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Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions :

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make

judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported

amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular,
information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the standalone financial statements
are included are given below:

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Business model assessment :

The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how the financial assets are managed
together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all
relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance
measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the
managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised
cost that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether
the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is
part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business mode] for which the remaining
financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a
change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those instruments.

Significant increase in credit risk:

As explained in note 48.1, ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves 1o stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. Ind AS 109 does not define what constitutes a significant increase
in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Company
takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking information.
Refer to note 48.1 for more details.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the fitture, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described
betow. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Fair value of financial instruments:

The Fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques. The Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make
assumptions based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. Judgements and
estimates include considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk, funding
alue adjustments, correlation and volatility.
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4.5

4.6

4.7

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:

The Company’s EIR methodology, as explained in Note 3.1.1, recognises interest income / expense using
arate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural
life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages
and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments and penalty interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life
cycle of the instrument, as well expected changes India’s base rate and other fee income, expenses that
are integral part of the instrument

Impairment of Financial assets:

The impairment provisions for the financial assets except assets valued at fair value through Profit &
Loss account (FVTPL) are based on assumptions about estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows, collateral values, assessment of a significant increase in credit risk, probability of default
(PD) and Loss given defanit (LGD) rates. The Company uses judgements in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs for impairment calculations based on its past history, existing market conditions
and forward looking estimates at the end of each period, These estimates are driven by number of factors,
change in which can result in different level of allowance.

The Company’s expected credit loss (ECL) calculations are output of complex model with number of
underlying assumptions regarding choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies Elements of the
ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

¢ The Company’s internal credit grading model, which assigns PDs to the individual grades based on
ageing.

¢ The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so
allowances for financial assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment.

« The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis.

» Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs Determination
of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as unemployment
levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs.

s Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive
the economic inputs into the ECL. models.

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience
and adjust when necessary.

Impairment of Non-Financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exist, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where the
arrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
s recoverable amount.
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4.8 Provisions and contingent liabilities:

4.9

4.10

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element
of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and
regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business.

‘When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case
and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case, Where
the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a refiable estimate cannot be made,
a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company
takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical
evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates,

Provisions for Income Taxes:

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment on
whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment can involve
complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Leases:
Significant judgements are involved in evaluating if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the

requirements of Ind AS 116. The Company also uses significant judgement in assessing the applicable
discount rate which is an equivalent to incremental borrowing rate estimated on best effort basis.

Standards issued but not yet effective:

5.1

There are no new standard or amendment issued but not effective.

Subsequent Events

6.1.

The Covid-19 pandemic

The Covid-19 pandemic outbreak across the world including India has resulted in most countries
announcing lockdowns and quarantine measures that have sharply stalled economic activity, The Indian
Government too has imposed lockdowns starting from March 24, 2020. The Indian economy would be
impacted by this pandemic and the resultant lockdown, due to the contraction in industrial and services
output across small and large businesses. The impact of the COVID -19 pandemic on ERFL’s results,
including credit quality and provisions, remains uncertain and dependent on the current and further
spread of COVID -19, steps taken by the government and the RBI to mitigate the economic impact and
also the time it takes for economic activities to resume and reach the normat levels.

In accordance with the regulatory package announced by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) on March 27,
2020 and April 17, 2020 the Company has granted a moratorium of 3 months and extended the same for
a further period of 3 months in accordance with the announcement by the RBI on May 22, 2020 for the
payment of all instalments falling due between March 1, 2020 and August 31, 2020 to all eligible
borrowers that have opted to avail the same. In respect of accounts overdue but standard as at February
28, 2020 where moratorium benefit has been granted, the staging for the accounts is based on staging
existing as at that date. As per the assessment done by the Company, this staging standstill has not been

on its own considered to be triggering any substantial increase in credit risk. Based on the assessment of

fh_e Company, in the absence of other credit risk indicators, the granting of the moratorium does not itself
'ﬁu]t in accounts becoming past due and triggering Stage 2 and Stage 3 classification criteria.
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6.2,

The Company has assessed the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on its liquidity and ability to repay
its obligations as and when they are due. Management has considered various stimulus packages
announced by the Government of India which will directly or indirectly benefit NBFC, , Company's
lenders to seek/extend moratorium and various other financial support from other banks, agencies and
its parent entity in determining the Company's liquidity position over the next 12 months. Based on the
foregoing and necessary stress tests considering various scenarios, management believes that the
Company will be able to pay its obligations as and when these become due in the foresceable future. The
Company would continue to focus on maintaining adequate capital and ensuring liquidity during current
period and for the period going forward.

In assessing the recoverability of loans, receivables, intangible assets (including goodwill), deferred tax
assets and investments, the Company has considered internal and external sources of information,
including credit reports, econemic forecasts and industry reports up to the date of approval of these
financial results. Since the situation is rapidly evolving, its effect on the operations of the Company may
be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial results. The Company will
continue to closely monitor material changes in markets and future economic conditions.

Sale of certain financial assets

The Company had initiated sale of certain financial assets before March 31, 2020 and for which definitive
contracts were executed post the balance sheet date. These financial assets sold subsequent to March 31,
2020, amounted to Rs. 536.90 million to alternative assets fund. As per Ind AS 109, Financial
Instruments, prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 significant judgement is involved
in classification of assets which has been accentuated on account of factors caused by COVID - 19
pandemic. Accordingly, management assessed that such loans that were sold by the Company subsequent
to March 31, 2020 had an increased risk but were not credit impaired.

On financial assets amounting to Rs. 536.90 miilion sold to alternative asset funds, EFSL, the holding
Company, has, vide a put agreement dated July 01, 2020, undertaken to purchase in future some of these
assets under certain contingencies. As at March 31, 2020, there are no impact on the financial statements
of the Company other than expected credit loss recorded amounting to Rs. 86.90 million,

7. A Scheme of Amalgamation for merger of the Company (“Transferor Company™) with ECL Finance Limited
+ .. (“Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders under section 23 to 232 of Companies Act, 2013
.. and the Rules made there under has been filied with National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) on March 26,

2019,
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9.1.

10

11

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
- in current accounts
- in fixed deposits with original maturity less than three months

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Fixed deposits with original maturity more than 12 months
Fixed deposits with original maturity more than three months and less than
12 months

Encumbrances on fixed depeosits with bank held by the Company
Given as credit enhancements towards securitisation
Given as margin agginst the bank guarantee issued in favour of BSE
Limited towards public issuance of non convertible debentures.

Stock in trade
10.25% ECL Finance Limited perpetual bonds
(March-20: 210 bonds having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 March-19: Nil)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables (Unsecured)
Receivables considered good - non-related pariy
Receivables considered good - related party - (Refer note 43)
Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk

Less : Allowance for expected credit losses

Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade receivables:

Impairment allowance measured as per simplified approach
Impairment allowance - Opening Balance
Add/ (less): asset originated or acquired (net)
Impairment aliowance - Closing Balance

As at Asat

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
681.18 3,238.12
2,000.24 -
2,681.42 3,238.12

22.60 -

279.52 2.169.93

302.12 2,169.93

179.01 -

22.57 20.03

142.02 -

142.02 -

1.45 2.04

11.16 22.73

- 0.38

12.61 25.15
(0.14) {0.38)

12.47 24.77

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(0.38) -
0.24 (0.38)
{0.14) (0.38)

Note: For disclosure relating to trade receivable ageing/ provision matrix, refer note 50
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As at Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
12 Loans (At amortised Cost)
A. Term Loans
(i) Retail loans 9,053.80 19,078.69
(ii) Wholesale loans 7,083.00 -
Total {A) - Gross 16,136.80 19,078.69
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (492.81) {462.27)
(including on loan commitment)

Total {A) - Net 15,643.99 18,616.42

B. Term Loans

(i} Secured by tangible assets (refer note 48.1.2) 10,742.13 12,945.93
(ii) Secured by intangible assets - -
(ii) Covered by Bank/ Government Guarantees - -

(ii) Unsecured 5,394.67 6,132.76

Total (B) - Gross 16,136.80 19,078.69

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (492.81) (462.27)
(including on loan commitment)

Total (B) - Net 15,643.99 18,616.42

C. Term Loans
C.I Loans in India

(i} Public Sectors - -

(ii) Others 16,136.80 19,078.69

Total (C.I) - Gross 16,136.80 19,078.69

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (492.81) (462.27)
(including on loan commitment}

Total (C.I) - Net 15,643.99 18,616.42

C.H Loans outside India - -
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss - -

(including on loan commitment)
Total (C.II) - Net - -

otal: (C I and C I} 15,643.99 18,616.42
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12.1. Credit Quality of Assets
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of
impairment allowances, Details of the Company's internal grading sysiem are explained in Note 48.1 and policies on ECL allowances are set out in Note 3.6.
Refer note 48.1.3 for modified and forborne loans.

(a} Gross carrying amount of lean assets allocated to Stage 1, Stage IF and Stage HI

As at March 31, 2628 Asat March 31, 2019

Particulars Stage 1 Stage [1 Stage 111 Total Stage 1 Stage 11 Stage I Total
Loans (at amortised cost)
Performing

High grade 12,442.48 - - 12,442.48 17.472.97 - - 17,472.97

Standard grade - 3,312.94 - 3,312.94 - 1,007.32 - 1,007.32
Non-perferming

Impaired - - 381.38 381.38 - - 598.40 598.40
Total 12,442.48 3,312.94 381.38 16,136.80 17,472.97 1,007.32 598.40 19,078.69

{b) Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL in relation to loan asscts is, as follows:

For the vear ended March 31, 2019

Non-credit impaired Credit impaired Total
Stage I Stage H Stage TH
Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Aiflowance
Particulars carrying for carrying for carrying for carrying for
amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL

Opening Balance 32,388.42 271.33 395.29 115.25 380.07 10448  33,163.78 491.06
Transfers:

Transfers to 12 Month ECL {Stage 1) 19.32 8.14 (.21 (2.91) (8.10) (5.23) - -

Fransfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 2) (923.54) (14.68) 960.51 20.89 (36.98) 6.21) - -

Transfers to lifetime ECL- Credit (1,191.79) (38.85) (206.67) (74.60) 1,398.46 113.46 - -

impaired (Stage 3)
Remeasurement of ECL arising from (7.96) £70.88 (55.25) - 107.67
transfer of stage (net)
Net new and further lending/ (repayments)  (12,796.39) (60.91) (112.54) 42.73 (277.70) 364.15  (13,186.63) 34596
Amounts written off (23.06) (1.62) (18.06) (45.96) (857.33) (429.08) (898.46) (482.66)
Closing Balance 17,472.97 149 .45 1,007.32 226.27 598.40 86.31 19,078.69 462,03
For the vear ended March 31, 2020
Opening Balance 17,472.97 149.45 1,007.32 226.27 598.40 86.31 19,678.69 462.03
Transfers:

Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1) 16.62 4.62 (15.34) (3.68) (1.28) (0.94) - -

Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 2) (865.72) (12.18) 883.31 14,82 (17.59) 2.64) - -

TFransfers to lifetime ECL- Credit (496.12) {2.40) (235.86) (32.40) 731.98 34.80 - -

impaired {Stage 3)
Remeasurement of ECL, arising from (4.28) 185.35 24.68 - 205.75
transfer of stage (net)
Net new and further lending/ (repayments}  (3,391.97) (23.37) 1,865.25 30.20 79.23 18.50 (1,447.49) 25.33
Amounts written off (293.30) (23.19) (£91.74) (91.75) (10.02) (2.96) (4935.06) (117.90)
fﬁ;@ﬁﬁntg_ sold - - - - {999.34) (82.55) {999.34) (82.35)
"C]o"s'ijgg’ B_a__!ance 12,442.48 88.65 3.312.94 328.81 381.38 75.20 16,136.80 492.66

P
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12.2. Credit Quality of exposure (Loan Commitment)}

(a) Gross carrying amount of [oan commitment allocated to Stage 1, Stage IT and Stage HI

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Particulars Stage | Stage II Stage HI Total Stage | Stage 11 Stage I1I Total
Loans (at amortised cost)
Performing
High grade 155.16 - - 155.16 246.14 - - 246.14
Standard grade - - - - - - - -
Non-performing
Impaired - - N - n - - -
Total 155.16 - - 155.16 246.14 - - 246.14
(b) Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and the cerresponding ECL in relation to of loan commitment is, as follows:
For the Year Ended March 31, 2019
Non-credit impaired Credit impaired Total
Stage I Stage II Stage 11X
Particulars Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross AHowance Gross Allowance
carrying for carrying for carrying for crrrying for
amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL
Opening Balance 863.13 0.52 - - - - 863.13 0.52
Transfers:
Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1} - - - - - - - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 2) (6.20) (0.00) 6.20 0.00 - - - -
Transfers to fifetime ECL- Credit impaired (1.50) 0.00) - - 1.50 0.00 - -
{Stage 3}
Remeasurement of ECL arising from - - - -
transfer of stage {net)
Net new sanctions and (disbursement} (609.29) 0.28) {6.20) - (1.50) - (616.99) {0.28)
Closing Balance 246.14 0.24 - 0.00 - 0.00 246.14 .24
For the Year Ended March 31, 2020
Opcning Balance 246.14 .24 - - - - 246.14 0.24
Transfers:
Transfers to 12 Month ECL {Stage 1) - - - - - - - -
Fransfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 2} - - - - - - - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL- Credit - - - - . - - -
impaired (Stage 3)
Remeasurement of ECL arising from - - - -
transfer of stage (net)
Net new sanctions and (disbursement) (90.98) {0.11) - - - - (90.98) 0.11)
155.16 0.13 - - - - 155.16 0.13

.7 " "Closing Balance
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13 Investments

As at March 31, 2620 At fair value
Designated at
At Amortised fair value Subtotal Total
cost (1) | e igﬁ“i;’ through  |5=(2e3+d)| AOTE) o 1isig)
@ { Profit or loss
4
Security receipts - - 471.23 - 471.23 - 471.23
TOTAL - Gross {A) - - 471.23 - 471.23 - 471.23
(i) Investments outside India - - - - - - -
(ii) Investment in India - - 471.23 - 471.23 - 471.23
Total (B) - - 47123 - 471.23 - 471,23
Less: Allowance for impairment (C) - - - - - - -
Total Net (A-C) - - 471.23 - 471.23 - 471.23
As at March 31, 2019 At fair value
Designated at
At Amortised fair value Subtotal Total
At cost (6
cost (1) To"é‘;‘g;' ff;{;"g)‘ through | 5=@+3+a)| 2@ dap- quseg)
Profit or loss
4

Security receipts
TOTAL - Gross (A)

{1} Investments outside India
(ii) Investment in India
Total (B)

Less: Allowance for impairment (C)

Total Net (A-C)

Note:

During the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, the Company has sold financial assets aggregating to Rs. 695.40 million (net of
provisions & losses) and Rs. Nil crores (net of provisions & losses) respectively to various asset reconstructions company trusts ("ARC
Trusts™) and has acquired security receipts (SR) from ARC Trusts amounting to Rs. 501.84 million. The Board approved committee approved
such sale of financial assets to ARC Trusts. Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
requires substantial risks and rewards to be transferred for the purpose of de-recognition of such financial assets from the Company’s financial
statements. Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (EFSL), ultimate holding company, and Edelweiss Rural and Corporate Services Limited
{(ERCSL), a fellow subsidiary, on March 31, 2020, have guaranteed significant risks and assumed significant rewards in respect of an
aggregate value of financial assets of the fair value amounting to Rs. 417.00 million sold to ARC Trusts. As a result, these financial assets are
de-recognized in Company’s financial statements, Further, as the risks and rewards continue in ERCSL and EFSL, these continue to be
accounted as financial assets in the consolidated financial statements the Group and the respective consequent expected credit loss will be
-.recorded in the consolidated financial statements of EFSL or ERCSL.
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Asat Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

14 Other financial assets
(unsecured, considered good)

Security Deposits 55.52 58.43
Advances to others 103.16 31.62
Deposits- others 0.09 0.06

158.77 90.11

15 Current tax assets (net)

Advance income taxes 164.03 64.27
(net of provision for tax Rs. 323.73 million, previous year Rs. 272.22
million)

164.03 64.27

16 Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets

Loans
Provision for expected credit loss 124.03 161.51
Unamortised processing fees - EIR on lending 7.05 34.34
Property. plant and equipment and intangibles
Difference between book and tax depreciation 7.39 5.39
Emplovee benefit obligations
Provision for compensated absences 0.06 0.23
Disallowances under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 0.28 0.72
Lease liability 35.06 -
Others 0.04 -
173.91 202.19
Deferred tax liabilities
Investments and other financial instruments
Unamortised loan origination costs - EIR on lending 11.70 62.90
Recognition of Interest Strip on assignment deals 3.68 14.17
Accrued Interest on Stage 3 receivables 0.24 7.92
Borrowings
Effective interest rate on financial liabilities 20.67 37.33
Right-of-use Asset (ROU) 29.17 -
65.46 122.32

108.45 79.87
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M{\W":‘:“Zf ency : Indian rupees in millions)
Q” o """"'\
o lﬁ’jl;opcrty, Plant and Equipment
i (3] “
{ yepeaisy
il {9 & <.Jif\x ) :‘;y Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment Net Block
e s intion of Asset As at Transition Additions Disposals ) Asat Transttion Disposals Asat Asat
‘i'flg:‘s..v_,,..i@ }}escrlptmn ol Assels Aprit01, impactofind during the during the A; i’t?g;;‘:h April 01, impact of Ind Ctl;largc for during the March 31, March 31,
g DA 2019 A8 116 year year ’ 2019 AS 116 © year year 2020 2020
Property, Plant and Equipment
Land* 0.37 - - - 0.37 - - - - - 0.37
Leaschold improvements 28.48 - - 7.08 21.40 7.95 - 5.32 2.63 10.62 10.78
Fumiture and Fixtures 8.61 - 1.93 L1l 9.43 2.70 - 224 0.50 4.44 4.99
Vehicles 3.46 - - - 346 1.80 - 0.51 - 2,31 1.15
Office equipment 19.92 - 3.52 2.95 20.49 9.70 - 6.62 1.98 14.34 6.15
Computers 27.46 - 0.43 1.87 26.02 16.61 - 5.41 1.55 20,47 5.55
Right-of-use Asset (ROU)** - 164.44 1.41 - 163.85 - . 49.95 - 49,93 1£5.90
Total 88.30 164.44 7.29 13.01 247.02 38.76 - 70.05 6.68 102.13 144.89
18 Other Intangible Assets
Gross Block Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment Net Block
o s Additi - Py : )
Description of Asscts A? at . Transition dfh 10ns DIS'I)OSHIS As at March A? at . Transition Charge for Dls.posal‘i As at March [ As at March
April 01, impact of Ind during the  during the 31. 2020 April 01, impact of Ind the vear during the 31,2020 31. 2020
2019 AS 116 year year ’ 2019 AS 116 y year ’ ’
Other Intangible Asscts
Software 8.82 - 6.96 - 15.78 3.86 - 3.96 - 7.82 7.96
Total 8.82 - 6.96 - 15.78 3.86 - 3.96 - 7.82 7.96
Notes:

*Charged against secured redeemable non-convertible debentures

**Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases", applied to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019, using the modified retrospective method and has taken the curnulative adjustment
to retained earnings, on the date of initial application. Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted. On transition, the adoption of the new standard
resulted in recognition of Right-of-Use asset (ROU) of Rs.164.44 million and a lease liability of Rs.183.10 million with a corresponding deferred tax asset/liability of Rs.6.50 million. The cumulative effect of
applying the standard thus resulted in Rs.12.14 million being debited to tetained earnings as at April 1, 2019, net of taxes. In the profit or loss for the current year, the nature of expenses in respect of operating

leases has changed from lease rent in previous year to depreciation cost for the right-to-use asset and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability. Thus, other expenses have reduced by Rs. 58.10 million
whereas depreciation and amortisation expense has increased by Rs. 50.00 million and finance cost has increased by Rs. 12,90 million for the year ended March 31, 2020 censequent to adoption of Ind A2
This has had an impact on deferred tax charge (net) by Rs. 0.60 million for the year ended March 31, 2020. Also, total assets have increased by Rs.115.90 million and total liabilities have ing

Rs.139.32 million as at March 31, 2020.
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes fo the financial statements (Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

19  Other non-financial assets

Input tax credit {Goods and Services Tax/ Service Tax) 53.34 123.91
Prepaid expenses 0.14 1.14
Advances to vendors 0.33 1.13
Advances to employees 0.05 0.54

53.86 126.72

20 Trade Payables

Trade payables to non-related parties 66.33 244.50

Trade payables to related parties - (Refer note 45) 2.36 23.87
68.69 268.37

Notes:

(i) Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and 68.69 268.37

small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -

21 Debt securities (In India)
(Atamortised cost)

Non-convertible redeemable debentures (Secured)

Privately placed non-convertible debentures 1,153.24 1,140.49
Publicly placed non-convertible debentures 3,785.82 3,769.43
4,939.06 4,909.92

Note: For disclosure relating to repayment and other terms, refer note 52




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

22

23

24

Borrowings other than debt securities (In India)
(At amortised cost)

Term Loan (secured)
- From Banks
- From SIDEBI

Note: For disclosure relating to repayment and other terms, refer note 51

Bank overdraft (Secured})

[Secured by charge on receivables from financing business]

Bank overdraft is in nature of commitied Cash Credit lines repayable on
demand (Interest rate range, March-20: 8.8% - 11.00%,March-19: 8.55% -
11.00%)

Loan from related parties (Usecured)

(Repayable on demand, Interest rate payable @ 9.50% for March-20,
9.50% for March-19)

Working capital demand loan

[Secured by charge on receivables from financing business]

Bank overdraft is in nature of committed Cash Credit lines repayable on
demand (Interest rate range, March-20: 8.80% - 9.65%,March-19: NA)

Subordinated liabilities (In India)
(At amortised cost)

Non-convertible subordinated debentures
Non-convertible perpetual debentures

Note: For disclosure relating to repayment and other terms, refer note 53 & 54

Other financial liabilities

Debenture application money received pending allotment
__ Payable to employees
. Lease liabilities (Ind AS 116)

Asat
March 31,2020

As at
March 31, 2018

5,686.19 9,317.77
1,381.66 1,922.28
7,067.85 11,240.05
281.27 1,220.14
0.00 1.31
150.00 -
431.27 1,221.45
7,499.12 12,461.50
1,630.18 1,602.17
458.88 458.63
2,089.06 2,060.80
0.11 0.21
1.78 2.25
139.32 .
487.90 .
629.11 246




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

25

26

27

Current tax liabilities (net)

Provision for taxation
{(net of advance tax Rs. 171.94 million, previous year Rs. 97.46 million)

Provisions

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 42)
Gratuity
Compensated leave absences

Other non-financial liabilities

Revenue received in advance

Payable to others

Payable to related party (refer note 43)
Statutory dues payable

As at Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
23.80 105.05
23.50 105.05
1.19 2.07
0.23 0.66
1.33 2.73
0.01 0.01
6.65 3.30
2.63 0.94
1.36 24.27
10.65 28.52




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions})

28

Equity share capital

Authorised :
5,00,00,000 (Previous year: 5,00,00,000} equity shares of Rs.10
each

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
4,29,50,000 (Previous year: 4,29,50,000) Equity shares of Rs.
10, fully paid-up

Movement in share capital :

Qutstanding at the beginning of the year
Shares issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

Terms/rights aftaclied to equity shares :

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
500.00 500.00

500.00 500.00

429.50 429.50

429,50 426.50

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
4,29,50,000 429.50 4,29,50,000 429.50
4,29,50,000 429.50 4,29,50,000 429.50

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share held. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of

the Company, afier distribution of all preferential amounts.

Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries

Edelcap Securities Limited (Holding company)

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (Ultimate holding company)
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited (Fellow subsidiary)

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

No of shares %  Noof shares %
3,02,58,333 70.45% 3,02,58,333 70.45%
96,91,667 22.57% 96,91,667 22.57%
30,00,000 6.98% 30,00,000 6.98%
4,29,50,000 100.00% 4,29,50,000 100.00%

hares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares/ disinvestment.




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

29  Other Equity

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

29.1

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€}

¢y

Capital reserve 8.18 8.18
Securities premium 3,112.08 3,112.08
Statutory reserve 262.14 260.04
Debenture redemption reserve 337.14 337.14
Deemed capital contribution - Equity 5.94 5.94
Retained earnings 475.41 479.14

4,200.89 4,202.52

Note: For movement in Other Equity, refer 'Statement of changes in Equity'.
Nature and purpose of Reserves

Capital reserve
Capital reserve represents the gains of capital nature which is not freely available for distribution.

Securities Premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares, Balance in Securities premium can be utilised only for limited
purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Special Reserve under Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Reserve created under section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every
year as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared.

Debenture Redemption Reserve

The Companies Act 2013 requires companies that issue debentures to create a debenture redemption reserve from annual profits until
such debentures are redeemed. Company being NBFC has 10 maintain Debenfure Redemption reserve upto 25% of the value of
debentures issued through public issue. The amounts credited to the debenture redemption reserve may not be utilised except to
redeem debentures. On redemption of debentures, the amount may be transferred from debenture redemption reserve to retained
earnings. However, as per the amendment in the Companies Act 2013, debenture redemption reserve is not required for debentures
issued by Non-Banking Finance Companies regulated by Reserve Bank of India for both public as well as privately placed
debentures.

Deemed eapital contribution - Equity
This reserve relates to share options granted to eligible employees of the Company by the parent company under its employee share
option plan.

Retained Earnings
Retained earnings comprises of the Company’s undistributed earnings afier taxes.




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continned)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

30 Interest Income {at amortised cost)

Interest on Loans

Interest on deposits with bank

Other interest income

Other interest income on direct assignment

31 Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income

32 Net gain on fair value changes (Realised)

On trading portfolio

Profit / (loss) on trading of securities (FVTPL)

Profit on sale of mutual fund units (FVTPL)

Profit & Loss FnO - NSE

On Others

Gain on buy back of debt securities {at amortised cost)

33 Other income

- Other non operating income

f“"wm\
P i)
/V}}‘f %

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
2,293.05 3,866.44
182.27 62.65
16.10 0.04
- 20.69
2,485.42 3,949.82
221.03 267.42
221.03 267.42
34.24 92.10
133.70 147.63
0.18 -
- 26.14
168.12 265.87
19.06 1.21
19.06 1.21




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

For the year ended For the yvear ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
34 Finance costs (at amortised cost)
Interest on borrowings 1,078.24 1,317.25
Interest on debt securities 450.03 719.19
Interest on subordinated liabilities 199.56 194.88
Other interest expense (including bank charges) 6.66 12.63
Interest on lease liabilities 12.90 -
1,747.39 2,243.95
35 Impairment on financial instruments
Loss on sale of loan assets sold to assets reconstruction company 316.56 -
Bad- debts and advances written off 384.61 898.47
Provision for expected credit loss (at amortised cost) 30.54 (29.30)
(including on loan commitments)
731,71 869.17

Note:

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company completed its re-assessment of probability of defauit, loss given default
in respect of exposures to certain sectors that were experiencing operational challenges. Credit and market risks for certain
counter parties increased significantly relative to such risks at initial recognition, resulting in recognition of higher amount of
expected credit losses and gain/loss on fair value changes for the year ended March 31, 2020. Management judgement for
expected credit losses and gain/loss on fair values changes has been accentuated on account of factors caused by the COVID-
19 pandemic. Accordingly, the Company has recorded for the year ended March 31, 2020 an amount of Rs. 731.71 million
towards expected credit losses, write-offs, loss on sale to ARC Trusts and Funds and net loss on fair value changes.

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
36 Employece benefit expenses

Salaries and wages 53.82 29.52
Contribution to provident and other funds 2.95 3.07
Gratuity Expense (refer note 42} 0.45 0.66
Share based payments to employees 2.40 0.94

{Refer note below)
Staff welfare expenses 1.86 6.61
61.48 40.79

Note:

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (“EFSL") the ultimate holding Company has granted an Employee stock option plan
_(ESOP)/ Stock Appreciation Rights (ESAR) option to acquire equity shares of EFSL that would vest in a graded manner to
mpany’s employees, Based on group policy / arrangement, EFSL has charged the fair value of such stock options /rights ,
\‘Co“?j}pany has accepted such cross charge and recognised the same under the employee cost.




Edelweiss Retail Firance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

37 QOther expenses

Advertisement and business promotion
Commission and brokerage
Communication

Directors' sitting fees

Legal and professional fees

Printing and stationery

Rent, Rates and taxes (net of recovery)
Repairs and maintenance

Computer expenses

Corporate social responsibility (refer note 37.2)
Rating support fees

Office expenses

Postage and courier

Goods & Service tax expenses

Stamp duty

Auditors’ remuneration (refer note 37.1)
Travelling and conveyance
Miscellaneous expenses

Loan origination costs amortised

37.1. Auditors' remuneration
As an Auditor
Statutory Audit
Limited Review
Certification
Towards reimbursement of expenses

37.2. Details of CSR Expenditure:
As per the provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act 2013

Gross Amount required to be spent by the Company

Amount spent (paid in cash)
(i} Construction/ Acquisition of any assets
(ii} on purpose other than (i) above

Amount spent (Yet to be paid in cash)
Construction/ Acquisition of any assets
on purpose other than (i) above

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

0.57 8.24
0.70 542
7.13 11.15
0.54 0.56

46.39 175.25
2.47 7.64

(81.26) 19.07

4.60 0.41
15.35 21.97
10.07 2.50

0.14 0.16
4321 83.83

0.79 2.44
40,79 52.66

0.97 111

2.03 1.63

2.54 5.40
19.21 2.44

129.38 388.80

245.62 790.67
0.80 0.60
0.90 0.90
0.22 -
0.11 0.13
2.03 1.63

10.07 10.07

- 2.50
10.07 -
10.07 2.50




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to finarcial statements
{Currency:Indian rupees in million)

38

38.1.

38.2.

income tax

The components of income tax expense:

Current tax
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years

Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences

MAT credit entitlement
Total tax charge

Current tax
Deferred tax

Reconciliation of total tax charge

Accounting profit before tax as per financial statements

Tax rate (in percentage)
Income tax expense calculated based on this tax rate
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years
Effect of income not subject to tax:

Deduction u/s 35D of Income tax Act, 1961

Others
Effect of non—deductible expenses:

Others
Effect on deferred tax due to change in Income tax rate

Tax charge for the year recorded in P&L

Effective tax rate

For the period ended
March 31, 2020

For the period ended
March 31, 2019

54,77 198.12
(9.99) (11.60)
(22.02) (72.52)
- 56.40
22.76 170.40
44.78 186.52
(22.02) (16.12)

For the period ended
March 31,2020

33.42

2517%
8.41
9.99)

0.17)

0.35
24.17

22.76

68.09%

For the period ended
March 31, 2019

508.96

34.94%

177.85

(11.60)

4.15

170.40

33.48%




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to financial statements
{Currency : Indian rupees in mitlions)

38 Income fax

38.3. Movement of Deferred Tax asscts / liabilities

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Deferred tax

Deferred tax

asset / In profit or Dircctly in Total assct/
(liability) loss equity movement (liability)
(Opening) {Closing)
Deferred taxes in relation to:
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for expected credit loss 161.54 (37.48) - (37.48) 124.06
Retirement Benefits 0.96 (0.67) (0.62) 0.34
Difference between book and tax WDV 5.38 2.00 - 2.00 7.38
(including intangibles)
Lease liability - (28.92) 63.98 35.06 35.06
Others (0.00) 0.04 - 0.04 0.03
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Effective interest rate on financial assets (28.59) 23.91 - 23.91 (4.68)
Stage 3 Income recognition (7.93) 7.69 - 7.69 (0.24)
Interest spread on assignment transactions (14.16) 10.49 - 10.49 (3.67)
Effective interest rate on financial (37.33) 16.66 - 16.66 (20.67)
Liabilities
Right-of-use Asset (ROU) - 28.29 (37.46) {29.17) (29.17)
Total 79.87 22.01 6.52 28.58 108.45
For the year ended March 31, 2019
Deferred taxes in relation to:
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for expected credit loss 171.78 (10.24) - (10.24) 161.54
Retirement Benefits 12.49 (11.17) (11.53) 0,96
Difference between book and tax WDV 1.07 4.31 - 4.31 5.38
{including intangibles)
Others 8.15 - (8.15) (8.15) (0.00)
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Effective interest rate on financial assets {98.31) 69.72 - 69.72 (28.59)
Stage 3 Income recognition (10.80) 2.87 - 2.87 (7.93)
Interest spread on assignment transactions {16.78) 2.62 - 2.62 (14.16)
Effective interest rate on financial (51.73) 14.40 - 14.40 (37.33)
Liabilities
MAT Credit Entitlement 536.40 (56.40) - (56.40) -
Total 72.27 16.11 (0.36) (8.15) 7.60 79.87
Note:

The Government of India, on September 20, 2019, vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019 (the Ordinance), inserted a new

Section 115BAA in the Income tax Act, 1961, which provides an option to the Company for paying Income tax at reduced rates.
- Acdordingly, the Company has recognised provision for income tax for the year ended March 31, 2020 and re-measured its deferred tax
ésSet_sf lié.bi__lities basis the rate prescribed in the aforesaid section resulting in tax additional charge by Rs. 24.17 million.




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements

{Currency:Indian rupees in millions)

39 Cash Flow Disclosure

Change in Liabilities arising from financing acitivies

. As at March 31, Changes in Fair . AsatMarch 31,
Particulars 2019 Cash Flows value Others 2020
Debt Securities 4,909.92 0.01 - 29.13 4,939.06
Borrowings other than Debt Securities 12.461.50 {4,932.01) - (30.37) 7.499.12
Subordinated Liabilities 2,060.80 - - 28.26 2,089.06
19,432.22 {4,932.01) - 27.02 14,527.24
. As at April 01, Changes in Fair . AsatMarch 31,
Particulars 2018 Cash Flows valie Others 2019
Debt Securities 8,040.57 {3,006.44) - (124.21) 4,909.92
Borrowings other than Debt Securities 16,934.13 (4,501.31) - 28.68 12,461.50
Subordinated Liabilities 2.037.06 - - 23.74 2.060.80
27,011.76 (7,507.75) - (71.79) 19,432.22

*Includes the effect of acerued but not paid interest on borrowing, amortisation of processing fees etc.

;




Edelweiss Retail Finanee Limited
Netes to financial statements
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

40.

41.

(@

{b)

Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Net Profit attributable to Equity holders of the Company - A 10.66 33855

Weighted average Number of Shares
- Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 42.95 42.95
- Number of equity shares issued during the year - -

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 42.95 4295

Weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the year 42,95 42.95
(based on the date of issue of shares) - B

Nominal value of equity shares 10.00 10.00
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in rupees) (A/B) 0.25 7.88

The basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as there are no dilutive/ potential equity shares issued or outstanding as at
the year end.

Contingent Liability & Commitment:
Contingent Liability

As at March 31,2020  As at March 31, 2019
Taxation matters Nil Nil
Litigation pending against the company Nil Nil

The Company’s pending litigations mainfy comprise of claims against the Company pertaining to proceedings pending with
Income Tax and other authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately
provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in the financial statements.
The Company believes that the outcome of these proceedings will not have a materially adverse effect on the Company’s
financial position and results of operations.

Commitment:
As at March 31,2020  As at March 31, 2019

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 0.90 435

Loan sanctioned pending disbursements 155.16 246.14




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financizl statements (Confinued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

42,

(a)

(&)

®

(ii)

{iii)

(iv)

Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined contribution plan - Provident funds

In accordance with Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, employees of the Company are entitied to receive benefits under the provident
fund, a defined contribution plan, in which, both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a determined rate. These contributions are made to a recognized
provident fund administered by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The empioyees contribute 12% of their basic salary and the Company contributes an equal
amount.

The Company recognised Rs.2.54 millions {March 31, 2019 : Rs 2.72 miltions) for provident fund and other contributions in the Statement of profit and loss.
Defined benefit plan - Gratuity
In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering atl empioyees. The plan provides a lump sum

payment to vested employees at retirement or termination of employment in accordance with the rutes taid down in the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The gratuity benefit
is partially provided through funded plan and annual expense is charged to the statement of profit and loss on the basis of actuariat valuation,

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) for gratuity were carried out as at March 31, 2020. The
present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Baged on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company’s financial
slatements as at balance sheet date:

As at Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Present value of defined benefit obligations (A) 1.09 2.06
Fair Value of plan assets (B) - -
Present value of defined benefit obligations (A-B) 1.09 2.06
Net deficit / (assets) are analysed as:
Liabilities 1.09 2,06

Assels - -
Movement in net defined benefit (asset) Hability:
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components:

Defined benefit obligation Fair value of plan asseis Net defined benefit (asset) liability
March 31,2020 March3E, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 38, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

Present value of defined benefit obligations (opening) 2.06 5.56 - - 2.06 5.56
Current service cost 0.33 0.39 - - 0.33 0.39
Past service cost - - - -
Interest cost 0.12 0.27 - - 0.12 027
2.51 5.22 - - 2.51 6.22

Other comprehensive Income
Remeasurement Actuarial loss (gain) arising from :

Experience 0.08 (1.06) - - 0.08 (1.06)
Financial assumptions 0.07 0.02 - - 0.07 0.02
Expected return from plan assets 0.05 - - - 0.05 -
0.20 {1.04) - - 0.20 (1.04)
Others
Transfer In/ (Cut) {0.30) (L71) - - (0.30) (1.7
Contributions by Employer - - - - - -
Benefits paid {1.31) (1.41) - - (131D (141
(1.62) (3.12) - - (1.62) (3.12)
Closing Balance (i) + (ji) + (iii) 1.0% 206 - - 1.09 2.06
Represented by
Net defined benefit asset ) - -

Net defined benefit liability 1.09 2.06




Edclweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continned)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

42. Retirement and other employee benefits

Components of defined henefit plan cost:

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2016
(i) Recognised in Statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 0.33 039
Interest cost 0.12 0.27
Expected return on plan assets - -
Past service cost - -
0.45 0.66
(i)  Recognised in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of net defined henefit liability/(asset) 0.20 {1.04)
Return on plan assets excluding net interest - -
0.20 {1.od)
Total {i) + (ii) 0.65 (0.37)
Actuarial assumptions:
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reposting date:
Asat Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Discount Rate 5.50% 6.70%
Salary Growth Rate 7.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal/Attition Rate {based on calegories) 13% to 50% 13% to 60%
Expected return on plan Assets (p.a) 6.70% 7.00%
Mortality Rate 1IALM 2012 TALM 2012-
14(Ultimate) 14(tltimate)
Expected weighted average remainin working lives of employees 3 Years 4 Years
Sensitivity analysis:
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 3, 2019
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Satary Growth Rate (+/- 1%) 0.86 (0.06) 0.11 (0.11)
Discount Rate (+/- 1%) (0.06) 0.06 (0.10) 0.12
Withdrawl Rate (+/- 1%} {0.01) 4.01 (0.00) 0.00
Monrtality {increase in expecied lifetime by 1 year) Negligible change Negligible change
Monrality {increase in expecied lietime by 3 year) Negligible change Negligible change

The sensitivity is performed on the BDO at the respective valuation date by medifving one parameter whilst retaining other parameters constant. There are no changes from
the previous period to the methods and assumptions underlying the sensitivity analysis.

Asset liability comparisons: As at Asat
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Present value of DBO 1.09 206
Fair Value of Plan assets - -
Net (Assets)Liabilitiy 1.09 2.06

(¢} Compensated absences :
The Company provides for accumulated compensated absences as at the balance sheet date using projected unit credit methed based on actuarial valuation. The leave
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43. Maturity Analysis of assets and liabilitics
The table below shows an anafysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. With

regard o loans and advances to customers, the comparly uses the same basis of expected repayment behaviour as used for confractual
maturity analysis.

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Particulars Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
months months months months
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,681.42 - 2,681.42 3,238.12 - 3,238.12
Bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents 302.12 - 302.12 2,169.93 - 2,169.93
Stock in trade 142.02 - 142.02 - - -
Trade receiveables 12.47 - 12.47 2477 - 24.77
Loans 8,134.69 7,509.30 15,643.99 8,001.24 10,615.18 18,616.42
Investments - 471.23 471.23 - - -
Other financial assets 103.25 55.52 158.77 31.68 58.43 90.11
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) - 164.03 164.03 - 64.27 64.27
Deferred tax assets (net) - 108.45 108.45 - 79.87 79.87
Property, Plant and Equipment - 144.89 144.89 - 49.54 49.54
Intangible assets under development - 0.00 0.00 - 6.66 6.66
Other Intangible assets - 7.96 7.96 - 4.96 4,96
Other non-financial assets 0.52 53.34 53.86 125.59 1.14 126.72
Total Assets 11,376.49 8,514.72 19,891.21 13,591.33 10,880.04 24 471.37
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables 68.69 - 68.69 268.37 - 268.37
Debt securities 2,116.76 2,822,30 4,939.06 57.97 4,851.95 4,909.92
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 3,864.97 3,634.15 7,499.12 5,288.04 7,173.46 12,461.50
Subordinated Liabilities 74.12 2,014.94 2,089.06 73.64 1,987.16 2.060.80
Other financial liabilities 512.11 117.00 629.11 2.46 - 2.46
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities {net) 23.80 - 23.80 105.05 - 105.05
Provisions 1.33 - 1.33 2.73 - 2.73
Other non-financial Habilities 10.65 - 10.65 28.52 - 28.52
Total Liabilities 6,672.43 8,588.39 15,260.82 5,826.77 14,012.57 19,839.35

4,704.06 (73.67) 4,630.39 7,764.56 {3,132.53) 4,632.02
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44.

45.

@

Gi)

Segment reporting

The Company's is registered with Reserve Bank of India as a Non Banking Financial Company engaged in the business of lending and finarcing . All other activities of the
company revoive around the main business. Accordingly, there is no separate reportable segment and hence no disclosure is made urder Ind AS 108 - "Operating Segment

Reporting. Further, segmentation based on geograplsy has not been presented as the Company operates only in India.

Related Party Disclosures

List of related partics and relationship:
MName of related parties by whom control is exescised

Fellow Subsidiaries
(with whom fransactions have taken place)

Key Management Personnei

Edelcap Securities Limited - Holding Company

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited -~ Ultimate helding Company

ECL Finance Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited (Formerly Edelweiss Commodities Services Ltd}

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited

Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Edelweiss Finance & Invesiments Limited
Edelweiss Broking Eimited

Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Edebweiss Asset Management Limited

Ecap Equities Limited

EdelGive Foundation

Edelweiss Securities Limited

Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited
Edeiweiss General Insurance Company Limited
Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited

EFSL Trading Limited (Merged with Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited )

Mr. Vineet Mahajan (Dec 14, 2018 to Mar 15, 2020}
Mr. Arunt Kumar Nayyar (upto 30 ful 2018)

Mr. Krishnaswamy Siddharth

Ms. Shilpa Gattani (w.e.f February 6, 2020)

Mr. Shrikaat Subbarayan (uplo Aug 12, 2020)

Ms. Shalinee Mimani (upto Sep 15, 2019}

Mr. Sanjay Shah (upio Jan 13, 2020)

Mr. Mitul Shah

Mr. Vineet Mahajan (upto Dec 13, 2018)

Chief Executive Officer
Chief Executive Officer
Non Executive Director
Non Executive Director
Non Executive Director
Non Executive Director
Independent Director

Independent Director

Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Kirti Sawant (Mar 5, 2019 to Jan 28, 2020) Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Sudipta Majumdar (upto Aug 22, 2019) Company Secretary
Mr, Amit Pandey (w.e.f Aug 24, 2019) Company Secretary
Transactions with related parties :
: . For the year cnded For the year ended
Nature of Transaction Related Party Name March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Current Account Transactions during the year:
Loans taken from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 531.30 7.604.18
Loans repaid to Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 695.60 749580
Short term loans given to Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 2,000.00 -
ECL Finance Limited 1,190.00 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 2,150.00 -
Short term loans repaid by Edelweiss Housing Finance Liméted 1,190.00 -
ECL Finance Limited 1,350.00 -
Securities Purchase Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 141.55 2,100.04
Edelweiss Finance & Invesiments Limited - 31546
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited - 244,34
Bonds sold to ECL Finance Limited 2,323.50 -
Loan sale to ARC Edelweiss Asset Reconsiruction Company Limited 590.40 -
Non convertible debentures (Loans) purchased from ECL Finance Limited 3,99%.43 -
Margin placed Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 1,840,93 -
Edelweiss Securities Limited 3.12 -
Margin withdrawn Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 1,841.17 -
Edelweiss Securities Limited 312 -
‘Amount paid to broker for Cash segment Edelweiss Securities Limited 725.24 1,116.30

Amount Received from broker for Cash segment

Edelweiss Securities Limited

702,

1,200.50
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45, Related Party Disclosures

Nature of Transaction

Retated Party Name

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Income
Shared premises cost received from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 0.68
ECL Firance Limited 62.13 2776
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 20,01 E0.I1
Edelweiss General Ensurance Company Limited 0.02 -
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 0.54 -
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.12 0.07
Edelweiss Broking Limited 0.96 0,52
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited - 0.58
Edelweiss Asset Managemeat Limited 0,11 0.02
Cost reimbursement Received from ECL Finance Limited - 25.02
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited - 923
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 0.47
Edelweiss Broking Limited - 0.33
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited - 0.21
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 0.05
Enterest itcome on loan to Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 112,07 -
ECL Finance Limited 56.93 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 6.13 -
Interest income on reargin Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 1009 -
Arranger Fee received from Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 106.68 -
Expenses
Shared premises cost paid Edelweiss Securities Limited .28 0.15
Ecap Equities Limited 1.02 1.79
ECL Finance Limited - 0.51
Edelweiss Broking Limited - 0.33
Edebweiss Housing Finance Limited - 0.48
Edelweiss Rurat & Corporate Services Limited 1.54 1.37
Edebweiss Custodial Services Limited 0.08 -
Cost reimbursement paid to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 1.89 8.86
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 2.02 0.13
Ecap Equities Limited 0.00 0.t5
Edelweiss Broking Limited - 029
Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.05 0.22
ECL Finance Limited 0.31 0.4
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited “ 0.45
Management Fees paid to Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 7.31 -
Interest paid on loan from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1.26 52.65
Interest paid on Non convertible debentures Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 27 91.13
Edelweiss Finance & [nvestments Limited 0.00 26.70
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 6.39 21.88
ECL Finance Limited 1.02 -
Interest Income on Non convertible Debentures ECL Finance Limited 2.84 -
Brokerage paid Edelweiss Securities Limited 1.30 0.53
Clearing charges Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 2.63 -
Enterprise Service charge paid to Edelweiss Rural & Cerporate Services Limited 0.24 69.58
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.02 -
Advisory fees paid to Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited - 398
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 0.03 0.04
EdelGive Foundation - 2.50

-
L L ALE :
zf('_;omm;ssl‘%r};:i \d brokerage paid to
i e
yier s

!

Edelweiss Broking Limited
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45, Related Party Disclosures

. , For the year ended For the year ended
Nature of Transaction Related Party Name March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
ESOP cost reimbursement Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.26 0.94
Rating support fees paid to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited o.14 0.16
Director Sitting fecs Mr. Mitul Shah 6.28 0.26
Mr, Sanjay Shah 0.26 0.30
Remuneration paid to Mr. Arun Kumar Nayyar - 18.50
Mr, Vineet Mahajan 9.21 16,37
Ms. Kirli Sawant 2.90 -
Ms. Sudipta Majumdar 045 0.90
Mr. Amit Pandey 0,29 -
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment ECL Finance Limited 0.18 1.1
Edelweiss Broking Limited 0.03 0.81
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 6.02
Edelweiss Custedial Services Limited 0.00 6.02
Edelweiss General tsurance Company Limited 0.0z 0,01
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limnited 0.05 0.21
Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited 0.01 0.01
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.04 0.08
Edelweiss Finaneial Services Limited - 0.01
Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.03 0.11
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.02 -
Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.00 -
ECL Finance Limited 0.04 -
Balances with related parties:
Short term borrowing from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.0 0.52
Interest accrued on short term borrowing Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 0.79
Short Tenm loan given to Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 13.00 -
ECL Firance Limited 35.60 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 2,150.00 -
Interest accrued on short term loan given to Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 0.11 .
ECL Finance Limited 13.51 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 5.52 -
Non convertible debentures {at face value) held by Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 17.9% 7240
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 0.05 -
ECL Finance Limited 29.07 -
Subordinated debenture (al face value) held by Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 7100 -
Perpetual debentures {at face value) held in ECL Finance Limited 210,00 -
Interest accrued on Non convertible debeatures Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited .04 1,82
ECL Finance Limited 011
Edchweiss Finance and Investments Ltd 0,00 -
Interest acerued on subordinated debentures hield by Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 1.83 -
Interest accrued on Perpetual debentures held in ECL Finance Limited 19,35 -

Trade Payabtes

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
ECL Finance Limited

Edelweiss Securities Limited

Edelweiss Broking Eimited

Ecap Equities Limited

Edehweiss Custodial Services Limited
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45, Related Party Disclosures

: : i For the year ended For the year ended
Nature of Transaction Related Party Name March 31, 2020 March 31, 2619
Other payable Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 2.40 0.94
Trade Receivables ECL Finance Limited 7.30 14.81
Edelweiss Broking Limited 0.14 0.07
Edelweiss Rural & Cormporate Services Limited 0.27 228
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 215 548
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.01 0.03
Edelweiss Finance and Investments Limited 0.01 002
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 0.24
Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited - 0.02
Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited 0.02 0.01
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 0.02 -
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 1.01 -
Other receivable Edelweiss Rurat & Corporate Services Limited 74.40 -
Margin payable Edeiweiss Custodial Services Limited 0.24 -

1 As part of fund based activities, intergroup company loans and advances activities undertaken are generaily in the nature of revolving demand loans, Such loans and
advances, voluminous in nature, are camried on at arm’s lengil and in the ordinary course of business. Pursuant to Tnd AS 24 — Related Party Disclosures, maximum
amount of [oans given and repaid ase disclosed above as in the view of the management i provides meaningful reflection of such related party transactions on the
financial statements. Interest income and expenses on such loans and advances are disclosed on the basis of full amounts of such loans and advances given and repaid,

2 Information relating to remuneration paid to key managerial person mentioned above excludes provision made for gratuity, leave encashment, bonus and deferred
bonus which are provided for group of employees on an overall basis. These are included on cash basis, The variable compensation included herein is on cash basis.

3 The above list contain nane of only those related parties with whom the Company has undertaken transactions for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019,
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46. Leases
46.1. Transitien to Ind AS 116 on Lease

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" and applied the standard to all long-term lease contracts existing on April 1,
2019 using modified retrospective method. The Company recorded the lease liability and the right of use assets at the present value of the lease payments
discounted at the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been
retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue {0 be reported as per accounting policies included as part of our financial statement for the year

ended March 31, 2019.

Measurement of lease liability Asat April 1,2019
(a) Opening lease commitment disclosed as at March 31, 2019 23.66
(b) Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate of at the date of initial application (1.40)
(<) Short Term Lease -
(d) Low value Lease -
(e) Change in lease term under Ind AS 116 160.84
H Other adjustments (please specify) -
(g) Lease liability recognised as at 1 April 2019 183.10

The change in accounting policy affected the following items in balance sheet as on April 1, 2019

(a) Lease liability 183.10
{b) Right-of-use Asset (ROU) 164.44
{c) Deferred tax 6.52
(d) Netimpact on retained earnings as on April 1, 2019 (reduction) 12.14
46.2. Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements For the year ended
March 31,2020
Balance as at April 1,2019 164.44
Addition 1.41
Amortisation for the year {49.95)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 115.90
46.3. Sct out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements
Balance as at April 1, 2019 183.10
Additions/ reversal (net) {9.23)
Interest on lease liabilities 12.90
Repayment of lease obligation (47.45)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 139.31
46.4. Amounts recognised in profif or loss:
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 49.95
Interest expense on lease liabilities 12.90
Total 62.83
46.5. Total cash outflow for leases:
Cash outflow of long term leases 4745
Cash outflow of short term leases 1.71
Total 49.16
46.6. Details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities, ox an undiscounted basis As at
March 31, 2020
Less than 1 year 47.01
[-3 years 7794
3-5 years 20.14
More than 5 years 10.67
Total 155.76

47. Cost sharing

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, being the ultimate holding Company along with fellow subsidiaries incurs expenditure like common
senior management compensation cost, Group mediclaim, insurance, rent, electricity charges etc. which is for the common benefit of itself
and its certain subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries including the Company. This cost so expended is reimbursed by the Company on the basis
s '""_:;bauo\f\number of employees, time spent by employees of other Companies, actual identifications etc. On the same lines, employees™ costs

/,»7?:;. ‘;”n r«-«.i"?@[ nded (if any) by the Company for the benefit of fellow subsidiaries is recovered by the Company. Accordingly, and as identified by
/" Qv;‘?,‘j,f :Ll'jé‘_ ;‘magement, the expenditure heads in note 36 and 37 include reimbursements (received)/ paid and are net of reimbursements
‘[ N aid/(teceived). Based on the management’s best estimate Rs. (76.70) millions is 3 ring the year (Previous year Rs, (60.16)

mi lri:;c‘jr; ). qg&ﬁl Fi



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency :Indian rupees in millions)

48.

(@)

(b

{c)

@

Risk Management

Introduction and risk profile

The Company's overall objective is to manage its business, and the associated risks, in a manner that balances serving the interests of its
customers and investors and protects the safety and soundness of the Company.

The Company follows fotlowing for effective risk management:

1) Acceptance of responsibility, including identification and escalation of risk issues, by all individuals within the Company:
2) Ownership of risk identification, assessment. data and management within each of the lines of business and Corporate; and
3) Firmwide structures for risk governance

The Company ensure improvement through efforts to enhance controls, ongoing employee training and development and other measures.

Risk Management Structure

The Company has a risk management policy framework for risk identification, assessment and control to effectively manage risks associated
with the various business activities. The risk function is monitored primarily by the business risk group. The Company has also established a
Risk Committee that is responsible for managing the risk arising out of various business activities.

Company's risk management policy ensures that the margin requirements are able to withstand market volatility and scenarios of sharply
declining prices. The Company centralises the risk monitoring systems to monitor it's client's credit exposure which is in addition to the
monitoring undertaken by the respective businesses.

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. The board has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s
risk management policies. The Committee holds regular meetings and report to board on its activities.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and
reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its
oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
results of which are reported to the audit committee.

Risk mitigation and risk culture

The Company's business processes ensure complete independence of functions and a segregation of responsibilities. Credit appraisal & credit
control processes, centralised operations unit, independent audit unit for checking compliance with the prescribed policies and approving
loans at transaction level as well as our risk management processes and policies allow layers of multiple checks and verifications. Company's
key business processes are regularly monitored by the business and/or operation heads. Company's loan approval and administration
procedures, collection and enforcement procedures are designed to minimise delinguencies and maximise recoveries.

At all levels of operations, specifically tailored risk reports are prepared and distributed in order to ensure that all business divisions have
access to extensive, necessary and up-to-date information.

It is the Company’s policy that a monthly briefing is given to the Board of Directors and all other relevant stakeholder on the utilisation of
market limits, proprietary investments and liquidity, plus any other risk developments.

It is the Company’s policy to ensure that risk awareness is embedded in its organisational risk culture. Employees are expected to take
ownership and be accountable for the risks the Company is exposed to, that they decide to take on. The Company’s continuous training and
development emphasises that employees are made aware of the Company’s risk appetite and they are supported in their roles and
responsibilities to monitor and keep their exposure to risk within it's risk appetite limits. Compliance breaches and internal audit findings are
important elements of employees’ annual ratings and remuneration reviews.

Types of Risks

The Company's risks are generally categorized in the following risk types:

el RiskeEs s iy Exposure Avising from S|P inin T Measurement- s i T Management of visk el

Cash equivalents, trade receivabies,

- . . . . . . Credit limits and regular
Credit Risk  |financial assets measured at amortised|  Aging Analysis, Credit Ratings recit fim 54

monitoring.
cost.
. I i Availability of 1 h, it
Liquidity Risk Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow vai a.bl i y of surplus cas corr-u:n'l ted
forecasts credit lines and borrowing facilities

. L. R'e'gli'i'é} ﬁf&ﬁ_itodng to keep the exposure at
Investments in Governent Securiteis, Cash flow forecasting ST L

: f <ani ateeptable level, with option of taki
Treasury Bills, Equity Shares, Futures e s . £ ‘Tl-[’l acoeptab e‘le\fg‘; Wi op lo'n ol taking
& Options Sensitivity analysis 7 Interest Ratf.- Swgpsﬂ-‘ utures if deemed
T ;

e PITY: ©_mecessary.
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48.1. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Company's loans and trade receivables.The Company has a policy of dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral, where appropriate. as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults, In case
the loans are to be restructured, similar credit assessment process is followed by the Company.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also
considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate.

The Company manages and controls credit risk by sefting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual
counterparties/Groups (Single Borrowing Limit/Group Borrowing Limit) and for industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in
relation to such limits.

Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with the Company and market intelligence.
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.The credit quality review process aims to allow the Company to assess the
potential loss as a result of the risks to which it is exposed and take corrective actions,

(a) Impairment Assesment:

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss. The expected credit loss allowance is computed
based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information,

The expected credit loss is a product of exposure at default, probability of default and loss given default. The Company has devised an
internal model to evaluate the probability of default and loss given default based on the parameters set out in Ind AS. Accordingly, the
loans are classified into various stages as follows:

Internal rating grade Internal grading description Stages
Performing
High grade 0 dpd and ] to 30 dpd* Stage [
Standard grade 31to 90 dpd* Stage 11
Non-performing
Individually impaired 90+ dpd* Stage I11

*Days past due

(b) Expected Credit Loss

Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Expected Credit Loss (ECL) computation is
not driven by any single methodology, however methodology and approach used must reflect the following:

An unbiased and probability weighted amount that evaluates a range of possible outcomes

Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost and effort at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions;

Time value of money

While the time value of money element is currently being factored into ECL measurement while discounting cash flows by the Effective
Interest Rate (EIR), the objective of developing a macroeconomic model using exogenous magroeconomic variables (MEVs) is to address
the first two requirements. This has been achieved by using the model output to adjust the PD risk component in order to make it forward
looking and probability-weighted.

(¢) Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

Company considers a financial instrument defaulted, classified as Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations, in all cases when the

borrower becomes 90 days past due. Classification of assets form stage T to stage 2 has been carried out based on SICR criterion. Accounts

wi-uch are more than 30 days past due have been identified as accounts where significant increase in credit risk has been observed. These

x’f” Y \ 4 f-j i,q.i,‘B ts have been classified as Stage 2 assets. When such events oceur, the Company carefully considers whether the event should result
Zr;%? : 1rr\tf’é? ﬁg the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL caleulations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.

1""1
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48.1. Credit Risk

(d) Probability of Default

Probability of default (PD) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. PD estimation process is done based on
historical internal data available with the Company. While arriving at the PD, the Company also ensures that the factors that affects the
macro economic trends are considered to a reasonable extent, wherever necessary, Company calculates the 12 month PD by taking into
account the past historical trends of the Loans/portfolio and its credit performance. In case of assets where there is a significant increase in
credit risk / credit impaired assets, lifetime PD has been applied.

(e) Loss Given Default (LGI)

The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among other attributes, the mitigating
effect of collateral value at the time it is expecied to be realised and the time value of money. The Loss Given Default (1.GD) has been
computed with workout methodology. Along with actual recoveries, value of the underlying collateral has been factored in to estimate
future recoveries in LGD computation. Workout LGD computation involves the actual recoveries as well as future recoveries {as a part of
the workout process) on a particular facility, as a percentage of balance outstanding at the time of Default/Restructuring. The assessment of
workout LGD was then performed. Principal outstanding each loan was assessed, which went into the denominator of the LGD calculation.
LGD computation has been done for each segment and sub-segment separately.

{H Exposure at Default (EAD)

The amount which the borrower will owe to the portfolio at the time of default is defined as Exposure at Default (EAD). While the drawn
credit line reflects the explicit exposure for the Company, there might be variable exposure that may increase the EAD. These exposures are
of the nature where the Company provides future commitments, in addition to the current credit. Therefore, the exposure will contain both
on and off balance sheet values. The value of exposure is given by the following formula:

EAD == Drawn Credit Line + Credit Conversion Factor * Undrawn Credit Line
Where,
Drawn Credit Line = Current outstanding amount
Credit Conversion Factor (CCF) = Expected future drawdown as a proportion of undrawn amount

Undrawn Credit Line = Difference between the total amount which the Company has committed and the drawn credit line While the
drawn exposure and limits for the customer are available, the modelling of CCF is required for computing the EAD

(g) Forward looking adjustments

“A measure of ECL is an unbiased probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes and using
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.”

The Company has incorporated forward looking information into its measurement of ECL. The objective of developing a macroeconomic
model using exogenous macroeconomic variables (MEVs) is to address the requirements of unbiased, probability weighted outcomes while
taking into account current conditions as well as future economic conditions. This will be achieved by using the model output to adjust the
PD risk component in order to make it forward looking and probability-weighted.

Exogenous macroeconomic parameters were used as independent (X) variables to predict the dependent (Y) variable. The Company
formulates base case view of the future direction of relevant economic variable as well as a representative range of other possible forecast
scenario. This involves developing two or more additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of each outcome.

(h) Data sourcing

The Company ensure to obtain reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effori. Accordingly,
macroeconomic information was aggregated from Economic Intelligence Unit (EIU), Bloomberg, World Bank, RBI database. The Eit} data
has a database of around 150 macroeconomic variables as well as their forecasted values. Beyond 2022 macro-cconomic variables are
o forecasted by mean reverting the values to theu- long term average. Externai mformanon includes economic data and forecasts published by
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48.1. Credit Risk

(i} Probability weighted scenario creations:

To incorporate macroeconomic impact into probability-weighted, each scenario has an associated probability. These probabilities were
calculated at an overall level for both Retail and Non-Retail portfolios, considering the impact of a scenario across different portfolios may
differ based on endogenous factors, the probability of a scenario unfolding is purely exogenous, and hence should not vary.

The Company has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial instruments and

using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationship between marco-economic variables and credit risk and credit losses,

Predicted relationship between the key indicators and default and loss rates on various portfolios of financial assess have been developed
based on analysing historical data over the past 5 years.
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48.1. Credit Risk
48.1.1. Analysis of risk concentration
The following table shows the risk concentration by industry for the components of the balance sheet. Additional disclosures for

credit quality and the maximum exposure for credit risk per categories based on the Company’s internal credit assessment system and
year-end stage classification are further disclosed in Note 12.

Industry analysis

As at March 31, 2020 Financial services Retail Construction Wholesale Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalent 2,983.54 - - - 2,983.54
and other bank balances
Stock in trade 142.02 - - 142.02
Trade receivables 12.47 - - - 12.47
Loans 2,217.07 8,425.35 338.54 4,663.03 15,643.99
Investments - 471.23 - 471.23
Other financial assets 158.77 - - - 158.77
5,513.87 8,896.58 338.54 4,663.03 19.412.02
Loan Commitments - - 155.16 - 155.16
Total 5,513.87 8,896.58 493.70 4,663.03 19,567.18
As at March 31, 2019 Financial services Retail Construction Wholesale Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalent 5,408.05 - - - 5,408.05
and other bank balances
Stock in trade - - - -
Trade receivables 2477 - - - 2477
Loans - 17,550.28 1,066.14 - 18,616.42
Investments - - - -
Other non financial assets 90.11 - - - 90.11
5,522.93 17,550.28 1,066.14 - 24,139.35
Loan Commitments - (.88 245,26 - 246.14
Total 5,522.93 17.551.16 1,311.40 - 24,385.49
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48.1. Credit Risk

48.1.2. Collateral held and other eredit enhancements

(a) The tables on the following pages show the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset along with details of principal
type of collateral:

Maximum exposure to eredit risk (carrying Principal type of collateral
amount before ECL)
As at Asat
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Financial assets
Loans (at amortised cost)
(i) Retail loans 7,932.69 12,945.93 Property; book receivables
(ii) Wholesale loans 2.809.43 - Property: book receivables
Total {A) 10,742.12 12,845.93
Loan commitments 155.16 246.14 Property; book receivables
Total (B) 155.16 246.14
Total (A + B) 10,897.28 13,192.07

(b) Financial assets that are stage 3 and related collateral held in order to mitigate potential losses are given below:

As at March 31,2020
Maximum exposure to Associated ECL Carrying amount Fair value of
credit risk (carrying collateral
amount before ECL)
Financial asscts
Loans (at amortised cost)
(i) Retail loans 282.33 62.66 219.67 368.71
{ii) Wholesale loans 99.05 12.54 86.51 130.00
Total (A) 381.38 75.20 306.18 498.71
Loan commitments - - - -
Total (B) - - - -
Total (A +B) 381.38 75.20 306.18 498.71
As at March 31. 2019

Financial assets

Loans (at amortised cost)
(i) Retail loans 598.40 §6.31 512.09 615.16
(ii) Wholesale loans - - - “

Total (A) 598.40 86.31 512.09 615.16

Loan commitments - - . -

Total (B) N ) n -
y 508.40 8631 512.09 615.16
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48.1.

Credit Risk

48.1.3. Overview of modified and forborne loans

48.1.4.

48.1.5.

The table below includes assets that were modified and, therefore,
related modification gain / (loss) suffered by the Company.

Particulars

Amortised costs of financial assets modified during the year
Net modification gain / (loss)

treated as forborne during the year, with the

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

73.68 64.94
321 1.09

Allowance for expected credit loss on securitisation portfolio is Rs. 0.11 millions as at March 31, 2020 (Previous

year Rs. 1.19 millions).
TFransfer of financial assets

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety

The folowing tables provide a summary of financial assets that have been transferred in such 2 way that part or all
of the transferred financial assets do not qualify for derecognition, together with the associated liabilities.

Securitisations

Carrying amount of transferred assets
(held as Collateral)

Carrying amount of associated liabilities

Fair value of assets

Fair value of associated liabilities

As at Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

583.48 -

449.55 -
574.06 -
449,55 -
124.52 -
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Edelweciss Retail Firance Limited
Notes to financial statements
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

48.2. Liquidity Risk

48.2.3. Financial assets available to support future funding

1

Following table sets out availability of company's financial assets to support funding

As at March 31, 2020

Cash and cash equivalent
including bank balance

Stock in trade

Trade receivables

Loans

Investments

Property, Plant and Equipment
Other financial assets

Total assets

As at March 31, 2019

Cash and cash equivalent
including bank balance

Trade receivables

Loans

Investments

Property, Plant and Equipment
Other financial assets

Total assets

Encumbered Unencumbered
Pledge as Contractually/ Available as others ® Total carrying
collateral legally restricted collateral amount
assets '
1,871.27 - 1,112.27 - 2,983.54
- - 142.02 - 142.02
- - 12.47 - 12,47
12,681.18 2,962.81 - 15,643.99
- 471.23 - 471.23
0.37 - - 0.37
14,552.82 3,434.04 1,266.76 19,253.62
Encumbered Unencumbered
Pledge as Contractually/ Available as others 2 Total carrying
collateral legally restricted collateral amount
assets
712.28 - 4,695.77 5,408.05
- - 24,77 24.77
18,616.42 - - 18,616.42
0.37 - - 0.37
19,329.07 - 4,720.54 - 24,049.61

Represents assets which are not pledged and Group believes it is restricted from using to secure funding for legal or other
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48.3. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk associated with the effect of changes in market factors such as interest rates, equity prices, credit spreads or implied
volatilities, on the value of assets and liabilities held resulting in loss of future earnings. The objective of the Company's market risk
management is lo manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters. The Company separates its exposure o market
risks between trading and non-trading portfolios.

Exposure to market risk — Non trading portfolios

Interest rate risk - The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash flows
or fair values of financial instrumenis because of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed principally through
monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved limits for repricing bands.

ALCO is the monitoring body for compliance with these limits. ALCO reviews the interest rate gap statement and the mix of fleating and
fixed rate assets and liabilities. Balance Sheet Management Unit is in-charge for day to day management of interest rate risk.

48.3.1 Total market risk exposure

The fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates. The
Company classifies its exposures to market risk into non—trading portfolios.

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31,2019
. Primary risk
Particulars Carrying  Traded risk Non-traded Carrying Traded risk  Non-traded sensitivity
amount risk amount risk
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent and other 2,983.54 - 2,983.54 5,408.05 - 540805 Interestrate
bank balances
Stock in trade 142.02 142.02 - - - - Interest rate
Loans 15,643.99 - 15,643.99 18,616.42 - 18,616.42 Interestrate
Investments 471.23 - 471.23 - - - Interest rate
Trade receivables 12,47 - 12.47 2477 - 24.77
Other financial assets 158.77 - 158.77 90.12 - 90.12
Total 19,412.02 142.02 19,270.00 24,139.36 - 24,139.36
Financial Liability
Debt securities 4,939.06 - 4,939.06 4,909.92 - 4,909.92  Interest rate
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 7,499.12 - 7,499.12 12,461.50 - 12,461.50 Inferest rate
Subordinated Liabilities 2,089.06 - 2,089.06 2,060.80 - 2,060.80  Interest rate
Trade payables 68.6% - 68.69 268.37 - 268.37
Other labilities 629,11 - 629,11 246 - 246

15,225.04 - 15,225.04 19,703.05 - 19,703.05




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

48,3, Market Risk
48.3.2 Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows of financial instruments. The

sensitivity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the profit or loss for a year, based
on the floating rate non—trading financial assets and financial liabilities held as at year end.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being constant) of
the Company’s statement of profit and loss and equity.

Increase/ Increase in profit Pecrease in profit Increase in {Decrease) in
For the year ended {Decrease) in after tax after tax Equity Equity
basis points
INR Loans
March 31, 2020 25/25) 13.49 (13.49) 13.49 (13.4%)
March 31, 2019 25/(25) 18.22 (18.22) 18.22 (18.22)

INR Borroiwngs

March 31, 2020 25/425) (14.03) 14.03 (14.03) 14.03
Mareh 31, 2019 25/25) {20.21) 20.21 (20.21) 20.21
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49.1. Fair Value measurement:
A, Valuation principles

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (Le., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using a valuation technique. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on
a hierarchy of valuation techniques:

Level 1 — valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets that
company can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 — valuation fechnique using observable inputs:Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly
or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 ~ valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the
measurement as whole,

Refer note 3.11 for more details on fair value hierarchy
B. Valuation governance framework

The Company's fair value methodology and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to ensure appropriate
safeguards are in place to ensure its quality and adequacy. All new product initiatives (including their valuation methodologies) are subject to
approvals by various functions of the Company including the risk and finance functions.

Where fair values are determined by reference to externally quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to models, independent price determination or
validation is used. For inactive markets, Company sources alternative market information, with greater weight given to information that is considered
to be more relevant and reliable.

The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions. However finance department is also responsible for
establishing procedures governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in compliance with accounting standards.

C, The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy

As at March 31, 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair valac on a recurring basis

Financial Assets held for trading
Other debt securities 142,02 - - 142.02

Total financial instruments measured at fair value - A 142,02 - - 142.02

Other financial assefs

Security receipts - - 471.23 471.23
Total financial instruments measured at fair value - B - - 471.23 471.23
Total (A+B) 142.02 - 471.23 613.25
AsatMarch 31,2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Financial Assets held for trading
Other debt securities - . . -

Total financial instruments measured at fair value - A - - - -

Other financial assets
Security receipts - - - R
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49.1. Fair Value measurcment:

D.

Valuation techniques:

Debt securities

Whilst most of these instruments are standard fixed rate securities, however nifty finked debentures have embedded derivative characteristics, Fair
value of these instruments is derived based on the indicative quotes of price and yields prevailing in the market as at the reporting date. Company has
used quoted price of national stock exchange wherever bonds are traded actively. In cases where debt securities are not activity traded Company has
used CRISIL Corporate Bond Valuer model for measuring fair value.

Security receipts

The market for these securities is not active. Therefore, the Company uses valuation techniques to measure their fair values. Since the security receipts
are less liquid instruments therefore they are valued by discounted cash flow models. Expected cash flow [evels are estimated by using quantitative
and qualitative measures regarding the characteristics of the underlying assets including prepayment rates, default rates and other economic drivers.
Securities receipts with significant unobservable valuation inputs are classified as Level 3

There have beea no transfers between levels during the year ended March 31, 2620 and March 31, 2019,

The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening balances and the closing balances for fair value measurements in
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Financial year ended March 2020 Security receipts Total
Investiments - at April 1, 2019 - -
Purchase 501.84 501.84
Sale/Redemption proceeds (30.61) 3061
Profit for the year recognised in profit or loss - -

Investments - at March 31,2020 471,23 471.23

Unrealised gain/(Loss) related to balances held at the end of the year - -

Financial year ended March 2019 Security receipis Total
Investments - at April 1, 2018 - -
Purchase - i
Sale/Redemption proceeds - -
Profit for the year recognised in profit or loss - -

Investments - at March 31, 2019 - -

Unrealised gain/{Loss) related to balances held at the end of the year - -
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

49.2, Financial instruments nof measured at fair value

The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value and analysing them by the level in the fair value hierarchy
into which each fair value measurement is categorised.

As on March 31, 2020 Total Carrying Total fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Amount

Financial assets

Loans 15,643.99 15,987.45 - - 15,987.45

Total 15,643.9% 15,987.45 - - 15,987.45

Financial labilities

Debt securities 4,935.06 5,274.18 - 5,274.18 -
Subordinated liabilities 2,085.06 2,125.16 - 2,125.16 -
Total 7,028.12 7.399.33 - 7,399.33 -
As on March 31. 2019

Financial assets:

Loans 18,616.42 19,138.61 - - 19,138.61
Total 18,616.42 19,138.61 - - 19.138.61

Financial liabilities”

Debt securities 4,909.92 5,031.92 - 5,031.92 -
Suberdinated Habilities 2,060.80 2,125.16 - 2,125.16 -
Total 6,970.72 7.157.08 - 7.1537.08 -

Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and
measured at fair value in the Company's financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The below
methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables and, as such, may differ from the techniques and
assumptions explained in notes.

Short term financial assets and liabilities

For financial assets and financiai liabilities that have a short-term maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying amounts are a reasenable

approximation of their fair value. Such instruments include: Trade receivables, trade payables and contract liability without a specific

maturity. Such amounts have been classified as Level 2 on the basis that no adjustments have been made to the balances in the balance sheet.
__Cash and cash equivalent and Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents have been classified as Level 1.
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
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49.2. Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Financial asscts at amortised cost

The fair values of financial assets measured at amortised cost are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash
flows using actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields incorporating the counterparties” credit risk. In case of floating interest rate
[inked loans, since such loans are subject to repricing periodically (less than twelve months), with the interest rate reflecting current market
price. Hence carrying value of loans is deemed to be equivalent of fair value.

Issued debt
The fair value of issued debt is estimated by a discounted cash flow model incorporating the Company's own credit risk.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
The fair values of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual
cash flows using actval or estimated yields and discounting by yields. In case of floating interest rate linked borrowings, since such
borrowings are subject to repricing periodically (less than twelve months), with the interest rate reflecting current market price. Hence
carrying value of such borrowings is deemed to be equivalent of fair value.
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
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30. Trade receivables

Provision matrix for Trade receivables

more than

Particutars Trade receivables days past due 1-9¢days 91-180 days 181-360 days 360 days Total

ECL rate 0.27% 1.79% 17.88% 160.00%

As at Estimated total gross carrying amount at default 10.78 1.35 0.48 - 12.61

March 31, 2020  ECL - Simplified approach (0.03) (0.02) {0.09) - (6.14)
Net carrying amount 10.75 1.33 0.39 - 1247

Asat Estimated total gross carrying amount at default 23.94 0.15 0.44 0.62 2515

March 31,2019  ECL - Simplified approach 0.38) (0.38)

Net carrying amount 23.94 0.15 0.44 0.24 24.77




Edelweiss Refail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
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S1. Details of the loan taken from Banks and other parties

Nature of Security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings
All Secured long term borrowings are secured by way of hypothecation of receivables i.c.Joans & advances.

(a) Details of term loan taken from Banks (excluding of Interest acerued on Term loans and EIR impact)

As at March 31 2020

Rate of Inerest
Month of Maturity/Repayment 1o 00r 00.99%  |10.00% to 10.99%  |Grand Total
December-22 62.50 140.61 203.11
September-22 209.38 140.63 356.00
July-22 - 3i.25 31.25
June-22 209.33 140.63 350.00
May-22 18.75 - 18.75
April-22 17.86 31.25 49.11
March-22 209.38 171.88 381.25
February-22 18.75 - 18.75
January-22 17.86 31.25 49.11
December-21 209.38 171.88 381.25
November-21 18.75 - 18.75
Cctober-21 17.86 31.25 49.11
September-21 209.38 171.88 381.25
August-21 18.75 - 18.75
July-21 17.86 31.25 49.11
June-21 209.38 171.88 381.25
May-21 18.75 - 18.75
April-21 17.86 31.25 49.11
March-21 361.16 171.88 533.03
February-21 18.75 - 18.75
January-21 17.86 31.25 49.11
December-20 451,68 171.88 623.55
November-20 18.75 - 18.75
October-20 17.86 3525 49.11
September-20 556.28 171.88 728.15
August-20 18.75 - 18.75
July-20 17.86 31.25 49.11
June-20 556.28 171.88 728.15
May-20 18,75 - 18.75
April-20 17.86 31.25 49.11
Total 3.573.60 2,109.36 5,682.96
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency :Indian rupees in miflions)

51,

@)

Details of the loan taken from Banks and ether parties

Nature of Sccurity and terms of repayment for secured borrowings
All Secured Iong term borrowings are secured by way of hypothecation of receivables i.e.loans & advances.

Details of term loan taken from Banks (excluding of Interest accrued on Term loans and EIR impact) {(continued)

As at March 31 201%

Month of Maturity/Repayment

Rate of Inerest

8.00%-8.9%% 9.00% to 9.99% 10.00% to 10.99%  [Grand Total
December-22 - 139.50 62.49 201,99
September-22 - 287.58 62.50 350.068
July-22 31.25 - - 31.25
June-22 - 287.58 62.50 350.08
May-22 - 18.75 - 18.75
April-22 3125 17.86 - 49.11
March-22 31.25 287.58 62.50 381.33
February-22 - 18.75 - 18.75
January-22 31.25 17.86 - 49.11
December-21 31.25 287.58 62.50 38133
November-21 - 18.75 - 18.75
October-21 31.25 17.86 - 49.11
September-21 31.25 287.58 62.50 381.33
August-21 - 18.75 - [8.75
July-21 3125 17.86 - 4911
June-21 3125 287.58 62.50 38133
May-21 - 18.75 - 18.75
April-21 31.25 17.86 - 49.11
March-21 31.25 439.36 62.50 333.11
February-21 - 18.75 - 18.75
January-21 31.25 17.86 - 49.11
December-20 31.25 486.29 106.09 623.63
November-20 - i8.75 - i8.75
October-20 31.25 17.86 - 49.11
September-20 72.92 587.60 109.38 769.89
August-2{ - 18.75 - i8.75
July-20 3125 17.86 - 49.11
June-20 72.92 587.60 109.38 76%.89
May-20 - 18.75 - 18.75
April-20 64.58 17.86 - 82.44
March-20 7292 587.60 109.38 769.89
February-20 - 18.75 - 18.75
January-20 64.58 i7.86 - 82.44
December-19 72.92 587.60 109.38 769.89
November-1% - 18.75 - 18.75
October-19 64.58 17.86 - 82.44
September-19 7292 587.60 109.38 769.89
August-19 - 18.75 - 18.75
July-19 64.58 17.86 - 82.44
June-19 72.92 587.60 109.38 769.89
- 18.75 - 18.75
64.58 17.86 - 82.44
1,229.17 6,792.09 1,262.33 9,283.58
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(Currency :Indian rupees in millions)

51.  Details of the foan taken from Banks and other parties
Nature of Security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings
All Secured long term borrowings are secured by way of hypothecation of receivables i.c.loans & advances,

(6] Details of term loan faken from SIDBI (excluding of Interest accrued on Term loans and EIR impact)
As at March 31 2020
Month of Maturity/Repayment Rate of Inerest

10.00% to 10.99%  JGrand Fotal

March-23 52.50 52.50
December-22 52.50 52.50
Sepfember-22 52.50 52.50
June-22 52.50 52.50
Aprii-22 89.00 89.00
March-22 52.50 32,50
January-22 83.00 §3.00
December-21 52.50 52.50
October-21 83.00 83.00
September-21 52.50 52.50
July-21 83.00 83.00
June-21 52.50 52.50
April-21 83.00 83.00
March-21 52,50 52.50
January-21 83.00 33.00
December-20 52,50 52.50
October-20 83.00 83.00
September-20 52.50 52.50
July-20 83.00 83.00
June-20 52.50 52.50
April-20 83.00 83.60
Total 1,383.00 1,383.00

(b) Deetails of term loan taken from SIDBI {excluding of interest accrued on Term loans and EIR impact) {continued)

As at March 312019

Month of Maturity/Repayment

Rate of Inerest

s Total

<=0.99% 10.00% t0 10.99% _ |Grand Total
Mar-2023 - 52.50 52.30
Dec-2022 - 52.50 52.50
Sep-2022 - 52.50 52.50
Jun-2022 . 52.50 52.50
Apr-2022 89.00 - £9.00
Mar-2022 . 52.50 52,50
Jan-2022 $3.00 . $3.00
Dec-2021 - 52.50 52.50
Oct-2021 83.00 - 83.00
Sep-2021 - 52.50 52.50
Jul-2021 $3.00 . 83.00
Jun-2021 - 52.50 52.50
Apr-2021 $3.00 - 83.00
Mar-2021 . 52,50 52.50
Jan-2021 $3.00 - 83.00
Dec-2020 . 52.50 52.50
Oct-2020 $3.00 - 83.00
Sep-2020 - 52.50 52.50
Jul-2020 83.00 . 83.00
Jun-2020 - 52,50 52.50
Apr-2020 83.00 . 83.00
Mar-2020 - 52,50 52.50
Jan-2020 $3.00 - 83.00
Dee-2019 . 52.50 52.50
Oct-2019 £3.00 . $3.00
Sep-2019 . 52.50 52.50
1ul-2019 83.00 - $3.00
Jun-2019 - 52.50 52.50
Apr-2019 83.00 - 83.00

1,085.00 £40.00 1,925.00
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52 Repayment terms of Secured Non-convertibie Debentures are as follow.

53.

54,

o

The debentures are secured by way of pari passu charge on an immovable property and standard loan assets fo the extent of 100% of the
owtstanding amount of the debentures, unless otherwise stated.

As at March 31 2020

Description of Secured Redeemabie Non

Convertible Debentures (NCD)
ERFL/Public NCD/Series V1
ERFL/Public NCD/Series V
ERFL/Public NCD/Series IV
ERFL/Public NCD/Series 11T
ERFL/NCD/0TNov22
ERFL/NCD/ 29Jui2l
ERFL/Public NCD/Series 1}
ERFL/Public NCD/Series 1

As at March 312019
Description of Secured Redeemable Non
Convertible Debentures (NCD)
ERFL/Public NCD/Series VI
ERFL/Public NCD/Series V
ERFL/Public NCD/Series IV
ERFL/Public NCD/Series HF
ERFL/NCD/07Nov22
ERFL/NCD/ 29Jul21
ERFL/Public NCD/Series [l
ERFL/Public NCDV/Series |

Rate

9.25%
8.88%
9.60%
8.65%
8.50%
0.60%
8.75%
8.42%

Rate

9.25%
8.88%
9.00%
8.65%
8.50%
0.00%
8.75%
8.42%

Issu¢ Date

22-Mar-2018
22-Mar-2018
22-Mar-201%8
22-Mar-2018
F7-Nov=2017
03-Aug-2018
22-Mar-2018
22-Mar-2018

Issue Date

22-Mar-2018
22-Mar-2018
22-Mar-2018
22-Mar-2018
07-Nov-2017
03-Aug-2018
22-Mar-2018
22-Mar-2018

*Excinding of Interest acerued on Term loans and EIR fmpact

Redemption Dage

22-Mar-2028
22-Mar-2028
22-Mar-2023
22-Mar-2023
07-Nov-2022
29-Jul-2021
22-Mar-2021
22-Mar-2021

Redemption Date

22-Mar-2028
22-Mar-2028
22-Mar-2023
22-Mar-2023
07-Nov-2022
20-Jul-2021
22-Mar-2021
22-Mar-2021

No. of NCDs

4,83,173
4,09,205
¢,39,638
2,34,347
1,000

100
18,79,450
1,63,967

No. of NCDs

483,173
4,09,205
6,39,638
2,34 347

1,000
100

18,79,450

1,63.967

Repayment terms of Unsecured non-convertible redeemable subordinate debentures are as follow.

As at March 31 2020

ISIN rumber

INE528508043
INES28S08035
INES28508027
INE52850801%

AsatMarch 312019

ISIN number

INE528508043
INE528508035
INE528508027
INE528508019

Rate
9.25%
9.25%
9.95%
0.00%

Rate
9.25%
9.25%
9.95%
0.00%

Issue Date
06-Oct-2017
31-Jul-2017
14-Oct-2016

25-May-2015

Issue Date
06-0ct-2017
31-Jul-2047
10-0Oect-2016

25-May-2013

*Excluding of Interest accrued on Term loans and EIR impact

Redemption Date

06-Oet-2027
31-Jui-2027

09-Oct-2026
26-May-2025

Redemption Date
06-Oct-2027
31-Jul-2027
09-Oct-2026
26-May-2025

No. of NCDs
1,000
240
120
140

No, of NCDs
1,000
240
120
140

Repayment terms of Unsecured non-convertible redeemable perpetnal debentures are as follow.

As at March 312020

ISIN number
INE5285080650
INE528508068

Asat March 312019

_ISIN number

= SINES28508050

£

CE528508068
\“;‘:f:’?\“
~ 75

i
)
/)

Rate
9.75%

10.00%

Rate
9.75%

10.00%

Issue Date
26-Dec-2037
07-Feh-2018

Issue Date
26-Dec-2017
07-Feb-2018

* x&ﬁfaing of Interest accrued on Term loans and EIR impact

Redemption Date

Perpetual
Perpetual

Redemption Date

Perpetual
Perpetual

No. of NCDs
200
250

No. of NCDs
200

Amount*®

483.17
409.21
639.64
234.35
1,000.00
160.00
1,879.45
163.97
4,909.78

Amount*

483.17
409.21
639.64
234.35
1,000.00
100.00
1,879.45
163.97
4,909.78

Amount*
1,600.00
240.00
120,00
140.00
1,500.00

Amount*
1,600.00
240.00
120.00
140.00
1,500.00

Amount*
200.00
250.00
450.00

Amount*
200.00
250.00
450.00
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35,

(a

S

(b)

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally

imposed capital requirements from its regulators and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and to maximise shareholder value.

The Pillars of its policy are as follows:

a) Maintain diversity of sources of financing and spreading the maturity across tenure buckels in order to minimize Hquidity risk.

b) Maintain investment grade ratings for all its liabilities issuances domestically and internationally by ensuring that the financial
strength of their balance sheets are preserved.

¢} Manage financial market risks arising from Interest rate, equity prices and minimise the impact of market volatility on earnings.

d) Leverage optimally in order to maximise sharcholder returns while maintaining strength and flexibility of balance sheet.

This framework is adjusted based on underlying macro-economic factors affecting business environment, financial market conditions
and interest rates environment

Regulatory Capital

The below regulatory capital is computed in accordance with RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 - Master Direction DNBR. PD.
008/03.10.119/2016-17  September 01, 2016 (updated time to time) read with RBI2019-20/170 DOR
(NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 - Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards dated March 13, 2020 issued by
Reserve Bank of India on Ind AS financial statements.

As at Asat

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Capital Funds

Commeon Equity Tierl (CET1) capital 2,906.41 4,861.75

Other Tier 2 capital instruments (CET2) 1,421.71 1,748.32

Total capital 4,328.12 6,610.07

Risk weighted assets 14,733.08 19,513.24

CET1 Capital ratio 19.73% 24.92%

; 9.65% 8.96%

~ Tota "'(-:-;{pitaf ratio 29.38% 33.87%
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56.

0

(i)

i)

Regulatory Disclosures

Foreign currency

The Company has not undertaken any foreign currency transaction during the year ended March 31, 2020 (Previous year: Rs Nil).

Investinents
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2020 March 3E, 2019
Value of Investments
(i) Gross value of Investments
{a) In India 471.23 Nii
(b} Outside India - Nil
(ii) Provisions for Depreciation
(a) In India - Nil
{b) Outside India - Nil
(iii) Net value of Investments
(a) In India 471.23 Nil
{b) Outside India - Nil
Movement of provisions held tewards depreciation on investments
(3] Opening balance - Nil
(i) Add: Provisions made during the year - Nil
(iii) Less: Write-off / Written-bank of excess provisions during - Nil
the year
(iv) Closing balance - Nil
Derivatives
(a) Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap
S.No. Particul As at Asat
artieutars March 31,2020]  March 31,2019
(6] The notional principal of swap agreements Nil Nil
(i) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to Nil Nil
fulfill their obligations under the agreements
(iii) Collateral required by the applicable NBFC upon entering Nil Nil
into swaps
(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps § Nil Nil
{v) The fair value of the swap book @ Nil Nil

Note: Nature and terms of the swaps including information
on credit and market risk and the accounting policies
adopted for recording the swaps should also be disclosed.

$ Examples of concentration could be exposures fo particular
industries or swaps with highly geared companies.

@ If the swaps are linked to specific assets, liabilities, or
commitments, the fair value would be the estimated amount
that the applicable NBFC would receive or pay to terminate
the swap agreements as on the balance sheet date.
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56. Regualatory Disclosures

(b) Exchange Traded Intercest Rate (ER) Derivatives

S.No. Particulars Amount

(1) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR
derivatives undertaken during the year {instrumentwise)

a) Nil
(ii} Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives
outstanding as on March 31, 2020 (instrument-wise)

a) Nil
(itd) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR
derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective”
(instrument-wise)

a} Nil
(iv} Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives
outstanding and nat "highly effective” (instrument-wise)

a) Nil

{c) Qualitative Disclosures

The Company has a process whereby perindically all long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Company has
reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law / aceounting standards for material foreseeable Iosses on such long term contracts
has been made in the books of account. The Company has not entered into any derivative contracts during the year. (Previous year Rs. Nil)

(d) Quantitative Disclosures

Sr. No Particular Current Derivatives Interest Rate
Derivatives
(i) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount) Nil Nil
For hedging Nil Nil
(i) Marked to Market Positions [1] Nil Nil
a) Asset (+) Nil Nil
b) Liability (-} Nil Nil
(iif) Credit Exposure [2] Nil Nil
{iv) Unhedged Exposures Nil Nil

(iv)  Asset liability management
Maturity pattera of certain items of assets and liabilities

As at March 31,2020
Buckets Deposits Advances  Investments Borrowings Foreign Currency Foreign Currency
Assets Assets

1 day to 7 days - 375.73 - - - -
8 day to 14 days - 37.17 - - - -
15 days te 33/31 days (One month) - 72.80 - 204.28 - -
Over | month vpto 2 months - 201.07 - 18.75 - -
Over 2 months upto 3 months - 420,68 - 780.65 - -
Over 3 months upto 6 months - 2,928.79 - 946.37 - -
Over 6 months upto 1 year - 4,228.73 - 4.105.83 - -
Over | year upto 3 years - 3,188.33 - 5.613.64 - -
Over 3 years upto 5 years - [,109.40 - - - -
Over § years - 348410 471.23 2,8571.72 - -

- 16,136.80 471.23 14,527.24 - -
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56. Regulatory Disclosures

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities

Asat March 31, 2019
Buckets Deposits Advances  Investments Borrowings Forcign Currency  Foreign Currency
Assets Assets
1 day to 7 days - - - - - -
8 day to 14 days - 1,087.83 - 83.52 - B
15 days to 30/31 days (One month) - i70.25 - 125.50 - -
Over 1 month upto 2 months - 676.11 - 25.01 - -
Over 2 months upto 3 months - 75048 - 822.39 - -
Over 3 months upto 6 months - 1,924.38 - 1,02L.35 - -
Over 6 months upto 1 year - 3.391.09 - 3,341.88 - -
Over 1 year upto 3 years - 3,304.94 - §,028.67 - -
Over 3 years upto 5 years - 1,852.43 - 3,17541 - -
Over 5 years - 5,920.08 - 2,808.49 - -
Total - 19,078.69 - 19,432.22 - -
(v)  Capital to risk assets ratio (CRAR)}
As at Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1§ CRAR (%) 29.38% 33.87%
i) CRAR - Tier ] capital (%) 19.73% 24.92%
iif) CRAR - Tier Il Capital (%6) 9.65% 8.96%
iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-1I capital - -
v} Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments - -

{vi) Direct assignment & Securitisation

(a) Disclosures in the notes to the accounts in respect of securitisation transactions as required under revised guidelines on securitization
fransactions issued by RBI vide circular no.DNBS. PD.No.301/3.10.01/2012-13 dated August 21,2012

As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
1 No. of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions 3 3
2 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored by 635.12 68.22
the NBFC
3 Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as
on the date of balance sheet 466.87 24330
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
- First loss 158.66 24330
- Others - -
b) Qn-balance sheet exposures
- First loss 171.23 -
- Gthers 136.98 -
4 Amount of exposures to assignment transactions other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposures - -
i) Exposure to own securitisations - -
- First loss
- Others - -
ii) Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss - -
- Others - -
b} On-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss - -
- Others - -
ii} Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss - -
- Others - -

*Qnly the SPVs relating o outstanding securitisation transactions may be reported here
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56. Regulatory Disclosures

(b) Disclosures in the notes to the accounts in respect of assignment transactions

{©)

@

®

As at Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
No. of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for assignment transactions 4 6
Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored by 554.87 950.17
the NBFC
Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as 61.80 105,57
on the date of balance sheet
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
- First loss - -
- Others - -
b) On-balance sheet exposures
- First loss - -
- Others 61.80 105.57
Amount of exposures to assignment transactions other than MRR - -
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss - -
- Others - -
i1} Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss - -
- Others - -
b} On-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss - -
- Others - -
ii) Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss - -
- Others - -
Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
i) No. of accounts 51 Nil
i) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC 812.28 Nil
iii) Agpregate consideration 695.38 Nil
iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in
earlier years 0.00 Nil
v) Agpregate gain / 10ss over net book value (116.20) Nil
Details of Assignment transactions undertaken
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
i) No. of accounts Nil 38.00
if) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold 10 SC/ Nil 442,06
RC
ii) Aggregate consideration Nil 442 06
iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts Nil -
transferred in earlier years
v} Aggrepate gain / loss over net book valug Nil 20.69

Details of Securitization transactions undertaken

i) No. of accounts
ii} Aggregale value (net of provisions) of accounts sold
i} Aggregate consideration

Additional consideration realized in respect
Apgregate gain / loss over net book value

For the year ended
March 31, 2020
2,045
1,712.29
1,575.30

For the year ended
March 31, 2019
Nil
Nit
Nil
Nil
Nil




Edelweiss Retail Finanee Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continned)
(Currency :Indian rupees in Million)

56.
(viy

(vip)

Regulatory Disclosures

Details of non-performing financials assets purchased / sold

During the year the Company has nat purchased non-perfonning financials assets. {Previous year : Nif)

A.__Details of Non performing financial assets parchased:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particul
ariesars March 31, 2020 Merch 31, 2019
(2) No. of accounts purchased during the year Nil Nil
{b) Apgregate outstanding Nil Nit
(a) Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year Nil Nil
{b} Apgregate outstanding Nil il
B, Detnils of Non perfonning financial assets Sold:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2020 March 31, 2019,
No. of accounts sold 51 Nif
Aggregate outstanding $12.28 Nit
Agpgrepate consideration received 695,38 Nil
Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect & exposure to capital market
o) Exposure to real extate sector, both direct and indirect
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
A. Direct exposure
(i} Residential mortgages -
Lending fully secured by morpages on residemtial property that is or will be 2,948.3% 4,442.93
occupied by the borrower or that is rented
(i1) Commercial real estate -
Lending secured by mortgapges on commercial real cstates (office buildings, retail 6,943.21 8,606,20
space, muktipurpese comemercial premises, multi-farmily residential buildings, mulei-
tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warchouse space, hotels, land
acquisition, development and construction, ¢tc).
Investments in Mortgage Backed Sceuritics (MBS) and other securitised exposures -
- Residensial - -
- Comnercial real estate - -
B. Indirect exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and - -
Housinp Finance Companies (HFCs)
b) Exposure to capital market
As at As gt
March 31, 2020 March 3§, 2019
i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and - -
units of equity-oriented mutal funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested
in corporate debt
i) advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to - -
individuals for investment in shares {including IPOs / ESQPs), convestible bonds,
convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented matual funds
ii3) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible 977.23 74.83
debentures or units of equity oriented mutaal finds are taken as prisnary securisy
iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of - -
shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented
muteal funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares / convertible bends /
convertible debentures { units of equity oriented mutual fimds ‘does not fulfy coves
the advances
v} securcd and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of - -
stockbrokers and market makers
vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or - -
ather securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of
new companies in anticipation of raising resources
vii} bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues - -
viii) all exposures to Vensure Capital Funds {both rexistered and unregistered) - -
Total Exposure to Capital Market 977.23 74.83
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56, Regulatory Disclosures

(viii) Movements in non performing advances:
The foliowing table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of movement of gross Stage 11 loans, Net Stage 11T and ECL

provision
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
I} Net NPAs to net advances (%) 1.90% 2,68%
ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
ay Opening balance 598.40 380.07
b) Additions during the year 546.62 417.31
¢) Reductions during the year (763.64) (198.98)
d) Closing balance 381.38 598.40
iii} Movement of net NPA
a) Opeaing balance 512.10 275.60
b) Additicns during the year 439.90 35408
<) Reductions during the year (645.81) (1£7.58)
d) Closing balance 306.1% 512,10
iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provision on Stage ! & 11 loans)
a) Opening balance 86.30 104.47
b) Additions during the year 106.73 63.23
¢) Reductions during the year {117.83) (81.40)
d) Closing balance 75.20 86,30

{ix)  Details of single borrower limit and group borrawer limif exceeded by the Company:
During the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, the Company’s credit exposute to single borrowers and group borrowers were within the Limits
preseribed by the RBIL

(x)  Unsecured Advances
The company has rot taken any charges over the rights licences,authorisation et against unsecured loan given te borrowers.

(xiYy Fraud Reporfing
There were no instances of fraud identified and reported during the year (Previous Year Nil) as required in terms of Chapter II paragraph 5 of Menitoring of frauds
in NBFCs {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

(xiiy Renuneration of Directors
The company has not entered into any transacticn with non-executive directors during the year (Previous Year Rs. Nil) except disclosure made in 1able below:

Details of transaction with non executives directors

Name of Directors Nature of transaction For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Mr. Mitu] Shak Sitting fees 0.28 0.26
Mr. Sanjay Shah Sitting fees 0.26 0.30

(xiil} Net prafit or loss for the period , prior period items and changes in accounting policy
There are no prios items (previous year Rg, Nil) and there are no changes in accounting policies during the year, except as disclose note 46.1,

(xiv) Details of ‘provisions and contingencies’

Break up of 'provisions and pontingencies' shown under the head expenditure For the year ended For the year ended
in statement of profit and loss, March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
i) Provisions for depreciation on investment - -

iy  Provision towards NPA (Stage IH loans) (11.1%) (18.17)
i) Provision made towards income tax 44,78 186.52
iv)  Provision for Standard foans (Stage [ & II loans) 41.63 (£1.14)

(xv) Draw down from Reserves
{’,,-_;;Nafﬂgg._\g_iioxvn from statutory Reserve during F.Y, 2019-20 (Previous Year Rs. Nil)
<

N g n
Ry, D
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56. Regulatory Disclosures

(xvi) Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs

D) Sector-wise NPAs

A) Concentration of Depesits (for deposit taking NBFCs) As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 3E, 2019
Total Deposits 1o twenty largest depositors NA NA
2% of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to total Deposit taking NBFC NA NA
B) Concentration of advances As at Asgat
March 31, 2020 March 3E. 2019
Total advances to twenty largest barrowers 8,201.71 2.434.42
% of advances to twenty fargest borrowers to total advances 50.83% 12.84%
B} Concentration of exposures {includes Off balance sheet exposure}
Total expasures to twenty largest borrowers { customers 8,214.13 2,568.56
% of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to total Exposure 50.53% 13.38%
C) Concentration of NPAs
Total exposures to top four NPAs 281.03 127.10

% of NPAs to total advances in that sector

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1 Agriculture & allied activities 0.00% 2.22%
2 MSME 1.19% 0.00%
3 Ceorporate borrowers 0.40% 3.85%
4 Services 0.82% 247%
5 Unsecured personal loans 0.00% 0.00%
6 Auto loans 0.00% 0.00%
7 Other personzal loans 19.38% 3.03%
(xvii) Customer complaints
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 51, 2019
(a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - 13
{by No. of complaints received daring the year 51 157
(e} No. of complaints redressed during the year 51 157
(d} No. of complaints pending at the end of the year - -
(xviii) Details of ratings assigned by credit rating agencies
As at March 31, 2020
(a) |Instrument category CRISIL ICRA CARE Brickworks Brickworks Acuite
i} LT-NCD, LT- LT-NCD,LT- LT-NCD and
Long term instruments Sub Debt and  Sub Debtand LT-NCD Perpetual Debt Perpetual Pebt
LT - Sub Debt
BLR BLR
Rati CRISILAA-  ICRAAA-/ CAREAA/ CWRAA/Negative BWRAANegafive  \oyppp 44
ating fSrable Negative Stabl and BWR AA-/ and BWR AA-/ MNegative
2 ¢ . . ga
Negative Negative
Amount 18,000.00 41,500.00 12,250.00 4,500,00 1,000,00 1,000,00
ii) . CPs-8T and
Short term instruments CPs-8T ST-NCD CPs-8T
Rating CRISIL Al+ [ICRA] Al+ CARE Al+ NA NA NA
Amount 5,000,00 1,000.00 5,000.00 NA NA NA

(b) During there were the following changes done by various Rating Agencies

(i) ICRA Ratings revised the outfook on Long Term Debt ratings from Stable to Negative in April’2019 and downgraded the Long term ratings from ICRA AA to
ICRA AA- while keeping the cutlook unchanged in June 2019,

(i)} CARE Ratings downgraded the Long term Debt ratings from CARE AA 1o CARE AA- and revised the outlook from Stable and Negative in July’ 2819,

(i) Brickworks Ratings revised the outlook on 1.ong Term Debt ratings from Stable to Nepative in July’2019 and downgraded the Long term ratings from BWR
AA+ 10 BWR AA while keeping the outlack unchanged in September 2019,

(iv) Crisil Ratings revised the cutlook on Long Term Debt ratings from Stable to Negative in July’ 2019 and downgraded the Long term ratings from CRISIL AA to
CRISIL AA- changing the cutlook from Negasive to Stable in October'2019.

(v) Acuite Ratings revised the cutlook on Long Term Unsecured Subordinate Pespetual Debt rating from stable to Negative in August2019 and downgraded the
ratings from ACUITE AA to ACUITE AA- while keeping the outlook unchanged in February'2020.

Asg at March 31, 2059
Instrument category CRISEL ICRA CARE Brickworks Brickworks Acuite
LT-NCD,ET- LT-NCD,LT- .
) Long term instruments SubDebtand  SubDebtand T el @dLT g en Perpetual Debt  Perpotual Dobt
- Sub Debt
BLR BLR
CRISIL BWR AA+and BWR )
Rating AA/Stable [ICRA] AA CARE AA AA BWR AA Acuite AA+ Stable
o Amouant £8,000.00 41,500.00 12,250.00 4,508.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
< | i) Sfort term instruments CPs-ST Cps'i:rcagd ST opest
vy CRISIL A+  [ICRA]Al+  CAREAIl+ NA NA NA
5,000.00 6,000.00 5,000,00 NA NA NA
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the Ninancial statements (Confinned}
(Currency :Indian rupees i millions)

56.  Regulatory Disclosures

(xx} Micro, Small and Medinm Esserprises {8{SME} sector — Restracturing af Advances
(as required by RBI guidelines under reference RB1/2013-19/100 DBR.No.BP.BC.18/21.04.048/2618-19 dated January 01, 2019}

Particulars For the year ended|  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
No of aceounts tesiructured 26 13
Amount (Indien rupees in millions) 73.68 64.94
{xxi) Repistration obtained from other financial sector regulators - Nil (Previous Year - Nil}
(xxii} Detail of financing parents company products -Nil (Previous Year - Nil)

(xxtii) Bisclosure of penalties impaosed by RBI and other regrlators - Nil (Previous Year - Nil)

(xxiv) Ownership Overseas Assels (for those with jeint ventures and subsidiaries abroad)
There are aic overseas assets ewned by the company (Previeus year Nil)

{xxv) Note to the balance sheel of 2 Jeposit taking non-banking fi ial Company

Note to the balance shest of a non-deposit teking non-banking financial Company as required in terms of paragraph 18 of Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial
Company- Systematically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

Liabilities side:

Amount outstanding Ameount overdue

Particulars As atl Asat As At Asat
March 31, 2020, March 31. 2019 March 31, 2020| March 31. 2019

1} Loans and advances availed by NBFC in¢lusive of intercst accrued thereor: but not paid
a) Debentures:
(other than those falling within the meaning of Public deposit}

{i) Secured 4,939.06 4,909.92 - -
{ii) Unsecured 2,089.06 2,060.30 - -
b} Deferred credits - - - -
c} Term loans 7,067.85 11,240.05 - -

d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - - - -
e) Commercial paper - - - -

f) Other loans - - - -
(i) Loan from related parties 0.00 1.31 - -
(ii} Bank overdrafi 431.27 1,220.14 - -

(* Please sce note § below)
Assets sides

2) Break up of loans and advances including bills receivables

{other than those included in (3) below)
a} Secured 10,742.13 12,945.93 - -
b) Unsecured 5,394.67 6,132.76 - -

3) Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities
a) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
(i) Financial lease - - - -
(i) Operating lease - - - -

b) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors
{i) Assets on hire - - . -
(i) Repossessed assets - - - -

¢} Other loans counting towards asset financing Company activities
(i) Loans where assets have been repossessed - - - -
@) Other loans - - - -




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes fo the financial statements (Continued)
{Currency Indign rupees in miliions)

56, Repulatory Dselosores

Note 1o the balance sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking Bnancial Company as required in terms of paragraph 18 of Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial
Company- Systematically Imponant Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

As at As at
Murch 31, 2620 March 31, 2019
4} Break up of investments
Current investments:
a) Quoted:
(i)  Shares Equuty - -
Preference - -
{iiy Debentures and bonds - -
(i)  Unats of mutual funds - -
{iv} Government securities - -
{v} Others - -

b} Unguoted:
{i)  Shares: Equity - -
Preference - -
{ii} Debentures and bonds - -
(i} Units of mutual funds - -
v) Government securities - -
(v) Others (pass through certificates) - -

Long-term investments {net of provision)

a) Quoted:
(3)  Shares: Equity - -
Preference - .
(i) Debentures and bonds - “

{i1i) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government securities - -

(v) Others - -

bt} Unguoted:
(i)  Shares: Equity - -
Preference - -

(i1} Debentures and bonds - -
(i1t} Units of mutual funds - -
(1v) Govermnment securitics - -
(v) Others : Pass through certificates - -

Security receipts 471.23 -

53 Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as ir (2) and (3) above
Amount ret of provisions

Particulars Secured Unsecured Total
As at Asat As at Asat As at Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
1. Refated parties*™
{a) Subsidiaries - " - - - -
{b) Companies in the same group - - 2,163.11 - 2,163.11 -
{c) Other related parties - - - “ - -
2. Other than related parties 10,393.54 12,775.51 3,087.34 5,840.91 13,480.88 18,616.42
TOTAL 10,393,54 12,1715.51 §,250.45 5,34¢.91 15,643.99 18,616.42

6) Investor group-wise classification of alj investments (¢urrent and long-term) in shares and secunties (both quoted and unguoted)

Particulars Market value/break up or fair value or Book value
NAYV {net of provisions}
Asat Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31,2020 { March 31, 2019
1) Related parties
{a) Subsidiaries - - - -
{b) Companies in the same group - - - -
{¢) Orher related parties - - - -
2) Other than related parties 471.23 - I 471.23 -
TOTAL 471,23 - I 471.23 -
7} Other information
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2020| March 31, 2G19
a} Gross non-performing assets
1} Related parties - -
2) Other than related partics 38138 | 56840
b} Net non-performing assets
1} Related parties - -
2} Other than refated pastics 306,19 512,10
¢} Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - -
Noets :

1. As defined in paragraph 2{1)xii) of the Non-Banking Financial Compnay Acceptance of public deposits{Reserve bank) Direction, 1998,
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36.

{xxvi}

{xxvii}

{oxviii)

Regulatory Disclosures

Disclostere on perpeteal debt

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31. 2019

Amount of funds raised through Perpeiual debt instrument
during the year

Tier I Capital
Unpaid interest on Perpetual debt

. Asat Asa
Particul
artiewiars March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Principal amount outstanding as at year end. 450,00 45000
Percentage of she amount of Perpeival debt of the amount of ets 15.48% 9.26%)

There are no amount due and outstanding to be credited to investor education & protectton Fund as at March 31, 2020 and at at March 31, 2019

OFf balane sheet SPV sponsored -NIL (Previous year Ni.)
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56,

(xxix)

Regulatory Disclosures

Prudential Floor for ECL

In terms of the requirement as per RBI notification no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 on
Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards, Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) are required to create an impairment reserve for any
shortfall in impairment allowanees under Ind AS 109 and Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms (including
provision on standard assets). The impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 made by the Company exceeds the total provision required under IRACP
(including standard asset provisioning), as at March 31, 2020 and accordingly, no amount is required to be transferred o impairment reserve,

Asset

Gross

Loss Allowances

Difference between

Provisions
. . . . , .
Asset Classification as per RBI Norms classification Carrying (Prov:smns) as Net Carrying required as per Ind‘ {LS 109
as per Ind AS| Amount as per|required under Ind Amonnt IRACP norms provisions and
109 Ind AS AS 109 IRACP norms
1 2 3 4 5§=3-4 6 T=4-6
Performing Asscts
Standard Stage | 12,442 48 88.65 12,353.83 49.65 319.00
Stage 2 3131294 328.82 2,984.12 28.86 299,96
Subtotal
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 3E5.50 66.76 248.74 15.64 5112
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 2832 3.78 24,54 5.46 (1.68)
1 to 3 years Stage 3 37.56 4.66 3290 8.71 (4.05)
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for donbtful 65.88 8.44 57.44 14.17 (5.73)
Loss Stage 3 - B - - -
Subtotal for NPA 381.38 75.20 306.18 29.81 45,39
Other items such as guarantees, loan Stage 1 155.16 0.13 155.03 - 0.13
commitments, etc. which are in the scope
of Ind AS 109 but not covered under
current Income Recognition, Asset Stage 2 - - - - )
Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) Stage 3 } } } _
NOFNS )
Subtotal 155.16 0.13 155.03 - 0.13
Total Stage 1 12,597.64 88.78 12,508.86 49.65 39.13
Stage 2 3,312.94 328.82 2,984.12 28.86 299.96
Stage 3 381.38 75.20 306.18 29.81 45.39
Total 16,291.96 492.80 15,799.16 108.32 384.48
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(xxx) Disclosure on liquidity risk

As required in terms of paragraph 3 of RBI Cireutar RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 4,
2019 on Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies,

a) TFunding Concentration based on significant counterparty {both deposits and borrowings) As at
March 31, 2020

Number of significant counterparties® 20
Amount of borrowings from significant counterpartics 11,097.62

% of Total deposits NA

% of Total liabilities** 72.72%

* “Significant counterparty” is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggregare Jor
more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI'

** “Total liabilities ” refers to total external liabilities (i.e. excluding total equity).

b) Top 20 large deposits

The Company being a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financiai Company registered with Reserve Bank of India,
does not accept public deposits.

¢) Top 10 Borrowings Asat
March 31, 2020
Amount of Borrowings from top 10 lenders 8,732.17
% of Total Borrowings 60.11%
d} Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product” As at March 31, 2020
Amount % of Total
o Liabilities**
Market Borrowings
Non Convertible Debentures 4,939.06 32.36%
Perpetual and Sub-ordinated Debentures 2,089.06 13.69%
Other Borrowings
Term Loans 7,067.85 46.31%
Cash Credit Lines 281.27 1.84%

* "significant instrument/product” is defined as a single instrument/product of group of similar instruments/products which in aggregate
antount 10 more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSJI's iotal liabifities.

** “Total ligbilities " refers to total external liabilities (i.e. excluding total equity).

e) Stock Ratios As at
March 31, 2620

Commercial papers as a % of total public funds* 0.60%
Commercial papers as a % of total liabilitics 0.00%
Commercial papers as a % of total asscts 0.00%
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total public funds 0.00%
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total liabilities 0.00%
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total assets 0.00%
Other short-term liabilities**, if any as a % of total public funds 2.97%
Other short-term Habilities**, if any as a % of total liabilities 2.83%
Other short-term Habilities**, if any as a % of total assefs 2.17%

* “Total public funds” refers to the aggregate of Debi securities, Borrowing other than debi securities and Subordinated liabilities.
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f)  Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management
The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the Asset Liability Management Committee and the Risk Management Committee.
The Asset Liability Management Committee, inter alia

Implement and administer guidelines on Asset-Liability Management approved by the Board and its revision, if any;

Monitor the asset liability gap and overcome the asset-liability mismatches, interest risk exposure, etc.; Strategize action to mitigate risk
associated with the asset liability gap;

Develop risk policies and procedures and verify adherence to various risk parameters and prudential limits; review the risk monitoring system
and ensure effective risk management; and

Ensure that the credit and investment exposure to any party / Company / group of parties or companies does not exceed the internally set
limits as well as statutory lmits as prescribed by Reserve Bank of India from time to time.

Company has a Liquidity Contingency Policy in place to ensure various liquidity parameters are defined and tracked regularly. Liquidity
Management Team is provided with update on expecied liquidity shortfalls in Normal as well as Stress scenario.

the Company has ensured maintenance of a Liquidity Cushion in the form of Mutual Funds and liquid fixed deposits with banks, etc. These
assets carry minimal credit risk and can be liquidated in a very short period of time. A comfortable liquidity cushion is maintained of the
borrowings. These would be to take care of immediate obligations while continuing to honour cur commitments as a going concern.

There are available lines of credit from banks which are drawable on notice which further augment the available sources of funds.

(xxxi) Details of moratorium / deferment extended to eligible customers under COVID19 Regulatory package

(a) The company has extended moratorium/ deferment of term loan installments falfing due in moraterium period to its eligible custemers who have opted for
moratorium under RBI cireular on ‘COVID-19 - Regulatory Package' dated March 27, 2020 and 'COVID19 Regulatory Package - Asset Cassification and
Provisioning' dated April 17, 2020. The aggregating amount of customers in SMA/ Overdue categories as at March 31, 2020 is Rs. 1,908.9§ million.

(b} Asset classification has been extended for an aggregate amount of Rs. 216.71 mitlion and expected credit loss allowance of Rs. 39.25 million is maintained
on such lean accounts.

57. Other Disclosures
(iy Details of dues to micro enterprise and small enterprise

Trade payables includes Rs, Nil (Previous year: Rs. Nil) payable to “suppliers” registered under the micro, small and medium enterprises Development Act,
2006. No interest has been paid / is payable by the Company during the year and previous year to “suppliers” registered under this Act. The aforementioned
is based on the responses received by the Company to its inquiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said Act,

(it} Disclosure under regulation 33(f) of SEBI (Listing obligations and disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Particulars As at Asal
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Loans to advances in the nature of toans to subsidiaries 221714 -

Leans to advances in the nature of [oans to associates - -
Loans 1o advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are
interested - -
Investment by the lonee in the share of parents company and subsidiary company,
--|when the company has made a loans & advances in the nature of loans - -
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57.  Other Disclosures

(iii)y  Disclosure Large Corporate us per the applicability criteria given under the SEBI circular SEBYHO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated November 26,

2018.

Initial Disclosure to be made by an entity identified as a Large Corporate

Sr. No. Particulars
Name of the company

CiN

1
2
3 Qutstandirg borrowing of company as on March 31, 2020
4

Details

EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE LIMITED
U67120MH1997PLC2854%0

14,527.24

Highest Credit Rating During the previous FY along with name of the Credit Rating  As per Table 1 below

Agency

5 Name of Stock Exchange in which the fine shall be paid, in case of shortfall in the

required borrowing under the framework

Table 1

BSE LIMITED

Product

Bank Borrowings
Bank Borrowings
Commercial Papers
Commercial Papers
Long Term Sub-Debt
Long Term Sub-Debt
Long Term Sub-Debt

Long Term NCD
Long Term-NCD
Long Ferm-NCD
Long Term NCD
Perpetuzal — Debt
Perpetuzal — Debt
Short Term NCD

Credit Rating

ICRA AA-Negative
CRISIL AA-/Stable
CARE A1+

CRISIL Al+

CARE AA-/Stable
CRISIL AA-/Stable
ICRA AA-/Negative
ICRA AA-/Negative
BWR AA /Negative
CARE AA-/Stable
CRISIL AA-/Stable
BWR AA- Negative)
ACUITE AA- /Negative)
ICRA Al+

Name of Rating Agency
ICRA Limited
CRISIL

CARE Limited
CRISIL

CARE Limited
CRISIL

ICRA Limited
ICRA Limited
Brickwork Ratings
CARE Limited
CRISIL

Brickwork Ratings
ACUITE Ratings
ICRA Limited

(iv} Details of incremental borrowings during the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars Details
Incremental borrewing done in FY (a) Nil
Mandatory borrowing to be done through issuance of debt securities (b) = (25% of a) NA
Actuat borrowings done through debt securities in FY {c) NA
Shortfall in the mandatory borrowing through debt securities, ifany (d)= (b) - (€)

{H the calculated vatue is zero or negative, write "nil"} NA
Reasens for short fall, if any, in mandatory borrowings through debt securities NA

58, Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current period presentation.

As per our report of even date aftached.
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